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 1                   P R O C E E D I N G S.

 2               MS. CONRAD:  We have a quorum, we are

 3    going to begin.  Good morning, panel chairperson,

 4    members, temporary voting members.  I am Connie

 5    Conrad, executive secretary of the Medical and

 6    Surgical Procedures Panel of the Medicare Coverage

 7    Advisory Committee.  The panel is here today to

 8    provide advice and recommendations to the Agency

 9    regarding pelvic floor electrical stimulation for

10    the treatment of nonneurogenic urinary incontinence

11    in adults.  At the conclusion of today's session,

12    panel members will be asked to vote on a series of

13    questions.  The answers to those questions will

14    constitute this panel's recommendation, which will

15    be submitted to the Executive Committee when it

16    meets on June 6th.  When the Executive Committee

17    ratifies the recommendation, it will officially

18    transmit that recommendation to HCFA.  HCFA will

19    develop a coverage policy within 60 days of receipt

20    of that recommendation.

21               For the purposes of today's panel,

22    Dr. Lisa Landy, standing member of the Durable

23    Medical Equipment Panel and noted expert in the

24    field of urinary incontinence received an

25    appointment to temporary voting status.
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 1    Dr. Landy's expertise will enhance this panel's

 2    deliberative process.

 3               In addition, we welcome Dr. Michael

 4    Risager, carrier medical director for Trailblazers

 5    Health Enterprises in the state of Maryland, and we

 6    welcome Diane Smith, a urotechnology consultant and

 7    continence specialist, as nonvoting guests.

 8               The following announcement addresses

 9    conflict of interest issues associated with this

10    meeting, and is made part of the record to preclude

11    even the appearance of impropriety.  To determine

12    if any conflict existed, the Agency reviewed the

13    submitted agenda and all financial interests

14    reported by the panel participants.  The conflict

15    of interest statutes prohibit special government

16    employees from participating in matters that could

17    affect their or their employers' financial

18    interests.  The Agency has determined that all

19    members and consultants may participate in the

20    matters before the panel today.

21               With respect to all other participants,

22    we ask in the interest of fairness that all persons

23    making statements or presentations disclose any

24    current or previous financial involvement with any

25    firm whose products or services they may wish to
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 1    comment on.

 2               Okay.  Let's start with presentation of

 3    questions by Perry Bridger, analyst with the

 4    coverage and analysis group.

 5               MR. BRIDGER:  Good morning.  Thank you,

 6    and I apologize to those of you who were here

 7    yesterday and heard similar remarks.  As many of

 8    you are well aware, urinary incontinence is a

 9    significant health problem for the Medicare

10    populations.  For example, the prevalence of

11    urinary incontinence in the above age 65 Medicare

12    population is estimated to be near 35 percent for

13    females and 20 percent for males, with rates even

14    higher in hospitalized older adults and those in

15    long-term care institutions.  Urinary incontinence

16    affects individuals' quality of life and often

17    leads to other comorbidities, isolation and

18    depression.  Frequently, patients do not report

19    this problem to their families, caregivers and

20    health professionals, and urinary incontinence has

21    remained an under reported and under studied

22    condition.

23               In the following two slides I have

24    outlined for you several of the treatments which

25    exist for the management of urinary incontinence.
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 1    These include behavioral interventions, pelvic

 2    floor electrical stimulation, pharmacologic

 3    therapy, bulking agents, sacral nerve stimulation,

 4    and surgery.  In general, which treatment options

 5    to pursue for the different types of urinary

 6    incontinence is dependent on specific patient

 7    indications, comorbid states, cognitive function,

 8    and the willingness and ability to participate in

 9    treatment.

10               During this two-day panel meeting the

11    Medical and Surgery Procedures Panel of the

12    Medicare Coverage Advisory Committee will review

13    the evidence and make recommendations to HCFA about

14    two of these treatment modalities, biofeedback and

15    pelvic floor electrical stimulation.  Yesterday the

16    panel heard testimony and reviewed the scientific

17    evidence about biofeedback and today the panel will

18    hear testimony and review the scientific evidence

19    regarding the use of pelvic floor electrical

20    stimulation.  Currently, pelvic floor electrical

21    stimulation therapy is not paid for by the Medicare

22    program.

23               For the purposes of this meeting, pelvic

24    floor electrical stimulation is defined as the use

25    of a nonimplantable electrical device that delivers
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 1    variable rates of current through the pelvic floor

 2    with the intent of strengthening pelvic floor

 3    musculature.

 4               The panel has had the opportunity to

 5    read the technology assessments, evidence tables

 6    and other materials related to pelvic floor

 7    electrical stimulation.  After hearing the public's

 8    comments and scheduled commentary presented here

 9    today, the panel will be asked to vote on a

10    sequence of questions regarding this therapy.  All

11    of these questions are directly related to the

12    scientific evidence regarding pelvic floor

13    electrical stimulation therapy, and comments made

14    today should be directly relevant to this topic.

15               Dr. John Whyte, during the HCFA

16    presentation, will more fully address these

17    questions, the points to consider, and the

18    categories of effectiveness.  We will now briefly

19    outline these for you.  In response to yesterday's

20    comments regarding these questions, we have

21    clarified question 1 to make it more precise.

22    Connie has a copy of these questions, which she

23    will distribute to the panel, and we will provide

24    to the public at the end of my comments copies as

25    well.
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 1               The first question we are asking the

 2    panel to discuss for pelvic floor electrical

 3    stimulation therapy is the following:  Is the

 4    scientific evidence adequate to draw conclusions

 5    about the effectiveness of pelvic floor electrical

 6    stimulation compared to placebo, pelvic floor

 7    electrical stimulation compared to PMEs or

 8    alternative nonsurgical techniques, PMEs and pelvic

 9    floor electrical stimulation compared to PME alone,

10    in the Medicare populations for the following three

11    indications: Stress incontinence, urge

12    incontinence, and post-prostatectomy incontinence.

13               In answering this question, the panel

14    should consider the following points:  The adequacy

15    of the individual study design, the consistency of

16    results across studies, their applicability to the

17    Medicare population, and their applicability beyond

18    the research setting.

19               If the evidence is adequate to draw

20    conclusions about pelvic floor electrical

21    stimulation in these cases and the panel votes

22    affirmatively on question 1, the panel will move on

23    to questions 2, 3 and 4, which address the size and

24    direction of effectiveness.  Therefore, question 2

25    asks:  If the evidence is adequate to draw
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 1    conclusions, what is the size, if any, of the

 2    overall health effects of pelvic floor electrical

 3    stimulation compared to placebo for the treatment

 4    of urinary incontinence?

 5               When answering this question, as well as

 6    questions 3 and 4, the panel will be asked to place

 7    the size and direction of effectiveness into one of

 8    the following seven categories:  Breakthrough

 9    technology, more effective, as effective but with

10    advantages, as effective with no advantages, less

11    effective but with advantages, less effective with

12    no advantage, and not effective.

13               Keeping in mind these categories,

14    question 3 asks:  If the evidence is adequate to

15    draw conclusions, what is the size, if any, of the

16    overall health effects of pelvic floor electrical

17    stimulation compared to PMEs or alternative

18    nonsurgical techniques for the treatment of urinary

19    incontinence?

20               And finally, question 4:  If the

21    evidence is adequate to draw conclusions, what is

22    the size, if any, of the overall health effects of

23    the addition of pelvic floor electrical stimulation

24    to PMEs, compared to PMEs alone.  Please remember

25    that Dr. Whyte will elaborate on those points more
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 1    fully during the HCFA presentation, and you will

 2    have the opportunity as well to discuss them during

 3    your deliberations.

 4               We thank the panel members and all of

 5    you who have made efforts to participate in this

 6    panel meeting regarding biofeedback and pelvic

 7    floor electrical stimulation.  We look forward to

 8    your deliberations.

 9               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you, Perry.

10               DR. STANTON: Alan?

11               DR. GARBER:  Yes, Marshall?

12               DR. STANTON:  Yes.  Before we head into

13    the discussions for today, I think there's a couple

14    points that are very relevant that need to be

15    discussed.  When I was reflecting on yesterday's

16    deliberations, I think there were a lot of

17    excellent points that were made regarding the

18    burden of proof for conclusive scientific evidence

19    and comparing that with the evidence that's

20    necessary for pointing towards possible improved

21    outcomes for beneficiaries.  I think Dr. Epstein's

22    points, vis a vis, P equals .05 versus P equals .5

23    were particularly poignant on that regard.  In

24    clinical practice, our treatment decisions for

25    patients are made by physicians based on his or her
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 1    assessment of the literature and not on a

 2    meta-analysis that requires achieving a P value of

 3    less than .05.  If the latter were the case, then I

 4    think that few treatment decisions would be

 5    instituted in clinical practice today.

 6               At the conclusion of yesterday's

 7    session, Hugh Hill made some points thanking the

 8    panel for assisting in an evidence based process

 9    for coverage decision making.  These are not his

10    exact words but it certainly was the tone and the

11    point that I took away from his comments.  All of

12    this for me raises a lot of concern regarding the

13    weight that this panel's vote is going to play in

14    the coverage decision making process and I think

15    again, as I said yesterday, we should not be so

16    naive as to think that this vote will not play a

17    major role in that decision process.

18               The process as it is presently designed

19    ignores expert testimony, it ignores public

20    comment, and it ignores the views of the panel's

21    consumer representative.  And I asked myself why

22    they should even bother presenting their views.

23    HCFA has convened this panel of experts here who

24    have invested much of their own time and yet the

25    questions that are posed leaves the panel too

00013

 1    constrained to be of any practical use.  As a

 2    nonvoting member, I sensed the obvious discomfort

 3    of panel members yesterday in being forced to vote

 4    one way on a specific question while stating their

 5    opposite true beliefs about the therapy that was

 6    discussed.

 7               If this new high standard of multiple

 8    randomized control trials all having to have the

 9    same positive outcome is to be the bar against

10    which all new therapies must clear to obtain

11    coverage, then I fear there are going to be dire

12    consequences.  A national noncoverage decision

13    means that no Medicare patient can get the

14    therapy.  There is no room for patient appeal.

15    Future clinical trials of that therapy are going to

16    be very unlikely in that scenario.  This will

17    stifle the development of new technologies, and I

18    think it's worthwhile for the panel to note that

19    new technologies that come to the market won't be

20    ready for this type of assessment for many years

21    after they achieve regulatory approval.

22               I see ourselves going down the same road

23    today and that we went down yesterday, and I have a

24    lot of concerns about that.
25               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  Thank you.  It's a
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 1    little bit off the agenda, but I don't think we

 2    have a better place to put it, so with the

 3    indulgence of the panel I would like to set aside a

 4    little time if other panelists would like to

 5    comment.  Yes, Linda.

 6               DR. BRADLEY:  I am very happy that

 7    Dr. Stanton had these comments over dinner, and

 8    just thinking about this whole process yesterday, I

 9    left extremely frustrated.  I understand that the

10    Executive Committee needs to set standards, but I

11    think either the bar is so high or if you're doing

12    the limbo, it's so low that you just cannot get

13    under in order to make a decision to move forward.

14               And I think I have the same feelings.

15    I'm not sure why we have all these people convening

16    here if their testimony both from patients,

17    patients' letters, practicing physicians in the

18    specialty, people who have spent collectively

19    centuries of personal time studying this, and we

20    really are not able to include their personal

21    expertise because of the lack of potential

22    scientific rigor, I think the hurdle is extremely

23    high, and I just am so glad that these comments, I

24    couldn't have said it anymore eloquently.  But I

25    also hope that we don't leave today with the same
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 1    spirit that we left with yesterday.  And I would

 2    love comments from others that we haven't talked

 3    with directly.  This is a very frustrating problem.
 4               DR. GARBER:  Les?

 5               DR. ZENDLE:  If our job had been

 6    different, if we had been asked to make

 7    recommendations on a coverage decision, I think we

 8    would have done it differently, and I think the

 9    comments from the public and the professional

10    organizations and the clinical experts would have

11    been quite relevant.  I guess because I have been

12    involved in looking at evidence purely from the

13    scientific point of view in reaching a conclusion,

14    and then taking that to decide how you're going to

15    implement that in the real world, that I can

16    separate the two.

17               I think that it's not unreasonable to

18    decide to cover something even if there isn't

19    scientific evidence, or evidence to a scientific

20    level that it is more effective than other things.
21    But in that case, you have to give some other

22    reason to cover it.  And what I don't want to see

23    happen is to have things covered because somebody

24    says there is scientific level of evidence and not

25    say the real reason why it might be covered,
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 1    whether it's a more efficient way of doing it, or

 2    it's the standard of practice, those are all valid

 3    reasons to cover something.  But personally, I like

 4    separating what is a purely scientific rationale

 5    from other reasons to cover something.

 6               If HCFA, and I guess HCFA is acting

 7    under what it perceives were the congressional

 8    instructions were, if they decide they want to

 9    change what we do to make recommendations on

10    coverage, then I can do that and I would be happy

11    to do it, and I would have reached a different

12    conclusion yesterday.  So, I think we do have to

13    get some -- maybe HCFA and Congress and whatever,

14    have to take another look at this to decide what

15    the best way to do this is.  But I didn't have any

16    problem with yesterday just looking at the

17    scientific question and reaching a conclusion.  I

18    agree though, that if I thought that was going to

19    be, without any kind of other input, the coverage

20    decision, I would be uncomfortable too.
21               DR. GARBER:  Hugh?

22               DR. HILL:  Thanks.  A couple of

23    responses.  While I appreciate the comments and do

24    acknowledge that they are about coverage and not

25    necessarily about specific evidence on a specific
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 1    case, I do appreciate hearing them.  Let me assert

 2    to you that we have not ignored expert opinion,

 3    public opinion, consumer opinion, that those were

 4    all taken into account in the design of the

 5    process, that industry and other stakeholders

 6    wanted us to go to an evidentiary basis, an open

 7    transparent process for scientific evidence as the

 8    basis for making coverage decisions, and this is a

 9    part of that.  And I hope that the panel did not

10    ignore the presentations of experts, the public and

11    consumers yesterday.
12               If by not acceding to or agreeing with

13    them we are regarded as having ignored them, that

14    seems a bit extreme.  I hope we took them into

15    account.  And I didn't hear us asking about whether

16    or not the technology had met the bar of a national

17    randomized trial, and we certainly don't intend to

18    stifle new technologies.  But on a hierarchy of

19    evidence we hope that there's some agreement, and

20    there has been in the design of the process, that

21    some sorts of studies are more reliable and the

22    results of those studies are more predictably

23    reproducible than other studies.  And hopefully, we

24    can use that hierarchy of evidence and the

25    suggestions of the Executive Committee to try to
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 1    make rational decisions about what we should cover

 2    and we shouldn't.  And that's why we focus on

 3    evidence and your comments about the evidence.

 4               We haven't set the hurdle extremely

 5    high.  I disagree with that specifically and

 6    emphatically.  We wanted to hear about it and we

 7    did hear about comments about other evidence, and

 8    all sorts of things that might be regarded as

 9    evidence by some people and not by others were

10    available to you.  If you think that the apocryphal

11    story or the odd case report, or the letters to the

12    editors in the journals are evidence and you want

13    to decide on that basis, we want to hear about

14    that.  And as you noticed yesterday, we wanted to

15    know what's behind your vote, the thinking behind

16    your vote.

17               I'm sorry you're frustrated with

18    voting.  We think we need that for clarity, but we

19    always want to know the thinking behind it, and we

20    hope you felt like you had adequate opportunity to

21    express your reasoning.

22               DR. GARBER:  Maybe I could just add a

23    brief comment on two points.  The first is, the

24    comments of the public speakers, and as I said

25    yesterday, I was personally very grateful to the
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 1    public speakers, because I think that the

 2    presentations of the public speakers by in large

 3    really did address the questions the panel was

 4    posed, and although I didn't ask the panelists if

 5    they were influenced by the public speakers, I got

 6    the very clear sense that the panelists took those

 7    comments very critically, and the fact that the

 8    panelists did not vote the way that some of the

 9    public speakers might have wanted them to vote

10    should not be construed as meaning that the panel

11    ignored their comments.  I personally found the

12    comments very helpful and it doesn't, the fact that

13    one votes the other way doesn't make that testimony

14    worthless or in any sense less valuable.  I think

15    that was a very important part of yesterday's

16    process, whatever the outcome of the voting was.

17    And I hope that we continue to have public

18    commentary of this high quality and I would suspect

19    that in many cases it will turn out to be

20    decisive.  So I was not, did not have the sense

21    that that was just an exercise that we went

22    through; I thought it was extremely valuable to our

23    deliberations.

24               The other point that Marshall raised,

25    which I would like to say a word about on behalf of

00020

 1    the Executive Committee, is about the standard of

 2    evidence and in clinical practice what the standard

 3    of practice is.  We are not making coverage

 4    decisions but as you correctly pointed out, we as a

 5    panel are making recommendations that will be an

 6    important part of coverage considerations.  And by

 7    widespread practice, the level of evidence that is

 8    used to make coverage decisions is entirely

 9    different from what is used in the clinical

10    setting, in the doctor to patient relationship,

11    because in the doctor-patient one-on-one setting,

12    all kinds of individual factors come into play,

13    things the physician, the patient know that aren't

14    fully reflected in the literature, and we make our

15    best guess every day about what's the best

16    treatment, and here making the best guess is

17    absolutely appropriate.
18               Now I'm not going to comment on how HCFA

19    should make coverage decisions.  I don't really

20    know the answer to that, but what I do know is that

21    when it comes to coverage, you use a different

22    standard of evidence.  That is what is done around

23    the world, it's what is done by different

24    organizations in the US.  A coverage decision is

25    not the same thing as a one-on-one patient-doctor
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 1    treatment decision.  They are clearly related since

 2    coverage is a way to enable the doctor to apply a

 3    treatment and have it covered by insurance, but the

 4    standard of evidence by standard of practice is

 5    different.  And that is something that the

 6    Executive Committee unanimously agreed to as a

 7    concept.

 8               Now, it is entirely possible that the

 9    panel set the bar too high for the evidence

10    standards yesterday.  HCFA and the Executive

11    Committee did not say specifically what kinds of

12    studies would be needed because they expected the

13    panels to come to a conclusion in each context and

14    you did reach a conclusion yesterday rightly or

15    wrongly, and there was a strong majority on these

16    questions.
17               Now, that doesn't mean that you have to

18    use the same standard in every case.  As I said

19    yesterday, we're feeling our way through this

20    process.  But I don't think that it would be

21    appropriate, at least from the Executive

22    Committee's point of view, to say the best guess

23    should be the standard of evidence, that is, what

24    we happen to think is best regardless of the

25    quality of the evidence.  That's why such a big
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 1    point was made about evaluating adequacy of

 2    evidence.  Jim?

 3               DR. RATHMELL:  I guess this would be a

 4    segue into today's topic.  My discomfort is very

 5    very specific.  Yesterday we considered a

 6    technology called biofeedback and we were posed a

 7    very narrow question comparing one type of control

 8    versus the technology itself.  And today we are

 9    considering a different technology, the electrical

10    stimulation and yet, we're looking at the efficacy

11    versus many different controls.  I feel as though

12    we were steered into a very narrow decision, where

13    there was much more information about that

14    technology available, and if we were really

15    supposed to look at the scientific evidence about

16    that technology, we should have looked at

17    everything that was available.  Very similar to

18    what we're doing today, versus placebo, versus

19    other types of controls.
20               There's much more information about

21    biofeedback that we ignored, to the point where

22    when we were asked a question, the question was so

23    narrow that the majority of the testimony that we

24    heard, and the allusions or the references to a

25    body of literature that wasn't in the technology
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 1    assessment, we had to ignore.  But I was left to

 2    vote opposite my feeling about the technology

 3    without really knowing the scientific evidence, and

 4    this is a scientific panel, and I really would have

 5    liked to have access to all of the scientific

 6    evidence about that technology.
 7               DR. GARBER:  Hugh.

 8               DR. HILL:  Thank you, Dr. Rathmell.  We,

 9    as you pointed out, we're learning in this process,

10    and this is the third meeting of a Medicare

11    coverage advisory panel, and the first one of this

12    panel.  And one of the discussions that we had

13    internally was how specific to be.  We acknowledged

14    and intended yesterday's question to be very

15    specific.  And we've learned in the first couple of

16    panels that if we are not very specific about

17    questions, if it's vague or if we're just sort of

18    going to have a discussion about a technology, the

19    information we get back may not be as useful to us

20    in a scientific sense.  So, would you extend your

21    remarks and comment a little further about how you

22    would strike that balance?

23               DR. RATHMELL:  Well, let's just be very

24    specific.  Can you address why today we have three

25    questions posed about a technology versus other
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 1    control groups, and yesterday we were posed only

 2    the third question, which is the additional benefit

 3    of adding that to PMEs?  This is very specific

 4    about this.  Why do today's questions differ so

 5    much from yesterday's questions, and why were the

 6    first two components of the question posed today

 7    left out of yesterday's question and technology

 8    assessment?

 9               DR. HILL:  In some cases the answer to

10    that will be historical, because of the way the

11    requests have come in or the questions have

12    developed.  Sometimes the questions will grow

13    nationally out of our own review of the evidence

14    and what we think can be usefully asked.  But in

15    this case, perhaps we can, if you don't mind me

16    asking the analysts who were involved in this, to

17    comment on why there is a difference.  John, is

18    that appropriate.

19               DR. WHYTE:  It's a very reasonable

20    question.  On the issue of biofeedback, we made the

21    decision to view biofeedback purely as an

22    adjunctive therapy, so in that context we would

23    have to look at PME and biofeedback compared to PME

24    alone.  That was not the same assessment that you

25    will hear about today.
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 1               One question did deal with pelvic floor

 2    electrical stimulation as adjunctive therapy, but

 3    based on many of the requests that we received as

 4    well as data we had looked at, there was also an

 5    understanding that pelvic floor electrical

 6    stimulation could be used as a primary therapy and

 7    not as adjunctive.  So given that, we then had to

 8    look compared to placebo, and compared to other

 9    therapies, nonsurgical therapies.  But that was not

10    the case in terms of how we interpreted the use of

11    biofeedback.  I hope that answers your question.

12               DR. RATHMELL:  It does, except that we

13    heard extensive testimony yesterday about how

14    biofeedback was inextricable from the way that PMEs

15    are practiced in this day and age, and so I was

16    left with the feeling that an artificial

17    distinction had been drawn that couldn't be drawn.
18    It's impossible.  There's a continuum between PMEs

19    where a pamphlet or videotape is given to the

20    patient and no further instruction or interaction

21    with the patient, and an electronic device at the

22    other even of the spectrum, that is hooked up to

23    the musculature, and there is extensive interaction

24    with the patient.  So there is a continuum and yet,

25    we tried to make some distinction that's impossible
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 1    to make from the daily practice in this day and

 2    age.  And from the literature alone, it was

 3    impossible to make either way, but yet we made it

 4    yesterday, and were forced on a decision that had

 5    an artificial boundary.

 6               DR. GARBER:  Michael Risager?

 7               DR. RISAGER:  I need to differ from the

 8    previous speaker.  I believe we had ample

 9    literature and ample resources.  One thing that

10    struck me after yesterday was the, here's something

11    that appears to have a place.  It's amazing how

12    with 13 million people with stress incontinence who

13    have been treated for years with some form of

14    biofeedback, whatever you use to monitor, to assess

15    the, to develop the musculature, why there have not

16    been better studies.  It amazes me.  So I think we,

17    I feel we did the right thing to have a clear and

18    precise objective.  I would with respect, suggest

19    that we go on, and rather than compare and agonize

20    about the today's, yesterday's proceedings compared

21    to today, let's go on and do today what we have to

22    do, and then learn from that.  In short, I think we

23    did the best we could yesterday.
24               DR. GARBER:  Ken?

25               DR. BRIN:  I share a lot of the
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 1    discomfort that has already been raised, but I also

 2    recognize that this is a new process and that we're

 3    blazing new grounds.  I think a lot of my level of

 4    discomfort will be assuaged when I see what the end

 5    result ends up being.  We were asked a very very

 6    specific focused question.  I believe we answered

 7    appropriately, given the question we were asked.

 8    The question then arises, how that will be used by

 9    HCFA to determine coverage?  If it's used with all

10    of the comments that have been made, such as the

11    fact that the baseline comparison is giving

12    biofeedback as part of the standard of care, and

13    that's factored in there, I think we will be very

14    comfortable that our advice was used

15    appropriately.  If in fact the outcome is

16    different, there will be some concerns.  And I

17    think we should just move on and then watch what

18    the end result of the process is, because it's a

19    new process.

20               In my own area of cardiovascular

21    disease, stinting is an adjunct to coronary

22    angioplasty.  For certain lesions, there's never

23    been and there never will be a good double blind,

24    or certainly not double blind, but randomized study

25    of stinting and nonstinting, because it's standard
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 1    of care.  And if a panel were convened to take a

 2    look at stinting as an adjunct, it probably would

 3    have to make a very similar decision, because the

 4    studies haven't been done and won't be done.  And

 5    if the outcome of that were, well, stinting won't

 6    be covered, that would be a different issue.  I

 7    think we need to see what the end result of our

 8    deliberations and advice is, as passed on by the

 9    Executive Committee, and as coverage decisions are

10    made by HCFA.

11               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Arnie?

12               DR. EPSTEIN:  I think I can articulate

13    with some difficulty, but I think I can do it

14    profitably, what makes the discomfort level of some

15    of the individuals so high, and set that in relief

16    for people from HCFA to consider.  I'm going to

17    flip for a moment into the coverage decision.  I

18    could imagine many, but at least two ways that

19    people might think about coverage decisions.  One

20    is, we're only going to cover procedures where

21    there is clear scientific evidence indicating the

22    procedure's effective or efficacious, you'd like

23    both.

24               The second runs orthogonal to that.  It

25    says, in the face of broad consensus from medical
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 1    experts that a procedure is effective, we will

 2    cover it absent evidence that it's not effective,

 3    so long as the clinical downsides are minimal.

 4               We have -- I can think of both of those

 5    approaches being a reasonable approach for

 6    coverage.  What makes everybody uncomfortable is

 7    that the scientific question that we've been asked

 8    is designed to lead to the former approach as

 9    opposed to the latter approach.  We could have been

10    asked two questions:  Is the scientific evidence

11    adequate to show that the procedure works?  Answer,

12    no.  Is the scientific evidence adequate to show

13    the procedure doesn't work?  Answer, no.  We didn't

14    get asked the latter question, which makes

15    everybody worry that when we get to the coverage

16    decision, we're going to take method A and as

17    opposed to method B, and I think that's what the

18    discomfort level is all about.

19               MS. GREENBERGER:  I think -- I would be

20    astounded if the coverage decision went the other

21    way.  It would be historical precedent frankly, if

22    we came out with the results that we did yesterday

23    and that HCFA decided to cover this.  So I think

24    what you're saying is correct, but we're left with

25    the decision that we made yesterday.
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 1               I also think that perhaps we should ask

 2    why there aren't, why there haven't been clinical

 3    trials.  And I heard a lot of good reasons

 4    yesterday that people told me that haven't come

 5    out, that perhaps they would like to share, if

 6    they're able to.  And I think this is going to be

 7    the case.  Dr. Stanton said there are a lot of new

 8    tests, diagnostics and therapies unfortunately,

 9    that cannot be, that nobody can afford to do mass

10    clinical trials.  And I understand that we need to

11    have the scientific evidence; we can't do a

12    procedure or have a diagnostic that we don't know

13    for sure that it works.

14               But this particular one we're

15    discussing, and certainly the one yesterday, I

16    mean, this is not something that's going to be

17    dangerous.  And clearly, I think the clinical

18    evidence has shown, and still we have confusion

19    over other whether we're even asking the right

20    question.  If this is standard practice, then it's

21    being used anyway.  So I think the question -- I

22    mean, I don't know what the procedure is now at

23    this point, but I just think that the way we

24    answered this question is going to ultimately

25    result in a noncoverage decision, and I think that
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 1    for all these people out there that have been

 2    covered by this or have been treated in this

 3    manner, not to be covered now I think is

 4    outrageous.
 5               I also think that we're changing the

 6    question.  My understanding, and correct me if I'm

 7    wrong, that the question today was changed again.

 8    I was told by some people in the audience that it

 9    was changed again.  The testimony from the public

10    is given to us now so that we don't have time to

11    read it.  And I'm just very uncomfortable with the

12    whole process.  I think this committee took

13    indicate years from congressional mandate to

14    actuality, and you would think that we could do a

15    better job than taking so many years to put this

16    together.

17               DR. HILL:  Your comments are reinforcing

18    our perception of the importance of the questions,

19    the critical nature, the central nature of the

20    questions that we ask you, and I hope that you will

21    give us your thoughts after this, and we will pass

22    them on to the Executive Committee and they will

23    form a part of our discussions about how we modify

24    this process as we go along.

25               MS. GREENBERGER:  We would like to write
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 1    a letter, some of us, to the Executive Committee,

 2    if we may.
 3               DR. GARBER:  Diane?

 4               MS. SMITH:  I just would like to say, I

 5    think the problem really was the question, and I

 6    think that was because of the misunderstanding of

 7    those posing the question, and I think that that is

 8    a central issue to why almost every person who

 9    voted no then said, but if I had to made a coverage

10    decision, I'd say yes.  And that's because, if the

11    question had been, if biofeedback has efficacious

12    applicability in doing pelvic muscle reeducation,

13    does it?  You would have several studies that were

14    thrown out that would have shown that compared to a

15    waiting list or a placebo effect, overwhelming it

16    has efficacious evidence, significant efficacious

17    evidence, better than some other continence

18    therapies that are routinely reimbursed.
19               So I think that is really a very valid

20    point and should really be considered by HCFA when

21    they are making their coverage decision, that the

22    question was narrow enough to achieve a no, because

23    the evidence simply was not there because the

24    people doing that research never even assumed that

25    you would ask that kind of a question, because the
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 1    common practice is to think of using biofeedback to

 2    teach pelvic muscle reeducation.  That is in all of

 3    the professional literature, urology, nursing,

 4    gynecology, physical therapy, and this is very

 5    important.
 6               Even Dr. Garber said, I don't have a

 7    vote, but I want to make a statement about

 8    coverage.  He said, I think that there is evidence

 9    for coverage.  And I think that's very important,

10    and should be part of what people are considering

11    when they are making this decision.  And I think

12    that it's unfortunate that biofeedback was the

13    first therapy to be looked at in this manner,

14    because it actually isn't new technology which

15    would -- there are examples in urology which is new

16    technology, which there is some clear scientific

17    evidence perhaps, that could have given the panel a

18    level of comport, you know, to play around with

19    appropriate questions.  Biofeedback, because it's

20    been around for so long and because it has become a

21    standard of care, it's just inherently difficult to

22    make that type of a question stick.
23               So I was uncomfortable also, but I

24    really wasn't depressed.  Of course, if you know

25    me, you know that I never get depressed.  And the
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 1    reason was because every no was punctuated with a

 2    yes, in my mind.  Every no was punctuated with a

 3    yes for coverage, because they said clearly as a

 4    physician today, I am voting no because of the

 5    question.  If I had to tell you if I wanted my

 6    patient to have this, I would say yes.  And that's

 7    what I heard.

 8               DR. GARBER:  Before I recognize Les,

 9    Diane, I do want to correct a statement you made,

10    or else a statement I made and didn't mean.  I

11    don't believe I ever expressed an opinion about

12    coverage.  But what I did express an opinion about

13    was that I hoped very much that HCFA would include

14    other information such as the public testimony in

15    making their coverage decision.  And if you ever

16    hear me making a recommendation about coverage from

17    the chair, consider me to have a ministroke, and

18    strike it from the record.

19               MS. SMITH:  Really, to me of course, it

20    seemed like a very positive statement.

21               DR. EPSTEIN:  Give some balance to the

22    record.

23               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Les.

24               DR. ZENDLE:  I think if we had been

25    asked to make some decisions about coverage, then
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 1    there would have been some other questions that we

 2    might have wanted to go into, like for example, how

 3    much biofeedback is needed.  Because don't forget,

 4    when HCFA is going to decide whether it's going to

 5    cover something, it means that they're going to pay

 6    somebody to do something.  Now, if something that

 7    costs $50 is as efficacious as something that costs

 8    $10,000 dollars, I hope that HCFA won't use our tax

 9    dollars to pay for the $10,000 thing.  That's a

10    different question, which would require lots of

11    different kinds of information.  So I guess that's

12    why I was comfortable yesterday with not having to

13    address the coverage issue.

14               I would hope that when HCFA does address

15    the coverage issue, they are going to have to look

16    at some of those other things and take that into

17    consideration.  I don't personally know how they

18    will do it, but I guess I'm okay with the fact that

19    they didn't ask us to do that.

20               MS. GREENBERGER:  Let me ask a

21    question.  What are we doing here?  If this is, the

22    decision that we came to yesterday, are they going

23    to look at it and say, well, they didn't think

24    there was enough scientific evidence to prove that

25    it was efficacious, but we're going to cover it
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 1    anyway?

 2               DR. ZENDLE:  Yeah.  They do it all the

 3    time, and other insurers do it too.

 4               MS. GREENBERGER:  I find that hard to

 5    believe.

 6               DR. GARBER:  Let me just make a comment

 7    about this.  There were extensive discussions about

 8    the role of this panel.  We don't know all the

 9    details about how Medicare is going to make

10    coverage decisions and as I mentioned yesterday,

11    they are formulating their set of rules.  So I

12    assume this is a work in progress from their point

13    of view as well, and I hope you will comment on

14    that.  But they are asking for very specific kind

15    of information from us, and the fact that they said

16    that this panel will not make coverage decisions

17    indicate they want a particular kind of evaluation

18    from us.  And since we are not making coverage

19    decisions, it would seem it's incumbent on them to

20    include other kinds of information in their

21    decisions.

22               And again, if they happen to make a

23    coverage decision when we say as a panel that the

24    evidence was inadequate, that doesn't mean that we

25    were ignored.  It's just that the information we
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 1    provide is one component of their decision making

 2    about coverage, it may or may not be decisive.  We

 3    don't have experience with this process to be able

 4    to say anything about how it will be used, it will

 5    be a guess at this point.  But the fact that the

 6    coverage decisions might not go the way one would

 7    predict on the basis of the panel deliberations,

 8    does not mean that the panel's deliberations were

 9    pointless.

10               MS. GREENBERGER:  But if you flip it --

11    I mean, let's say it was an invasive procedure that

12    could have some danger attached to it, and the

13    committee decided based on the research that this

14    was not efficacious and could have possible

15    negative results, you wouldn't expect HCFA to cover

16    it then, would you?  I mean, how do you make the

17    distinction between a decision based on everything

18    that we have said here today and how they're going

19    to get that information, and a decision based on

20    something that we really think is not a good idea

21    to cover?  So I don't understand how it's going to

22    be translated.

23               DR. GARBER:  Well, let me just give you

24    an example based on other organizations that do

25    similar kinds of analyses.  It may be that the
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 1    literature is not clear on just routine reading;

 2    until a study is done, we can't be sure whether the

 3    evidence is adequate.  And a massive amount of time

 4    went into this evidence report that we were given.

 5    And they may conclude on the basis of an exhaustive

 6    review that the evidence is inadequate.  For

 7    example, a disease may be very rare, so it's

 8    absolutely infeasible to do well designed studies,

 9    you simply cannot recruit enough patients to have

10    adequate statistical power.  It would be very

11    reasonable for any coverage body to decide the

12    evidence is inadequate, but it will never be

13    feasible to study this adequately, and the

14    preponderance of evidence supports making this

15    available, and therefore, they make a coverage

16    decision.  And that can happen sometimes.

17               Now obviously, if our panel concludes

18    there is clear evidence that a treatment is

19    harmful, then it would be shocking if HCFA made a

20    decision to cover, but I suspect that the disparity

21    between what the panel concludes and what the

22    coverage decision will be will revolve around this

23    issue of adequacy of evidence.  They might decide

24    it would just not be feasible to get adequate

25    evidence in a particular area.
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 1               DR. HILL:  We had hoped that this kind

 2    of discussion would occur in the context of the

 3    Executive Committee's meetings.  I appreciate

 4    hearing all this.  I hope that we will be able to

 5    move on to the agenda today and get an answer to

 6    the questions that we've asked, and invite you all

 7    to send in these good comments, appear before the

 8    Executive Committee at it's June 6th meeting.  I'm

 9    sure they would be pleased to hear and take into

10    account your comments about how these panels should

11    be functioning.  In the design of the process, that

12    was the intention, that the Executive Committee

13    would have some oversight.

14               I understand that some of this is

15    necessary, but I'm hoping that it might be possible

16    before the day runs too far and too long into our

17    agenda, to go ahead and address the specifics.

18               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Logan, and then

19    Marshall.

20               DR. HOLTGREWE:  I think we have a

21    substantial body of work to do today, and I wonder

22    if we shouldn't press on and do it rather than to

23    constantly revisit what we did yesterday by a

24    substantial overwhelming majority.  So I would

25    certainly think we ought to press on with our
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 1    duties.

 2               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

 3               DR. ZENDLE:  Can you just confirm that

 4    the Executive Committee will have the transcripts

 5    of our meetings, of our comments?  We don't have to

 6    repeat our comments, do we?
 7               DR. HILL:  No.  That will form a part of

 8    the record that they have.  But they will be

 9    focused on the outcomes in deciding whether or not

10    to pass that on, ratify and pass that on to HCFA.

11    So, if there's some point that you particularly

12    want to emphasize, or some argument that you want

13    to elaborate how this process should be undertaken,

14    I encourage you to go ahead and send that in.  Not

15    only do we want to look at it, but the Executive

16    Committee will too.

17               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you.  Appreciate your

18    tolerance.  Let's proceed with the open public

19    comments, the scheduled speakers.  And the first

20    scheduled speaker is Margaret Degler, who will be

21    followed by Dr. Peter Sand.

22               MS. DEGLER:  Good morning, panel members

23    of the Medical and Surgical Procedures Panel.  My

24    name is Margaret A. Degler.  I am a nurse

25    practitioner, duly certified in geriatrics and
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 1    urology nurse practitioner.  I have absolutely no

 2    financial gain from being here today from any of

 3    the parties that are here today.  I am in practice

 4    at Geneto Urinary Associates, Limited, a urology

 5    practice in Reading, Pennsylvania, as the

 6    continence director of a nonsurgical program for

 7    urinary incontinence.

 8               The information that I'm going to share

 9    with you today is from my typical routine clinical

10    setting.  What I have done is extrapolated data

11    from the age population 65 and over from the dates

12    of January 2nd, 1998, through December 31st, 1999.

13    The total number of patients that I have seen for

14    electrical stimulation in that time frame was 106.

15    The question that we are all here to answer today

16    is, is the scientific evidence adequate to draw

17    conclusions that functional electrical stimulation

18    is efficacious in this patient population?  As an

19    expert clinician in this area, I can absolutely say

20    yes, the clinical basis is there.  Is the

21    scientific data there?  We are going to hear from

22    some of the principal investigators from the

23    studies that were reviewed in the TEC report later

24    today.

25               I share with you now the findings of the
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 1    106 patients whom I saw over those two-year time

 2    period for electrical stimulation.  Of the 106

 3    patients, 15 were male; of those 15 male, 13 were

 4    post-prostatectomy, two were Parkinson's disease.

 5    Of the female, the majority was combined stress

 6    urge incontinence, and there were a few simple

 7    stress or detrusor instability patients.  That data

 8    was extrapolated from urodynamic studies that

 9    clearly indicated whether there was detrusor

10    instability, sensory urgency, or combined stress

11    detrusor instability components.

12               In terms of percentage of improvement,

13    of those 103 patients, in the 95 to 100 percent

14    category, there were 19.  In the 76 to 94 percent

15    category, there were 20.  In the 50 to 75 percent

16    category, there were 32.  And in less than 50

17    percent, there were 35.  If you look at those

18    statistics, over 70 percent of those patients aged

19    65 and older were significantly improved by the use

20    of electrical nerve stimulation.

21               And to that, I call your attention to an

22    article which you have by Magnus Fall, Advantages

23    and Pitfalls of Functional Electrical Stimulation.

24    And in the Advantages and Pitfalls, he bullets some

25    particular areas of interest.  He refers to this as
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 1    FES, functional electrical stimulation.  On page 4,

 2    with the pitfalls of functional electrical

 3    stimulation, it is interesting that the first

 4    pitfall he notices is treatment tradition as one

 5    obstacle.  The clinician using FES for incontinence

 6    is trained to use drug therapy or surgery, FES is

 7    an alien principle, and the physiologic rationale

 8    may be difficult to accept, not having had the

 9    opportunity to learn the mechanisms of action in

10    more detail.

11               In terms of the positive advantages, he

12    notes, for FES, this method has a firm physiologic

13    basis.  A variety of lower urinary tract

14    dysfunctions are accessible to FES.  Many research

15    groups at many centers have consistent, similar and

16    favorable results as reported above.  It is very

17    difficult to believe that the great number of

18    patients treated in different clinical environments

19    in a number of different countries would respond so

20    favorably had the treatment not had good efficacy.

21               Next he states, FES is a cheap

22    nondestructive method with very few side effects.

23    In standard external electrical stimulation, no

24    irreversible surgery is involved.  As with drugs,

25    there is no general influence on the receptor
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 1    systems because of specific peripheral activation

 2    of complex reflexes.  The cost of one year of

 3    treatment equals that of one year of conventional

 4    drug therapy, and FES has a potential curative

 5    effect; drugs do not provides that unique effect.

 6               In closing, I would like to read

 7    excerpts of a patient letter, one of my patients

 8    that was sent to the panel.  This is a

 9    post-prostatectomy individual and he has given me

10    permission to read this today.  I Glen Hostetter,

11    was diagnosed as having prostate cancer April,

12    1997.  I had a radical prostatectomy done on July

13    23rd, 1997, followed by 33 treatments of radiation

14    therapy training, in January of 1998.  A few months

15    after the therapy I began to have urinary

16    incontinence.  My doctor prescribed numerous

17    medications which were not helpful.

18               MS. CONRAD:  Time.

19               MS. DEGLER:  He then referred me for

20    electrical nerve stimulation, and with that I had a

21    welcome success.  I strongly urge that the

22    treatment for incontinence be continued.

23               And to answer the question on a clinical

24    basis, yes, functional electrical nerve stimulation

25    does have efficacy in this patient population.
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 1    Thank you.

 2               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you.  Dr. Sand.  And

 3    the following speaker will be Dr. Whitmore.

 4               DR. SAND:  Thank you.  Good morning.

 5    Thank you very much, Miss Conrad, for the

 6    opportunity to present before the panel.  I am

 7    Peter Sand.  I am an associate professor of

 8    obstetrics and gynecology at Northwestern

 9    University Medical School, and the director of the

10    Evanston Incontinence Center.  My travel and

11    expenses here today were supported by EMPI

12    Corporation.  I've participated in numerous

13    clinical trials using US stimulators and

14    international stimulators over the last 15 years.

15               I want to talk to you and establish that

16    there is consistent objective data to support that

17    PFES is effective in the treatment of genuine

18    stress incontinence, and there is a study that has

19    shown that PFES is also successful in resolving

20    detrusor instability in the Medicare aged

21    population, as well as having a long-term efficacy

22    and durability.

23               The uncontrolled trials, while not as

24    scientifically rigorous, are certainly useful to

25    evaluate the subgroups that aren't of value by
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 1    randomized control trials.  And they are certainly

 2    available to us; there are more than 200 such

 3    studies in literature, and may be valuable as

 4    evidence if we have established the placebo effect

 5    in the controlled trials.  And certainly, these are

 6    very valuable to evaluate the long-term effects

 7    that can't be effectively evaluated in randomized

 8    control trials because of practicality and

 9    expense.

10               Long-term efficacy and durability, I've

11    selected four papers that were rejected from the

12    TEC analysis because they're uncontrolled trials,

13    but they are available to you and are in the

14    bibliography.  And in the notes of my presentation,

15    those references are also listed.  These trials

16    clearly show at one to six years, significant

17    durability and long-term efficacy with continued

18    use of the device.  And if there is time later on

19    in the discussion, I would like to address some of

20    the long-term efficacy and even cure of patients

21    with the use of PFES.  In a report that I report

22    that I've highlighted by both Krajl and Lukanovic,

23    in more than 300 patients, women specifically over

24    65, we also see that this is quite effective,

25    specifically applicable in the Medicare
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 1    population.

 2               Now, I wanted to pose a challenge to the

 3    panel or a question to the panel, to look carefully

 4    at this picture, to look carefully at the TEC

 5    report.  This is an excellent, excellent review

 6    that Frank has but before you.  But I would contend

 7    that when we look carefully at this, we have to

 8    really examine the question that, did the TEC

 9    report show that four sham control trials that

10    we're going to discuss today were conflicting, like

11    the two faces on this picture?  Or, is there one

12    unified opinion that stimulation is significantly

13    better than placebo in the treatment of genuine

14    stress incontinence and detrusor instability?

15               It's very very difficult to do

16    controlled, good controlled trials.  We have to

17    realize though, when it comes to electrical

18    stimulation, that different stimulators are

19    available to us that have different parameters, and

20    I wouldn't think to necessarily use the same

21    stimulator or the same device to treat different

22    conditions.  It's just like surgery; I wouldn't use

23    one surgery to treat all the conditions that I face

24    as a practicing urogynecologist.  We use different

25    operations in specific different indications.
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 1               When we look at the four sham controlled

 2    trials that were reviewed in the TEC study, our

 3    study, the first in 1995, was a multicenter, sham

 4    controlled, random and double blinded trial, 52

 5    women, 35 active, 17 sham.  These data were

 6    evaluated on an intent to treat basis, which isn't

 7    quite what's stated in the TEC report.  And while

 8    there may be some unbalance in the enrollment of

 9    subjects to the two groups despite the blinded

10    randomized process, this on balance would tend to

11    favor the sham group, in that the patients in the

12    sham group had more incontinence episodes and thus,

13    they had more opportunity to improve.

14               Nonetheless, pad test data and voiding

15    diary data which were highlighted in the TEC report

16    showed significant improvement or cure with the

17    active device compared with the sham group.  In

18    addition, all symptomatic subjective scales were

19    significantly improved with the active device

20    compared to the sham device, leading us to conclude

21    that clearly, PFES with this particular device was

22    effective in treating genuine stress incontinence.

23               With a similar device with similar

24    stimulation parameters, which is key, Yamanishi, in

25    the Japanese study, looked at just a four-week
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 1    trial.  Again, this was randomized and this was not

 2    recognized in the TEC report.  This is a

 3    randomized, one-to-one block randomization, sham

 4    controlled double blinded trial of 33 patients;

 5    again, 20 active, 13 sham -- excuse me,

 6    two-to-one.  45 of the active patients were cured

 7    while only 13 percent were, excuse me, were in the

 8    sham group.  He showed significant changes in pad

 9    tests and voiding diaries.

10               In Luber's study, using a US device, he

11    showed no significant benefit in treating patients

12    with genuine stress incontinence.

13               MS. CONRAD:  Time, Doctor Sand.

14               DR. SAND:  In a similar study, Dr.

15    Brubaker showed, in 60 patients with stress

16    incontinence, no significant difference.  Yet in

17    the 61 women she treated with detrusor instability,

18    there was 50 percent resolution of detrusor

19    instability.

20               I'm sorry.  I'll quickly go to

21    conclusions.  The Sand and Yamanishi papers support

22    genuine stress incontinence as more effective than

23    the placebo sham.  The Brubaker and Luber study,

24    which used the same device, do not support this

25    conclusion.  It was a different device.  A device
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 1    that we used that is very effective for the

 2    treatment of detrusor instability, but not useful

 3    in the treatment of genuine stress incontinence.  I

 4    believe that there is adequate evidence to support

 5    the efficacy of PFES for the treatment of women

 6    with genuine stress incontinence based on the

 7    objective placebo controlled sham studies that are

 8    listed in the TEC report.  These are also effective

 9    for Medicare patients, and it's been shown in our

10    control trials to be a durable long lasting

11    therapy.

12               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you, Dr. Sand.

13               DR. LANDY:  You said different device,

14    bud why is a device at issue when the

15    frequencies --

16               DR. SAND:  With electrical stimulation

17    devices, thank you, Lisa, there are different

18    devices that have different pulse parameters,

19    different frequencies and different duty cycles.

20    Then there's also the protocol that's used.  We've

21    shown in animal studies, in dog studies, that I can

22    make dogs incontinent, using most available

23    commercial stimulators, if we don't allow

24    appropriate rest cycles.  This is well known in the

25    physical therapy literature.
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 1               So we can't just look at this

 2    literature.  I don't mean to divide the literature,

 3    but we can't look at it without that clinical

 4    insight.  And Frank and I had some discussions

 5    yesterday.  I mean, that's not possible, for an

 6    internist and a statistician; he did an excellent

 7    review.  But we have to look inside of those data,

 8    and understand.

 9               So Karl and Linda, in their studies,

10    used one device, that we don't use for genuine

11    stress incontinence, and they showed it doesn't

12    work for genuine stress incontinence.  I think it's

13    an excellent stimulator for detrusor instability,

14    which is tough to cure on urodynamic testing, and

15    hopefully we can talk more about that.  That device

16    does that.  The other device that we used in our

17    studies, very similar to what Yamanishi used, those

18    devices work for stress incontinence.  Things

19    aren't as they seem.  So I think we have very

20    strong objective evidence, and we'll hear more

21    about some of the information from uncontrolled

22    trials later by the other speakers.

23               DR. GARBER:  Arnie?

24               DR. EPSTEIN:  Yeah.  I'm an internist

25    who knows a bit of statistics, so I'm really going
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 1    to need your help.

 2               DR. SAND:  Well, please.  I don't mean

 3    to insult the people who graduated in the top 10

 4    percent of my medical school class.

 5               (Laughter.)

 6               DR. EPSTEIN:  Can you just clarify to me

 7    the types of devices that you think are effective,

 8    the types that are ineffective, and any evidence

 9    you have that the distinctions that you make are

10    broadly made in the community?

11               DR. SAND:  I think these differences are

12    well recognized in the treatment community.

13               DR. EPSTEIN:  Do you have any evidence

14    for that assertion?

15               DR. SAND:  What community use is, I

16    think I would find that evidence in the over 200

17    uncontrolled trials.  Probably the best evidence,

18    and a lot of us I think draw upon the cat studies

19    done by Magnus Fall some 30 years ago.  Fall -- let

20    me not start to list the coauthors, because I'll

21    forget them, but basically Magnus Fall showed that

22    frequencies of 5 to 10 hertz were most effective in

23    treating detrusor instability, whereas frequencies

24    of 50 hertz were most effective in treating genuine

25    stress incontinence.  Unfortunately, when that
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 1    information was given to biomedical engineers who

 2    wanted to create one stimulator to treat all, many

 3    of these stimulators showed up with frequencies of

 4    20 or 25 hertz, which significantly diluted our

 5    literature unfortunately, because you couldn't just

 6    average those frequencies.  So that's a problem in

 7    our uncontrolled literature and clinical teaching.

 8               In addition, the concept of having a

 9    duty cycle that allows for a rest period that's

10    twice as long as the active stimulation period is

11    crucial.  Then there is a lot of debate as to the

12    actual pulse duration, which range from anywhere,

13    in devices built in the United States, from .1

14    milliseconds to 2 milliseconds, what's ideal?  And

15    I'm not a good enough electrical engineer to really

16    understand those principles.

17               But those three things, as well as the

18    amperage, the duration of treatment, can have

19    profound differences in how effective a device is.

20    I don't know if that makes it any easier.

21               DR. EPSTEIN:  Well, I understand that

22    there are different dimensions by which, that lead

23    to efficacy.  I think one issue here is whether

24    these different dimensions have been codified into

25    distinct groups of instruments, and whether the
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 1    broad, when HCFA reimburses this, or we judge the

 2    evidence, is there any way to tease these out?

 3               DR. SAND:  You know, I think the

 4    greatest problem with trying to tease that out is

 5    that you make a decision based at one point in time

 6    with current devices, which have been sort of

 7    frozen by the economic freeze of nonreimbursement

 8    for these treatments.  Clearly, the best parameters

 9    with a stimulator are also individual to a patient,

10    and I don't think we have the best device yet.

11    Certainly, looking at some of the international

12    devices we've tested that aren't available here, I

13    think they are better than what we use and have

14    available of FDA approved devices in the States.

15    So, that's a real loaded question.

16               DR. GARBER:  All right.  I'm just going

17    to have to remind you, in asking questions of the

18    public speakers, try to distinguish those that need

19    to be answered immediately, directly, relevant to

20    their current presentation, and you can ask

21    questions of them again in the open committee

22    deliberations period.  I just bring this up now

23    because as you know, we're not quite on schedule.

24    Marshall?

25               DR. STANTON:  I can save mine for the

00055

 1    open period.

 2               DR. SAND:  Thank you very much.

 3               MS. CONRAD:  Kristine Whitmore, and the

 4    following speaker will be Karl Luber.

 5               DR. WHITMORE:  Good morning.  Thank you

 6    for allowing me a brief time to speak with you.  I

 7    am Kristine Whitmore, clinical associate professor

 8    of urology at Hahnemann MCP University in

 9    Philadelphia.  My expenses to this function were

10    supported by EMPI Corporation.

11               The question is, is there scientific

12    evidence adequate to draw conclusions about the

13    effectiveness of PFES or PFS in routine clinical

14    use in the Medicare population?  Unfortunately,

15    urinary incontinence affects many people; public

16    awareness is recent.  Many patients don't tell and

17    doctors don't ask.  Few funds have been allotted to

18    do studies that show adequate evidence.  However,

19    many guidelines have been established to help a

20    large segment of society with conservative

21    therapy.  The objectives of this talk will be to

22    provide an overview of the published guidelines for

23    the treatment of urinary incontinence, discuss

24    pelvic floor stimulation parameters and treatment

25    protocols, and review appropriate patient selection
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 1    criteria for PFS, for which you have been afforded

 2    an outline.

 3               The American Urological Association had

 4    an ad hoc committee to suggest broad guidelines for

 5    the management of urinary incontinence.  Behavioral

 6    therapy was recommended as first line of treatment,

 7    and PFS was included in the guidelines for both

 8    stress and urge incontinence.  Subsequently, when

 9    asked to assess PFS on a scientific evidence based

10    only evaluation, the answer was that there was not

11    evidence to draw conclusions about efficacy.

12               Now I'm sure you have all been provided

13    with the AHCPR guidelines to review prior to this

14    meeting, which convened in 1992.  The

15    recommendations were for behavioral therapies as

16    the first line of treatment.  It was updated in

17    1996 and levels of evidence were established to

18    assess the quality and amount of evidence,

19    consistency of the findings among studies, clinical

20    applicability of the evidence, and evidence of

21    harms and costs.  Subsequently, the AHRQ then asked

22    TEC to do an unrelated scientific evaluation, which

23    showed the question could not be answered with

24    statistical certainty.

25               The first international consultation on
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 1    incontinence sponsored by WHO, showed that

 2    behavioral therapies are recommended as a first

 3    line of treatment, and PFS is included in the

 4    guidelines for the management of the frail disabled

 5    older people, a population which is not unlike

 6    these of Medicare.

 7               There was an AUA update series published

 8    in 1999 by Dev Lightner, which recommends

 9    conservative treatment of urinary incontinence as

10    first line, behavioral therapies are recommended as

11    first line, and PFS is included in the guidelines

12    as a behavioral therapy for both stress and urge

13    incontinence.

14               The NIDDK launched a promotional public

15    awareness campaign, Let's Talk About Bladder

16    Control.  Many organizations included here, or

17    more, showed PFS is included as a behavioral

18    treatment option.

19               In conclusion, the guidelines

20    recommendations concur, begin with the best and

21    least invasive treatment option.  Not all

22    behavioral therapies are created equal.  Behavioral

23    therapy is safe and effective.  The primary goal of

24    therapy should be patient satisfaction and patient

25    motivation is required.
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 1               Question number 1 leaves us with a

 2    dilemma, clinical versus rigorous scientific

 3    evidence.  Can I agree that there is statistical

 4    certainty?  No.  I'm a clinician and follow the

 5    AHCPR clinical guidelines.  Yes, there is clinical

 6    evidence.  Thank you.

 7               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you, Dr. Whitmore.

 8    Karl Luber.  Following Dr. Luber will be

 9    Dr. Antoci.

10               DR. LUBER:  Good morning.  My name is

11    Karl Luber, and I would like to thank the panel for

12    the opportunity to share some information with you

13    on our experience with electrical stimulation.  I

14    present to you with no conflicts of interest with

15    any device developer, corporation or professional

16    organization.  My position currently is as the

17    director of the division of urogynecology and

18    reconstructive pelvic surgery for the Southern

19    California Permanente Medical Group in San Diego.

20    There I am responsible for delivery of care

21    decisions for a very large group of women with

22    urinary incontinence.  I also co-direct a

23    fellowship in urogynecology and reconstructive

24    pelvic surgery at the University of California at

25    San Diego.
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 1               What I would like to do this morning is

 2    just very briefly talk to you about -- I'm not

 3    getting this to come up, will you help me out?

 4    Thank you very much -- about what we have learned

 5    about the efficacy of electrical stimulation in the

 6    treatment of women with genuine stress urinary

 7    incontinence.  And my comments and all patients

 8    that I'm going to present on today are patients

 9    with genuine stress incontinence, that is, genuine

10    stress incontinence consistent with the

11    International Continence Society definitions.

12               Very quickly, the background information

13    on functional electrical stimulation, in the early

14    1960s there were some anecdotal trials.  Connie,

15    I'm getting asked to stop here.  I don't know if

16    that's --

17               MS. CONRAD:  I've got you timed.

18               DR. LUBER:  Thank you very much.  And

19    then in the 1970s, these clinical trials, anecdotal

20    trials went on to look at animal studies, where we

21    learned the theoretical mechanisms of electrical

22    stimulation and how they work.  In the 1980s we saw

23    a number of open ended clinical trials.  And then

24    all of this information drove folks in the early

25    '90s to look at doing RCTs.  The reason it drove
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 1    us to doing RCTs and the reason I very strongly

 2    feel that nonrandomized, noncontrolled trials are

 3    not of particular value in making these decisions,

 4    is that there is a huge confounding effect of

 5    electrical stimulation, not a simple placebo

 6    effect.  In other words, if I'm asked to carry an

 7    anal plug around in my rectum for a half an hour a

 8    day, or perhaps more as happened in many of these

 9    trials, there's a darned good chance it's going to

10    affect my ability to contract my pelvic floor,

11    consistent with what I think a lot of us felt, if

12    not voted on yesterday, with the effects of

13    feedback on the pelvic floor musculature.  So I

14    think that uncontrolled trials in electrical

15    stimulation are not of a particularly large amount

16    of value to us in making decisions.

17               We set out to try to understand whether

18    electrical stimulation as recommended by the

19    manufacturers was an effective treatment for

20    genuine stress incontinence.  The study design was

21    a prospective randomized double blind control trial

22    done within our facility, a single center, and

23    supported by a Kaiser Foundation grant.  The

24    inclusion criteria and exclusion criteria I won't

25    dwell on, as we have to move along quickly.  I will
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 1    share with you that the treatment parameters we

 2    used were identical to those used in the studies

 3    that Dr. Sand described.  We used a two-to-one rest

 4    to work cycle, we used 50 hertz for our

 5    stimulation, so there's really not a huge

 6    difference there.  As far as the amplitude, I

 7    believe it was two million amps; I frankly would

 8    have to review my own paper to look back at that,

 9    which was the manufacturer's recommendation at that

10    time.

11               We randomized people, and I show this to

12    demonstrate to you that the randomization was

13    consistent with what you'd expect.  I know you

14    don't need to do this; if it's randomized, you're

15    going to assume that everybody comes out equal.

16    But as you can see, there was no statistically

17    significant difference in the number of patients

18    enrolled, dropped out, age, previous surgeries, or

19    other potentially confounding variables.  Results

20    from our trial demonstrated that the subjective

21    improvement and cure, as well as objectively cured

22    groups showed no statistically significant

23    difference.

24               Now when I first presented this, I was

25    castigated by my colleagues and told, you just want
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 1    to do surgery, you don't want to show that this

 2    works.  The truth of the matter was, we embarked

 3    upon this trial with the bias that this was going

 4    to work.  We wanted to demonstrate the efficacy of

 5    this, because we wanted to extend this therapy

 6    throughout our organization.  And it in a sense

 7    blew up in our face and I wasn't very happy with

 8    that.  But you know, once again, I had to go with

 9    the information that came to me from the trial, I

10    had to be honest about the outcomes that I was

11    looking at.

12               Based upon this trial and frankly based

13    upon my interpretation of the other trials, we made

14    the conclusion that functional electrical

15    stimulation was no more effective in approving or

16    eliminating the symptoms of stress or genuine

17    stress incontinence than was the daily retention of

18    the control probe.  Functional electrical

19    stimulation may be of value in conjunction with a

20    physiotherapist who uses it to help patients as we

21    say, jump start their muscles, that is, to teach

22    them an awareness of where that musculature is, and

23    then go on to help them to learn to contract those

24    muscles.  But as a standalone therapy to take home,

25    we could not support its use.
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 1               MS. CONRAD:  Time please.

 2               DR. LUBER:  It's all yours.  There are

 3    hundreds of thousands of operations done for

 4    genuine stress urinary incontinence in the United

 5    States each year.  We need to seek alternatives

 6    that are nonsurgical to help these women.  There's

 7    no question about that.  But in our zeal to embrace

 8    and learn about these techniques, we should be

 9    careful not to initiate a process which would

10    establish a standard of care for which there are

11    not adequate scientific underpinnings.  And I

12    frankly believe that that's where we are.  We may

13    find with adjustments and changes, and redesign,

14    that electrical stimulation is of value.  At the

15    current point, we do not have the data to support

16    that.  Thank you very much.

17               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you, Dr. Luber.

18               DR. STANTON:  A quick question.  I may

19    have missed this if you said it at the beginning.

20    Were these results published?

21               DR. LUBER:  Yes, sir.  These results

22    were published in the Journal of Neurourology and

23    Urodynamics, and that's in the TEC report, sir.

24               DR. BRADLEY:  What was the treatment

25    time?  I may have also missed that.  How many weeks
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 1    of therapy?

 2               DR. LUBER:  12 weeks of therapy.

 3               DR. BRADLEY:  How did you assess

 4    compliance in that study?

 5               DR. LUBER:  The device itself has a

 6    compliance meter in it.  In other words, the

 7    patient would have to be sneaking to turn it on and

 8    leave it without using it, but we can download the

 9    daily use of the device to demonstrate efficacy.

10               DR. BRADLEY:  And what was the

11    compliance?

12               DR. LUBER:  87 percent.  It was

13    surprisingly good.  Thank you very much.

14               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

15               MS. CONRAD:  Dr. Joseph Antoci.

16               DR. ANTOCI:  Good morning.  I'm Dr. Joe

17    Antoci.  I'm a community practice urologist in

18    Connecticut, and I have no financial conflicts in

19    being here today.  I would like to submit to the

20    panel written documentation of what I'm going to

21    say.

22               It was first shown in animal studies

23    dating back to 1895 that bladder contractions could

24    be inhibited by cutaneous and rectile stimuli.  In

25    modern times, human studies have continued to
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 1    support the observation that PFS inhibits bladder

 2    contractions.  Janus showed in 1979 that true

 3    physiologic responses could be recorded on

 4    urodynamic evaluations in patients undergoing

 5    pelvic floor neuromodulation.  Tanago and Schmidt's

 6    work, published in 1988, demonstrated that

 7    electrical enhancement of the tone of the external

 8    sphincter suppressed the detrusor and improved

 9    bladder storage.  In his 1991 paper, which is

10    referenced in HCFA's TEC assessment, Dr. Magnus

11    Fall elucidated the principles of PFS.  He worked

12    out the optimal energy levels and pulse

13    configurations that would inhibit detrusor

14    contractions.

15               In 1997, de Grote described the

16    neurophysiologic pathway that accounts for these

17    consistent observations.  Basically, PFS prevents

18    the pudendal nerve from telling the brain that the

19    bladder is filling, and therefore the brain does

20    not send the message to the bladder to contract.

21    It's also been noted by Fall in his '91 paper that

22    PFS is a useful tool in facilitating PME training.

23               HCFA's own TEC assessment indicates that

24    PFS is better than placebo and equal to alternative

25    therapies in the majority of studies evaluated.
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 1    This TEC assessment also focused on studies

 2    published since 1980 but ignored previous work,

 3    including 24 other PFS studies performed from 1967

 4    to 1979, which encompassed data on 793 patients.  I

 5    was able to retrieve data on 38 studies published

 6    from '68 to '98.  A total of 1,375 patients were

 7    treated with PFS and 863, or 62 percent of those,

 8    were improved.

 9               In this day and age, cost is always a

10    factor.  The cost of PFS compares very favorably to

11    alternative treatments.  When HCFA Connecticut

12    covered PFS, the rate was $84 for a six-week

13    treatment period.  Modern day anticholinergics such

14    as Ditropan, Excel or Detrol, cost anywhere from 90

15    to $180 per month.

16               Although the panel is not considering

17    implantable neuromodulation technology, it is

18    noteworthy to note that the total patient cost, for

19    instance, for a Metronics Inter-Stim device is

20    $25,000.  The Inter-Stim literature also notes that

21    there is a one-third reoperation rate on these

22    patients.  Compare then the 67 percent patient

23    improvement rate at $25,000 per patient to the 62

24    percent patient improvement with PFS at a fraction

25    of the cost.
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 1               In summary, we know that PFS works, we

 2    know how it works, we know that it's a useful

 3    teaching tool for PME, we know that it's better

 4    than placebo, and we know it is equal to

 5    alternative therapies.  And ladies and gentlemen of

 6    the panel, this is a critical point:  As all

 7    clinicians who treat incontinence know, there is no

 8    single therapy for all incontinent patients.

 9    Patients need options and choices.

10               Finally, please consider the following

11    in your deliberations:  When a body such as

12    Medicare does not cover a given treatment, that

13    effectively dissuades health care providers from

14    offering that treatment to their patients.  That is

15    tantamount to denying patient care.  Thank you very

16    much.

17               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you, Dr. Antoci.  We

18    are going to move along with the industry

19    presentation.  Deborah Jensen, representing EMPI,

20    followed by Francie Bernier.

21               To try to pick up a little time, we are

22    going to try to not schedule a morning break.  Just

23    leave the room as you need to.

24               MS. JENSEN:  Good morning.  My name is

25    Deborah Jensen and I'm the vice president of
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 1    regulatory affairs, clinical research and quality

 2    assurance for EMPI.  EMPI is a medical device

 3    manufacturing firm based in St. Paul, Minnesota,

 4    that specializes in devices to assist patients with

 5    functional disabilities, including the Inova PFES

 6    device for the treatment of incontinence.  EMPI has

 7    been involved in the manufacture and distribution

 8    PFS devices since 1991, and we are grateful for the

 9    opportunity to discuss the place of PFS therapy in

10    the treatment of incontinence patients of Medicare

11    age before today's panel meeting.  We trust that

12    the panel members will listen carefully to the

13    evidence presented today.

14               Clearly, the task of the panel to

15    qualify whether conclusions can be drawn regarding

16    the scientific evidence supporting this technology,

17    and then quantify the size of the health effects

18    for this technology, is not an easy task.  But it

19    certainly is an important one for the beneficiaries

20    who could benefit from this treatment option but

21    are currently not able to access this therapy as a

22    result of the national noncoverage policy.

23               It is clear from the scientific

24    literature that there is not support, or sufficient

25    evidence to say that this therapy has no benefit
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 1    for any beneficiary.  Rather, it is our opinion and

 2    the opinion of several clinicians presented today,

 3    that there is scientific evidence to draw

 4    conclusions about the effectiveness of PFES in

 5    routine clinical use for the Medicare population.

 6               I would urge the panel members to

 7    consider the following point:  PFS is a technology

 8    that has been around for a long time.  EMPI's Inova

 9    PFES device received FDA clearance in 1991.  In

10    these past nine years, EMPI has made the

11    development of scientific and clinical evidence to

12    support the safety and efficacy of this therapy a

13    constant goal through the support and sponsorship

14    of four separate clinical trials.

15               The first, a randomized placebo control

16    trial of stress incontinence subjects, published in

17    1995 by Dr. Peter Sand, demonstrated the

18    statistically significant improvement when compared

19    to placebo.  EMPI subsequently completed two

20    treatment optimization studies that evaluated the

21    effect of treatment frequency on patient outcome

22    when PFS was used to treat stress, and then urge

23    and mixed incontinence.  These were subsequently

24    published by Dr. Richardson in 1996, and Dr. Siegel

25    in 1997.  Both of these trials documented with
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 1    statistical significance that improvements were

 2    seen in incontinence symptoms in patients from

 3    their baseline values.

 4               Most recently, the encouraging results

 5    for a PFS study in post-prostatectomy incontinence

 6    patients pointed out that this therapy also holds

 7    promise for this group of patients.  Publication of

 8    the results of this trial is pending.

 9               Concurrent to the development of

10    scientific evidence to support this technology,

11    EMPI has developed relationships with health care

12    providers in the private health care peer community

13    in an effort to determine the place of PFS in the

14    care of patients suffering from incontinence.  As

15    evidenced by the reviews of this technology

16    undertaken by such prestigious independent expert

17    groups as AHCPR and the World Health Organization,

18    PFS does have a place in the continuum of care.

19               This place has been further

20    substantiated by the over 300 private health plans

21    in the United States that are providing

22    reimbursement for this technology.  Collectively,

23    three of the largest plans, Aetna U.S. Health Care,

24    Blue Cross Blue Shield, and United Health Care

25    provide coverage for over 40 million Americans.
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 1    This information provides strong support that the

 2    clinical community and a significant number of

 3    private health plans have determined that the

 4    support for PFS is sufficient for it to be a

 5    standard of care, and that it has a place in the

 6    treatment of incontinence patients.  Thus, they

 7    have answered the question put before the panel

 8    regarding the effectiveness of PFS affirmatively.

 9               At this point in time, I would like to

10    yield the remainder of my time to Dr. Kristine

11    Whitmore, so that she may further discuss the

12    adequacy of the scientific literature.  Thank you.

13               DR. WHITMORE:  Thank you.  We are going

14    to go on to the treatment parameters and

15    protocols.  The evidence is adequate.  The study

16    design underestimates the effect.  Randomization in

17    the RCTs limit the dose response, ala, we cannot

18    get to maximum intensity, so for stress

19    incontinence we cannot produce a muscle

20    contraction, and for urge incontinence it's hard to

21    obtain maximal stimulation to cause an inhibitory

22    effect on the bladder.

23               For stress incontinence, we'll talk

24    about treatment parameters.  The scientific

25    literature supports a production of an involuntary
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 1    muscle contraction.  Magnus Fall, of course, has

 2    many papers that have established that a frequency

 3    of 50 hertz is achieved at maximum urethral closure

 4    pressure.  There is variable intensity, zero to 100

 5    milliamps, to maximum muscle recruitment.  This is

 6    done to produce a contraction, often seen as an

 7    anal wink.  There is a duty cycle or work-to-rest

 8    ratio of one to one or one to two, five on, five

 9    off, five seconds on, ten seconds off.  Usually 15

10    minutes treatment two to three times daily will

11    produce up to 120 contractions per day.  Initial

12    treatments are usually six to eight weeks.

13               There is also support for urge

14    incontinence, during which we want to achieve a

15    reflexive bladder inhibition.  The most common

16    frequency is 10 hertz.  Maximal intensity has to be

17    achieved, usually to the point of discomfort, and

18    then backing off to a sensation tolerable to the

19    patient.  The duty cycle is usually one to one.

20    There are 15-minute treatments, two to three times

21    a day, and initial treatments are as short as four

22    weeks.

23               There was a question asked about

24    utilizing the same parameters among various

25    studies.  For the randomized control trial by
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 1    Yamanishi in 1997 for the treatment of genuine

 2    stress incontinence, did use a frequency of 50

 3    hertz, did achieve maximal intensity level by

 4    urodynamics of maximal urethral closure pressure.

 5    Had a number of contractions, 15 minutes, 120 a

 6    day.  15 minutes two to three times a day of

 7    treatment.  The treatment period was four weeks,

 8    and the objective cure rate was 45 percent.

 9               Additionally, Richardson, 1996, stress

10    incontinence treatment.  Utilized a frequency of

11    50, visualized pelvic floor muscle contractions as

12    maximal intensity.  Compared daily versus every

13    other day treatment protocols.  Used 15 minutes of

14    treatment twice a day for 120 contractions, or 60

15    contractions per day.  The duty cycle was one to

16    two.  Treatment was 20 weeks.  And the objective

17    cure rates, daily, 22 percent and every other day,

18    53 percent.

19               Let's switch to urge incontinence.

20    Brubaker, 1997, utilized 20 hertz frequency, lower

21    frequency.  Digitalized pelvic floor muscle

22    contractions at maximal intensity.  Had 20 minutes

23    twice a day of treatment.  The duty cycle was one

24    to two.  Treatment was eight weeks.  And if you

25    pull out the urge incontinence portion of her

00074

 1    population, the estimated cure rate is 50 percent.

 2               Another optimal treatment protocol for

 3    urge incontinence, Siegel et al, 1997.  Again, low

 4    frequency, 12.5 hertz.  Pelvic floor muscle

 5    contractions were visualized at maximal intensity.

 6    There were 15-minute sessions twice a day.  The

 7    duty cycle was one to two.  20 treatment weeks, and

 8    objective cure rate, 28 percent.

 9               In conclusion, the final question then

10    to number one, clinical versus rigorous scientific

11    evidence, can I agree that there is statistical

12    certainty, no.  Since I am a clinician, however,

13    there certainly is clinical evidence.  Thank you.

14               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you, Dr. Whitmore.

15    Francie Bernier.  And the next group of public

16    presenters, the professional organizations, I have

17    been asked to rearrange a little bit, so the first

18    speaker for the professional organizations

19    following Ms. Bernier will be Nicolette Horbach.

20    Thank you.

21               MS. BERNIER:  Good morning.  My name is

22    Francie Bernier, I am a nurse from Colorado.  Over

23    the last nine years I have offered continence care

24    to my patient, mostly women, and I am now a

25    clinical consultant.  My trip has been sponsored by
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 1    Hollister so that I may speak to you about the use

 2    of electrical stimulation.

 3               The question you've been charged today

 4    is, is there adequate clinical evidence to support

 5    the use of electrical stimulation in the treatment

 6    of urinary incontinence?  The answer is yes.  For

 7    the over 20 million Americans who suffer from

 8    urinary incontinence, there are few treatments that

 9    offer little risk or side effects except a

10    conservative management program.  Pelvic floor

11    therapy includes a variety of interventions, to

12    include behavioral modifications, biofeedback

13    directed PMEs, and intercavity or surface

14    electrical stimulation.  The integration of these

15    options into a continence program has created a

16    multimodality approach for the treatment.

17               Up until recently, medications and

18    surgery have dominated the continence care.

19    Surgical risks include morbidity and mortality.

20    Additionally, these procedures may not cure

21    incontinence and have been known to worsen symptoms

22    in some cases.  The surgery failure rate has been

23    reported at about 30 percent.

24               The AHCPR guidelines have encouraged the

25    use of the least invasive or the intervention with
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 1    the least risk, such as behavioral modification, as

 2    the first treatment option for those that suffer

 3    from incontinence.  The significant side effects

 4    from medication, such as dry mucous membranes of

 5    the mouth and eyes, constipation, headache, and

 6    visual disturbances, and general malaise, have

 7    compromised their use, especially in the elderly.

 8               Electrical stimulation is a successful

 9    treatment modality for the treatment of

10    incontinence.  This option has been effective used

11    to retrain the pelvic floor musculature in those

12    with weakened or atrophic muscles.  Additionally,

13    the effect of electrical stimulation on the bladder

14    and voiding symptoms has been shown to decrease or

15    eliminate the symptoms associated with urgency and

16    frequency.

17               The use of electrical stimulation is not

18    new to the medical community.  In Europe,

19    stimulation has been used to treat incontinence for

20    many years and historically it's been reported and

21    traced back to 1895.  Over the years, the increased

22    use of electrical stim has been applied to

23    technology which now uses internal sensors or

24    surface electrodes to directly provide stimulation

25    to the muscles and nerves.  Electrical stimulation
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 1    has increased use in the medical and rehabilitative

 2    communities over the years.  The application of

 3    specific frequencies of electricity to muscle

 4    causes a chemical response which has been

 5    demonstrated to relax a spasming muscle, or recruit

 6    muscle tissue in order to reeducate a muscle

 7    dysfunction.

 8               It is the standard of care for specific

 9    cardiac conditions in which the heart muscle is

10    experiencing an arrhythmia, such as in ventricular

11    type of cardio, or in a cardiac arrest.  The

12    electrical charge of a cardiac muscle can calm the

13    tachycardia and set the heart muscle into a normal

14    sinus rhythm.  Additionally, when applied to the

15    cardiac muscle during an arrest, the application of

16    an electrical stimulation will recruit and

17    reeducate the electrical conduction system of the

18    cardiac musculature to contract and function

19    efficiently.

20               Used in rehabilitative medicine,

21    electrical stim again provides a calming sensation

22    to the muscle in spasm, or can reeducate a flaccid

23    muscle.  In a recent interview with Dana Reeve, the

24    wife of Christopher Reeve, she reports the daily

25    application of electrical stimulation had kept her
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 1    husband's large skeletal muscles in a completely

 2    functional state.  His muscles are reported to be

 3    in the same condition they were in previous to his

 4    spinal cord injury.

 5               Fall's study, which has been referred to

 6    this morning, conducted research using low

 7    frequency of 5 hertz to obliterate bladder spasms

 8    in cats.  When the same frequency is applied to

 9    those who suffer from urge incontinence, the

10    results have been duplicated.  A vaginal

11    electrosensor or surface electrodes can deliver the

12    application.  This stimulation is applied to the

13    pudendal nerve, which then induces a pelvic floor

14    muscle contraction.  The induced passive

15    contraction causes initiation of the inhibition

16    reflex and directly stimulates the sacral afferent

17    nerve fiber.

18               Additionally, when applied to the pelvic

19    floor at higher frequency, electrical stimulation

20    causes activation of the somatic nerve to the

21    striating muscles of the pelvic floor.  Efferent

22    stimulation of the periurethral striating muscles

23    and leading to the ani, cause an increase in

24    urethral closure pressure.  By encouraging the

25    patient to contract the pelvic floor muscles when
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 1    the stimulus is active, helps the incontinent

 2    patient identify, recruit and coordinate pelvic

 3    floor muscle movement.  This reeducates the patient

 4    and the pelvic floor, and decreases urine loss

 5    associated with stress and urge incontinence.

 6               This increased benefit can move a

 7    patient closer to becoming successful in their

 8    biofeedback training.  A significant reduction in

 9    incontinent episodes, from 41 to 72 percent, has

10    been reported in electrical stimulation for stress

11    and urge incontinence.  The long-term efficacy of

12    treatment has been reported in up to two years

13    following.

14               Various settings have been proven

15    successful to treat the different types of

16    incontinence.  These settings have been accepted as

17    the standard of care and range from 5 to 12.5 hertz

18    for urge incontinence, 20 hertz for mixed

19    incontinence, and 50 and 100 hertz for stress

20    incontinence.  Most recently, a study evaluated

21    stimulation of 200 hertz; it has received FDA

22    approval to induce a pelvic floor muscle

23    contraction, and has improved voiding in those who

24    suffer from nonobstructional urinary retention.

25               The use of this therapy should only be
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 1    applied when indicated.  After careful assessment

 2    as to the muscle function, the decision to apply

 3    electrical stimulation should be when the pelvic

 4    floor musculature is determined to be weakened as

 5    documented by digital exam and a pressure monometry

 6    of less than 10 centimeters of water with no

 7    endurance to the contraction.

 8               Additionally, when the symptoms of urge

 9    incontinence is impacting quality of life, the

10    application of electrical stimulation has been

11    included so to reduce the symptoms.  Although a

12    lack of a perfect randomized controlled study has

13    yet to be done, this evidence is clear.  The

14    results specifically demonstrate that electrical

15    stimulation can normalize urodynamic parameters in

16    those who suffer from urge incontinence.

17               In those with stress incontinence,

18    electrical stimulation has not demonstrated the

19    same in some cases.  This may be due to the

20    anatomic defect which exists within the lower

21    urogenital system.  However, during proper

22    continence reeducation sessions, the patient is

23    instructed how to reuse the pelvic floor muscles

24    during exertional activity which precipitates the

25    incontinent episodes.  These would then normalize
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 1    the parameters that are evaluated for stress

 2    incontinence.

 3               Exclusion to the therapy should include

 4    those who have a pacemaker implant, a copper IUD,

 5    those who suffer from mental confusion, during

 6    pregnancy, and in the presence of a pelvic

 7    malignancy.  Additionally, this treatment should be

 8    withheld during episodes of acute urinary tract

 9    infection, any episode of vaginal bleeding or

10    vaginal infection in women, and in the presence of

11    fecal impaction.  The use of electrical stimulation

12    should only be considered after careful assessment

13    has been made to evaluate for the presence of these

14    contraindications.

15               The number of visits may not exceed 12

16    visits for most patients.  In most cases,

17    improvement in symptoms can be seen within the

18    first few weeks.  However, most patients require

19    reinforcement of the new behavior and as with any

20    rehabilitative program, the chance of symptoms

21    returning, if the patient does not comply with the

22    program.

23               Also, the elderly often require more

24    frequent visits than the younger population, as the

25    rehab process seems to take more time in that
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 1    group.

 2               The patient's response to electrical

 3    stimulation is very positive.  Those who were

 4    previously frustrated by the inability to contract

 5    the pelvic floor muscles report great satisfaction

 6    in their awareness and spontaneous performance of

 7    pelvic floor exercises.  This is often experienced

 8    immediately after the first session.  Once the

 9    patient is able to contract the pelvic floor

10    musculature and reuse the pelvic floor, there is a

11    decrease or elimination of urinary incontinence

12    symptoms.

13               As we face the decisions about

14    electrical stimulation, please consider the

15    patient.  Incontinence is a symptom of another

16    medical problem.  The studies you have evaluated

17    have judged the outcomes but have not measured

18    value in all of the factors which affect results.

19    Recognizing how each patient differs in their

20    presentation, I am asking you to be aware of the

21    variability within the patient population.  These

22    studies come to their conclusions from the

23    technical report and the consistency of the results

24    are dependent upon too many variables which have

25    not been considered.
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 1               The value of muscle reeducation process

 2    as well as the calming effect this treatment option

 3    has on the bladder should be available as a

 4    treatment for those who suffer from incontinence.

 5    Electrical stimulation offers no risks.  It is cost

 6    effective by decreasing the number of office visits

 7    required to achieve a continent status and improved

 8    quality of life.  Thank you.

 9               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

10               MS. CONRAD:  Okay.  Nicolette Horbach.

11    And the following speaker will be Julie Pauls, Dr.

12    Julie Pauls.

13               DR. HORBACH:  Good morning.  I am

14    Dr. Nicolette Horbach, associate clinical professor

15    of obstetrics and gynecology at George Washington

16    Medical Center, a practicing physician in northern

17    Virginia, and the current president of the American

18    Urogynecologic Society.  I have no financial

19    disclosure to report.  On behalf of the AUGS I am

20    pleased to provide expert testimony on the need to

21    provide insurance coverage for PFES for the

22    treatment of urinary incontinence.

23               Urinary incontinence has been estimated

24    to affect over 20 million Americans, the majority

25    of whom are women.  As surgery is not always
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 1    appropriate or effective treatment options for all

 2    types of urinary incontinence, the availability of

 3    noninvasive treatment alternatives is a major

 4    concern for urogynecologists and their patients.

 5               The American Urogynecologic Society is a

 6    21 year old nonprofit organization whose nearly

 7    1,000 members have a special interest and/or

 8    expertise in the field of urogynecology and pelvic

 9    reconstructive surgery.  Our membership includes

10    gynecologists, urologists, and allied health

11    professional in academic and clinical practice.

12    The mission of our society is to promote research

13    and education in the specialty, and to improve the

14    quality and delivery of health care to women with

15    pelvic floor disorders.  Many of our members are

16    fellowship trained and national and international

17    leaders in the field of urogynecology.

18               Our members were instrumental in the

19    development of the first AHCPR clinical guideline

20    on urinary incontinence, chairing the panel of

21    experts for the 1996 revision of the urinary

22    incontinence guideline.  The NIDDK, the NICHD, the

23    NIA, the NINR, and AHRQ continually fund research

24    conducted by our members.  Because of our society's

25    efforts, NICHD now has a urogynecologist on staff
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 1    to coordinate the expanded research in this field.

 2               PFES is a therapeutic modality indicated

 3    for the treatment of urgency and urge, stress, and

 4    mixed urinary incontinence.  The therapeutic effect

 5    of pelvic stimulation rely on electrical activation

 6    of nerves.  Detrusor inhibition is mediated through

 7    low frequency stimulation of the sacral afferent

 8    and potentiated by pudendal nerve stimulation.

 9    Electrical stimulation of the urethral musculature

10    is via higher frequency activation of the somatic

11    nerves to the striated muscles.  Thus, the

12    treatment of urinary incontinence with PFS involves

13    the, physiologic coordination of both bladder and

14    urethral function.

15               There are two reasons that providers use

16    pelvic floor stimulation as a treatment modality.

17    One reason to use PFS is to neurally inhibit

18    inappropriate bladder contractions.  Another reason

19    is to hypertrophy the skeletal muscle for the

20    treatment of stress incontinence.  PFS involves an

21    electrical probe that provides the contact surface

22    for transmitting current to stimulate specific

23    nerves.

24               The effectiveness of the pelvic floor

25    electrode will depend on its size, shape and
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 1    material, as well as the critical parameters of

 2    pulse amplitude and duration, wave form, frequency

 3    and duty cycle.  The study parameters that the

 4    technology assessment relied upon in evaluating the

 5    effectiveness of PFS were not adequate and

 6    therefore, did not yield consistent results.

 7               The first question that the technology

 8    assessment posed to the Medical and Surgical

 9    Procedures Panel relates to the efficacy of pelvic

10    stim in reducing incontinence.  Although the

11    technology assessment provided to the panel

12    concluded that electrical stimulation does not meet

13    the appropriate criteria for establishing its

14    effectiveness in the treatment of urinary

15    continence, a report by Aetna in 1996 determined

16    that PFS is effective in treating urinary

17    incontinence.  Two randomized placebo control

18    trials provide evidence of the efficacy of PFS in

19    the treatment of urinary stress incontinence.

20               Yamanishi conducted a four-week double

21    blinded trial comparing electrical stimulation to

22    placebo treatment in 44 patients with stress

23    urinary incontinence.  Efficacy of pelvic floor

24    stimulation therapy was judged using several

25    outcome measures, including the number of
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 1    micturitions and leakage episodes, the number of

 2    pad changes, degrees of disturbance in daily

 3    activity, and patient impressions.  There was a

 4    significant decrease in the daily frequency of pad

 5    change and disturbances in daily activities in the

 6    active device group compared to the sham device

 7    group.  Also, there were significantly more cured

 8    or improved patients for frequency of leakage and

 9    pad tests.

10               In previous assessments, Blue Cross and

11    Blue Shield Association discounted the findings

12    reported in the Yamanishi study because their

13    results were, quote, inconsistent and conflicting,

14    unquote, with other studies.  However, Blue Cross

15    Blue Shield report failed to identify any flaws in

16    the methodology of this study, nor were complaints

17    issued about the reliability and validity of these

18    results.

19               Although the technology assessment

20    discounts the Sand report for, quote, sufficient

21    methodologic quality, unquote, an independent

22    review by MedTap International summarized the study

23    as a multicenter prospective randomized, double

24    blinded trial comparing 35 women receiving PFS to

25    17 women receiving a sham device.  To determine
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 1    treatment efficacy, Sand and the other

 2    investigators conducted urodynamic testing

 3    accompanied by a pad test, and subtractive

 4    phystometry (phonetic) before and after device

 5    use.  After 12 weeks of treatment, the patients

 6    using the active device had significantly greater

 7    improvement in weekly and daily leakage episodes,

 8    pad testing, and vaginal muscle strength, when

 9    compared with the patients treated with the sham

10    device.  The pad test also showed that stress

11    incontinence was improved by at least 50 percent in

12    62 percent of the patients using PFS, compared with

13    only 19 percent of patients using the sham device.

14               In the largest randomized trial,

15    Brubaker compared PFS to sham device in 146 women

16    with stress incontinence, detrusor instability and

17    mixed incontinence.  This study utilized

18    multichannel testing, testing, urinary diary, and

19    assessment of quality of life, to determine the

20    efficacy of pelvic floor treatment.  After eight

21    weeks, 49 percent of the women with detrusor

22    instability who used the active electrical device

23    were cured.

24               Despite the concerns regarding study

25    design, the 1996 AHCPR clinical guidelines on
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 1    urinary incontinence concluded, research indicates

 2    that PFES can significantly reduce urinary

 3    incontinence in women with stress incontinence, and

 4    may be effective in men and women with mixed, urge

 5    and stress incontinence.  Treatment using

 6    stimulation requires monitoring by a health care

 7    professional to determine effectiveness.

 8               The technology assessment also asked the

 9    panel to compare the efficacy of PFS as compared to

10    PMEs or alternative treatments.  If a patient can

11    spontaneously perform PMEs, she does not need PFS.

12    However, as with all areas of weakened or poorly

13    enervated skeletal muscles, PFS augments

14    strengthening of muscles.  This approach has been

15    used in other parts of medicine for many years,

16    including orthopedics and physical therapy.

17               The third inquiry of reference in the

18    technology assessment questions the addition of PFS

19    to PMEs to improve outcome above those obtained

20    from PMEs alone.  As professionals treating urinary

21    incontinence with the above treatments, AUGS feels

22    that this question was the result of lack of

23    knowledge or understanding regarding application of

24    the two modalities.  PFS for stress incontinence

25    contracts the same muscles as a correctly performed
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 1    Kegel exercise.

 2               The advantages of PFS are twofold.  The

 3    correct muscles are always contracted, and

 4    voluntary compliance to exercise is not required.

 5    Electrical stim and PMEs are used for different

 6    people.  Women with muscles that simply have mild

 7    disuse and atrophy can exercise without any device,

 8    and women with more moderate disuse and atrophy

 9    need additional treatment.  Thank you.

10               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

11               MS. CONRAD:  Julie Pauls, and the

12    following presenter will be Mikel Gray.

13               DR. PAULS:  Thank you.  Good morning.

14    My name is Dr. Julie Pauls.  I'm a physical

15    therapist and an assistant professor at Texas

16    Women's University at the Texas Medical Center in

17    Houston, Texas.  I am here on behalf of the

18    American Physical Therapy Association, representing

19    its almost 69,000 members.  And I have no current

20    or past financial interest in any manufacturers

21    whose products may be under discussion today.

22               And Connie, I have asked that you

23    distribute my testimony, and ask that it be put in

24    the permanent record of this proceeding.

25               To the question of the day, is the
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 1    evidence adequate, the APTA responds that yes,

 2    there is adequate clinical evidence to support the

 3    use of PFES in the care of urinary incontinence.

 4    And we believe that, because the Agency for Health

 5    Care Quality, formerly the AHCPR, is the lead

 6    governmental agency charged with supporting

 7    research design to improve the quality of health

 8    care, reduce its costs, and broaden access to

 9    essential services.  The clinical practice

10    guidelines that we've discussed and were updated in

11    '96 established an algorithm for the evaluation

12    and management for urinary incontinence.  These

13    guidelines state that PFES has been shown to

14    decrease incontinence in women with incontinence,

15    and that it may be useful for urge and mixed

16    incontinence as well.

17               These guidelines were given a B rating

18    as mentioned earlier, which is the second highest

19    rating available.  And they based this on the

20    scientific evidence from properly designed and

21    implemented clinical studies that support the

22    guideline statement.  Because these guidelines were

23    formulated by a neutral government agency comprised

24    of health care research experts, the APTA strongly

25    urges this panel to weigh the findings of this
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 1    report heavily in the deliberations regarding

 2    Medicare utilization of PFES for incontinence.

 3               As you are aware, another assessment has

 4    been done.  At the request of HCFA, Blue Cross and

 5    Blue Shield association completed this technology

 6    assessment we've been discussing.  Some remarkable

 7    contrasts exist that should be noted.  For example,

 8    while the AHCPR practice guidelines were based on a

 9    review of literature by a panel of 16 leading

10    health care experts who are experts in urinary

11    incontinence, the Blue Cross TEC assessment was

12    authored by one individual with input from other

13    reviewers.  While the AHCPR guideline was performed

14    under the auspices of a neutral government agency,

15    the technology assessment was done by a health care

16    insurance organization, many of whose members are

17    for profit organizations.  Thus, the APTA has some

18    concerns with the way this assessment presents the

19    PFES studies and the results thereof.

20               We believe that with respect to the

21    efficacy of PFES compared to sham PFES or placebo,

22    this assessment contains inconsistencies and

23    misrepresentations of those data.  It is on the

24    basis of these and other concerns that we would

25    caution the panel against formulating any
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 1    recommendations solely based on this assessment.

 2               In reviewing the study by Sand, PFES

 3    compared to placebo, the assessment offers a good

 4    deal of conjecture without any justification for

 5    statements it makes.  For example, the assessment

 6    suggests an increase in leakage in the placebo

 7    group would have been statistically significant if

 8    the sample size was larger, but then suggests that

 9    if this increase had been found to be significant,

10    it was not biologically plausible.  In other words,

11    the assessment first hypothesizes that a situation

12    might exist, and then declares that it is not

13    biologically plausible.

14               The assessment goes on to explain that

15    this biological implausibility occurrence might

16    instead have been due to an artifact, due to

17    instability of the measurements of incontinence, in

18    this case the use of patient diaries, a point the

19    assessment fails to make in criticizing other

20    studies that use the exact same methodology.

21               None of these statements in the

22    assessment are supported by quantifiable methods

23    and more importantly, none disprove the profound

24    clinical results of the Sand study, namely that

25    PFES is superior to sham PFES.
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 1               In the Joe Laycock and Jerwood study,

 2    the assessment places emphasis on the findings that

 3    the percent of patients cured was not statistically

 4    significant.  It also emphasizes that the percent

 5    of patients showing greater than 50 percent

 6    improvement was not reported.  The assessment

 7    chooses to downplay, if not ignore, the profound

 8    finding that the PFES group showed significantly,

 9    up to two times more greater decrease in the grams

10    of urine leakage compared to the placebo group.

11    Anyone who's suffered from urinary incontinence

12    will tell you that decreased leakage is absolutely

13    significant.  And this study demonstrated how much

14    difference PFES can make.

15               In its summary the assessment concludes

16    that the body of literature does not support strong

17    and consistent evidence that PFES reduces the

18    frequency and severity of incontinent episodes.  It

19    bases its conclusion on the observation that the

20    studies investigated different parameters of PFES,

21    and that the administration of the interventions

22    varied.  While it's true that the studies did

23    investigate various parameters such as frequency,

24    duration, intensity and location, as we've

25    discussed earlier today, the literature clearly
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 1    shows PFES to be superior to placebo.

 2               However, studies by Kerri Bo in Norway,

 3    and Olah, while confirming these findings, also

 4    suggest that the positive effects of PFES may be

 5    similar to that obtained from a structured PME

 6    program.  But there is considerable difference

 7    between no effect versus no better than.  The

 8    important issue here, which we feel is missing from

 9    the assessment, is whether it is appropriate, worth

10    the extra time, equipment and effort to employ

11    PFES, while other less expensive ways can

12    frequently but not always accomplish the same

13    thing.  That conclusion is missing.  We read

14    instead that PFES is ineffective.  Clearly the

15    assessment draws a conclusion that it's not

16    supportable by an objective analysis of the

17    literature.

18               PFES has been shown to be effective, and

19    is particularly useful, and this is the critical

20    key, please underline it in your papers, it's

21    particularly useful intervention for those patients

22    who are not capable of a voluntary muscle

23    contraction.  For these reasons, PFES is a valuable

24    adjunctive intervention and should be covered under

25    the Medicare program.  With the increased frequency
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 1    of urinary incontinence in the aging American

 2    public, the APTA believes that it's imperative that

 3    Medicare rely heavily on the medical and research

 4    experts at the AHRQ, the neutral governmental

 5    agency.

 6               In closing, the APTA urges this panel to

 7    adopt a recommendation for utilization of PFES for

 8    the treatment of incontinence at a level three

 9    category of effectiveness.  We do so because number

10    one, clinically, there is adequate evidence to

11    conclude that it's effective.  Secondly, because

12    its efficacy is supported with valid and reliable

13    scientific literature recognized by a panel of

14    experts.  And thirdly, probably most importantly,

15    because of the profound benefit it can provide to

16    your beneficiaries who suffer from this condition.

17    Thank you for your attention.

18               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

19               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you.  Next is Mikel

20    Gray, with Alfred Bent on deck.

21               DR. GRAY:  My name is Mikel Gray.  I am

22    representing the Continence Coalition today.  My

23    travel to this meeting was not financed by any of

24    the manufacturers or any manufacturer at all.  I

25    have no existing, nor do I have any previous
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 1    conflicts of interest or financial relationship

 2    with any of the manufacturers involved today.  My

 3    titles are assistant professor of urology and nurse

 4    practitioner with the department of urology at the

 5    University of Virginia.  I'm also associate

 6    professor of nursing at the University of

 7    Virginia.

 8               I want to first limit my comments, and I

 9    also want to take Miss Conrad's advice, and be a

10    little supplemental to some of the comments that

11    are already made.  Therefore, I'm not going to

12    spend significant time talking about PFES as model

13    therapy in the management of stress urinary

14    incontinence; that has been discussed previously.

15    I am going to focus on the use of PFES in the

16    management of urge urinary incontinence,

17    particularly detrusor instability, or motor urge

18    incontinence.

19               So, I think the first thing that I must

20    say to you is, and to remind you that when you talk

21    about PFES for urinary incontinence that is indeed

22    a broad topic.  Its application for urge urinary

23    incontinence and the physiologic response to urge

24    urinary incontinence, its application to stress

25    urinary incontinence are two completely different
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 1    things.

 2               There are several possible therapeutic

 3    benefits to electrical stimulation as you know, and

 4    there has been evidence presented today, and I will

 5    not again repeat that evidence, that electrical

 6    stimulation in the low hertz frequency range, using

 7    duty cycles of one to one or generally one to two,

 8    is effective in the inhibition of bladder

 9    contractions.  There have been two particular

10    randomized studies that have reported the

11    usefulness of transvaginal electrical stimulation

12    for the treatment of motor urge urinary

13    incontinence.

14               Smith, in the Journal of Urology,

15    randomized a group of 38 women with urge UI and

16    urodynamically documented detrusor instability to

17    treatment with either an anticholinergic medication

18    or maximal electrical stimulation using an

19    intravaginal probe.  Outcome measures for this

20    particular study are point on relevant to the

21    questions we've been asked to address.  That is, he

22    looked at the number of pads used within a 24-hour

23    period, he looked at the frequency of urination

24    reported on bladder log or voiding diary, and he

25    also looked at the number of UI episodes within a
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 1    24-hour period.

 2               In this particular study, cure was

 3    defined as complete oblation of urinary

 4    incontinence, and discontinuation of pad usage,

 5    both a scientifically relevant and a clinically

 6    relevant outcome.  Improvement was defined as at

 7    least 50 percent reduction in pad usage and UI

 8    episodes, as well as a drop to 10 or less voiding

 9    episodes over a 24-hour period.

10               Based on these particular outcomes 22

11    percent of the 38 subjects were assessed as cured,

12    and 50 percent were improved by stimulation,

13    yielding an overall improvement rate of 72

14    percent.  Now these rules were reported in the

15    report as comparable to that achieved by pharmacal

16    therapy.

17               However, in the author's discussion,

18    there is an important point that must be made, and

19    that is to say that individuals who were treated by

20    PFES were able to avoid the bothersome side effects

21    of anticholinergic therapy.  There is good

22    documentation in the literature that up to 82

23    percent of patients who were started on an

24    anticholinergic therapy, specifically Ditropan and

25    media release, will discontinue therapy within one
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 1    year of starting because of intolerable side

 2    effects.  And when we look at scientific evidence

 3    and balance that against clinical relevance, I

 4    would point out that there are no side effects

 5    associated with anticholinergic therapy that are

 6    specific and relevant to PFES.

 7               Therefore, Dr. Antoci's point is well

 8    taken, that there must be alternative treatments

 9    for urinary incontinence, particularly for urge

10    urinary incontinence.

11               What can we take away from this study?

12    We can take away that the efficacy is comparable to

13    that achieved by pro-Panthylene, a specific

14    anticholinergic.  We can also take away the lesson

15    that these patients were able to achieve these

16    comparable results without any cholinergic side

17    effects.

18               A second study is that of Brubaker in

19    '97, who reported on a randomized trial, a

20    transvaginal stimulation versus an intravaginal

21    sham probe.  This particular group included 121

22    women who completed the study.  61 of those

23    particular studies had urodynamically proven

24    detrusor instability, motor urge urinary

25    incontinence.  The outcome measures in this
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 1    particular study included subjective perceptions of

 2    improvement, objective comparisons, and pre and

 3    post-treatment urodynamic testing.

 4               The most interesting and the most

 5    provocative finding in this is that among those

 6    with urodynamically proven detrusor stability,

 7    motor urge urinary incontinence, 49 percent

 8    reverted to stable detrusor function, were cured

 9    following the treatment course, as compared to 6

10    percent who used the sham device.

11               It is unfortunate, and I certainly would

12    acknowledge that there is a limitation in this

13    study, because there was insufficient bladder log

14    entries in order to measure that as an outcome.

15    However, if you look at what she reports, which is

16    adequate subjective improvement, you will find that

17    there was a 35 percent adequate subjective

18    improvement, while only 17 percent of those on the

19    sham device achieved similar results.

20               In this particular study, chi square

21    analysis was used to analyze that.  The statistical

22    significance, the P value unfortunately failed to

23    reach statistical significance, although if we

24    apply the .05 rule talked about earlier, it would

25    have achieved statistical significance, but she
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 1    used a .01.

 2               There are uncontrolled trials that I

 3    believe are relevant.  Again, I would urge the

 4    panel and I submit to you that when you look at the

 5    preponderance of data, the uncontrolled trials are

 6    helpful as supplemental to the controlled trials,

 7    although I agree with the comment that the

 8    controlled trials must form the basis of your

 9    judgment.  However, again, I submit to you that the

10    uncontrolled trials can prove valuable as providing

11    adjunctive information.

12               Primus and Kramer in 1996 used

13    transvaginal and transrectal electrical stimulation

14    in a group of 75 patients.  They were diagnosed

15    with urgency and/or urge urinary incontinence

16    again, urodynamically documented.  This particular

17    study I'm pointing out, and I believe it's notable

18    because it includes 51 women and 24 men.  In many

19    instances there are significantly greater data on

20    men; in this case, there's significantly greater

21    data on women, and what data we do have on men

22    should be pointed out as well.

23               30 of these particular subjects had

24    neuropathic basis for their hyperactive detrusor

25    contractions; that is, they had detrusor
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 1    hyperreflexia owing to multiple sclerosis.  45 had

 2    idiopathic detrusor instability.  Following

 3    three-week of treatment with maximal electrical

 4    stimulation of at least 15 sessions, 59 percent

 5    experienced both urodynamic, objective, and

 6    subjective improvement.  Follow-up was done, and it

 7    showed that the improvement persisted for

 8    approximately two years within the majority of the

 9    idiopathic group, but the neuropathic group

10    unfortunately had a relapse of symptoms

11    approximately two months after.

12               Jonnasen in 1990 also provided a trial

13    that was uncontrolled.  Again, subjective

14    evaluation showed a 65 percent improvement, 67

15    percent subjective improvement.  Ericson in 1989

16    again showed similar things.  And finally, one of

17    the first trials was done by McGuire, who showed a

18    75 percent achievement rate of complete continence,

19    and 15 percent were reported as improved, using

20    strictly urodynamic criteria.

21               Can we say that there is adequate

22    evidence that PFES is effective in the management

23    of motor urge urinary incontinence, particularly

24    detrusor instability proved motor urge urinary

25    incontinence, using the strict ICS definition?  I
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 1    submit the preponderance of data shows that there

 2    is.

 3               There is also an advantage that has not

 4    been adequately discussed in my opinion over

 5    pharmacal therapy, for patients who are intolerant,

 6    and I am not arguing that all patients are

 7    intolerant.  That is fortunately a smaller

 8    proportion than it has been because of recent

 9    advances in pharmacal therapy.  Nevertheless, of

10    the many patients who prove intolerant of the side

11    effects of anticholinergic therapy, transvaginal,

12    transrectal electrical stimulation using specific

13    parameters is effective.  Thank you very much.

14               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

15               MS. CONRAD:  Dr. Bent.  Dr. Perry on

16    deck.

17               DR. BENT:  Good morning again.  I am

18    Alfred Bent, a practicing obstetrician and

19    gynecologist up the street at the Greater Baltimore

20    Medical Center.  I've been program director for

21    ACOG for a considerable length of time, so I

22    represent ACOG today, the organization of 39,000

23    physicians dedicated to women's health.  I

24    appreciate the opportunity to address the panel.  I

25    have no financial interest in the products being
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 1    discussed and have traveled at my own expense the

 2    12 miles downtown.

 3               I did participate in two studies using

 4    the Hollister device which was provided to us.  We

 5    were not funded.  In fact, I think we spent more

 6    money to try to do the studies than we received.

 7    However, we are of the opinion that there is

 8    adequate evidence to conclude clinical efficacy of

 9    electrical stimulation.  We heard about the AHCPR

10    guidelines from 1996 that determined electrical

11    stimulation may be helpful in mixed urge and stress

12    incontinence, and that it was most likely helpful

13    for stress incontinence.  For stress incontinence,

14    the studies have been presented and I don't need to

15    repeat them.  I have summarized them in my previous

16    submission to you.

17               Brubaker's study did not show efficacy.

18    There's a question regarding the parameters.  Sand

19    and Yamanishi showed efficacy.  Luber did not,

20    although in Luber's study, most patients had either

21    refused or failed PMEs as a form of therapy.

22               I would like to spend a little bit of

23    time discussing the study that was presented in

24    some detail in the report to HCFA, and that's the

25    Karri Bo study, which composed patients who were
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 1    treated by PMEs, electrical stimulation, vaginal

 2    cones, and a control group.  Once again, I probably

 3    am showing my bias, but Professor Bo is known for

 4    her rejection of electrical stimulation therapy and

 5    formal biofeedback techniques, and it does show

 6    that result in her study, in my particular bias.

 7    She does discuss the use of PFMEs, however, by a

 8    trained physical therapist through a structured

 9    program, although that's not considered formal

10    biofeedback, and we discussed that yesterday.

11               Although the average age of the patients

12    in the Bo study was 49.6 years, the report to HCFA

13    stated that this study was generalizable for the

14    Medicare population.  The mean age in the Yamanishi

15    study from '97 is 63 years; it seems to me that's a

16    little bit more Medicare age than 49 years.

17               The biases in the Bo study do need some

18    clarification in my opinion.  The PFME group

19    performed their exercises daily, had training in

20    groups once a week with a physical therapist, had

21    an audiotape with verbal guidance for 12

22    contractions to use at home, and kept a training

23    diary.  The electrical stimulation patients were

24    seen monthly and were observed by the physical

25    therapist receiving their stimulation therapy,
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 1    probably through one-way glass.  Oh, sorry.

 2               They used their devices for 30 minutes

 3    daily.  The compliance was 93 percent in the

 4    exercise group compared to 73 percent in the

 5    electrical stimulation group, which is not

 6    surprising considering the extra stimulation in

 7    terms of contact that the PFME group received.  The

 8    baseline stress pad test for the exercise group was

 9    36.6 grams and that for the electric stimulation

10    group was 56 grams.  So, I suppose you could say

11    there's a bias in starting there in terms of what

12    they're starting with in their pad test results.

13               A statement was made in the report that

14    there was a 78 percent improvement on the pad test

15    for those patients receiving exercise therapy

16    compared to only 13 percent in the electrical

17    stimulation group.  This figure wasn't really found

18    in the Bo study, or at least I just didn't see it

19    or read it, and it look like it was derived by

20    comparing baseline pad test measurement and the

21    change that occurred after therapy.  Well, for the

22    exercise group, the change that occurred was 30.2

23    grams less and their baseline was 36 grams, so that

24    came to me to 82.5 percent improvement.  The

25    electrical stimulation group only had 7.4 grams of
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 1    change in their pad test, but the baseline was a

 2    lot higher, a 56 gram loss, so their improvement

 3    was 13 percent.  I don't know about the statistical

 4    methods in this technique, but it seems it's just a

 5    little bit biased.

 6               Finally, in the studies on PFMEs, the

 7    objective cure rate from the study showed that 11

 8    of 25 patients were cured, which is really

 9    excellent, and for electrical stimulation it was 7,

10    which isn't too bad, but of course not as good as

11    the other one.  If we look at subjective cure or

12    improved, as stated in the article, that for PFMEs

13    was 92 percent.  That for electrical stimulation

14    was 64 percent, and by the way, for vaginal cones

15    it was 63 percent.  Considering the Monaco

16    consensus from 1998 that says that if you get 65 to

17    75 percent receiving exercises and they improve in

18    the short-term, that's not a bad result, so the

19    result for electrical stimulation isn't really that

20    bad, although of course, the muscle exercises is

21    kind of out of sight.

22               With respect to urge incontinence, we

23    heard about the Brubaker study and others, and it

24    showed efficacy.  There's one other; Yamanishi just

25    reported in Urology, March of 2000, reporting on 68
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 1    patients with detrusor instability confirmed by

 2    urodynamic testing, in which patients were randomly

 3    assigned, so 32 received treatment and 28 received

 4    sham.  Efficacy was evaluated by frequency volume

 5    chart, urodynamic testing.  The active group had 81

 6    percent improvement and the sham had 32 percent.

 7    It just seems like at least for urge incontinence,

 8    there are really no dissenting studies.

 9               In conclusion, we conclude that the

10    evidence regarding clinical efficacy for electrical

11    stimulation in treating stress, urge and mixed

12    incontinence is present and is adequate to say that

13    yes, it is clinically effective.  There must be

14    some allowance for these patients to receive home

15    therapy with home stimulation units.  It's

16    convenient, they have no side effects, they can use

17    them in the comfortable environment of home, do not

18    have to travel to the doctor's office, and the

19    therapy in terms of duration, I think somewhere

20    between 12 and 20 weeks.  We don't know if there

21    should be maintenance therapy or not; it's a

22    consideration.

23               I really don't know that it should be

24    first line therapy, if that's any importance,

25    unless of course there are thoughts and suggestions
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 1    on biofeedback go awry, and we can't use that.  We

 2    are not treating as a statistical condition, but

 3    are interacting with a clinical condition that

 4    threatens as many as 30 percent of our older

 5    Medicare patients.  We have to be able to present

 6    these elderly patients with viable conservative

 7    options other than drugs and surgery, and we need

 8    different ones, because everyone is not treated the

 9    same way.  Some may require electrical stimulation,

10    some require exercise therapy or bladder

11    retaining.

12               Finally, the panel has a major

13    responsibility in evaluating these therapies which

14    we feel will help our patients progress towards

15    continence.  Thank you.

16               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you, Dr. Bent.

17    Dr. Perry?  And the final presenter will be

18    Dr. Dmochowski.

19               DR. PERRY:  My name is still John Perry

20    and I represent the Biofeedback Society.  I was

21    about to say that my financial disclosure statement

22    from yesterday applies.  The fact of the matter is

23    I have no financial interest in any of the

24    companies that sell electrical stimulation devices,

25    but on the other hand, I understand that many of
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 1    them purchase my sensors, so I guess it would be in

 2    my personal financial interest if people used more

 3    electric stim.

 4               However, I would like to accomplish an

 5    impossible task, and that is to change your

 6    conception, your basic category about the nature of

 7    electric stim and ask, is electric stim a drug?

 8    Now, let me explain.  Agency health care policy and

 9    research decreed that incontinent individuals could

10    receive therapy from three categories, surgery,

11    pharmaceutical or the catchall category, behavioral

12    interventions, and they put electric stim in the

13    behavioral category.  I hope to tell you today, to

14    convince you today that it doesn't belong there,

15    and it needs to be evaluated on entirely different

16    criteria from the behavioral techniques, including

17    the biofeedback that we discussed yesterday.

18               If you look at the guideline's

19    descriptions, they say very clearly that surgery

20    has certain qualities, the clinician success of any

21    surgical procedure depends on operator expertise.

22    Prospectus comparisons often include different

23    surgeons with different degrees of experience and

24    expertise.  Did you ever hear that about drug

25    studies?  The personal qualities of the clinician
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 1    are not relevant in a pharmaceutical study.  Drugs

 2    must be proven to the FDA to be effective,

 3    regardless of the clinician's or the patient's

 4    belief system.  The agency is in the drug, not in

 5    the dispenser.  But when we turn to clinician

 6    characteristics under behavioral therapies, the

 7    Agency says all behavioral techniques involve

 8    educating the patient and providing positive

 9    reinforcement for effort and progress.  And they go

10    to on say, require personal and caregiver

11    involvement in continued practice.  If motivated,

12    most people show improvement.

13               Those statements do not apply to

14    electric stim.  So, is electric stim a drug?  Well,

15    it certainly isn't surgery.  It isn't behavior

16    therapy either.  It works like a drug, that is, it

17    works regardless of the patient's efforts or

18    beliefs.  Therefore, I propose that we should

19    either treat it like a drug or establish a new

20    fourth category.  If we treat it like a drug, I

21    suggest that we apply the same rigorous standards

22    of testing randomized control studies that are

23    absolutely essential in the case of a drug.

24               Let's look at the data that was

25    presented in the TEC report as far as the

00113

 1    effectiveness.  In comparison with placebo, we have

 2    five studies.  Sand got 30 percent by diary, 66 by

 3    pad weight.  Luber got 14 by diary.  Laycock got 66

 4    percent by pad weight.  Brubaker got no change in

 5    his parameters.  Yamanishi, 33 percent by diary, 56

 6    percent by pad weight.  Comparing E stim with the

 7    alternative therapies, Bo got 30 percent by diary

 8    and 13 by pad weight.  Smith got 53 percent by

 9    diary.  Olah got 60 percent by diary.  Laycock had

10    no data on this aspect.  And Hahn had 34 percent by

11    pad weight.  Notice the range of numbers we're

12    looking at.  Here's an odd ball; Gloman, 100

13    percent, but that's when combined with PME, and

14    we're only dealing with an N of 7.  Smith, '96, got

15    59 percent.  And Moore, '99, got 66 percent, but

16    again, that's when combined with PME.  Overall, if

17    you average these two columns, you get 47 percent

18    improvement to 50 percent improvement, and that's

19    improvement in symptom reduction rates.

20               How effective is 47 to 50 percent?

21    Using Burns category of moderate equals 12 or 13

22    leaks a week -- I couldn't find a graphic for

23    leaks, so I had to use a graphic for diapers, but I

24    hope you'll understand the editorial liberty here.

25    But a 50 percent reduction in symptoms only means
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 1    going from 12 leaks a week to 6 leaks a week, and

 2    that's still virtually one every day, so it's not a

 3    lot better.  So the TEC conclusion was that for

 4    stress urinary incontinence, the literature does

 5    not provide strong and consistent evidence that

 6    PFES reduces the frequency of incontinent

 7    episodes.  For urge, no conclusions can be drawn

 8    from either of the two trials that they cited.  And

 9    for post-prostate, research does not demonstrate

10    that the addition of PFES to PME improves the

11    outcome.

12               The Biofeedback Society therefore,

13    agrees with the major conclusions of the TEC report

14    for PFES.  And in addition, we raise serious

15    questions about spending public funds for a

16    technique that is decidedly less effective than

17    other readily available alternatives, namely

18    biofeedback.  Thank you.

19               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

20               MS. CONRAD:  Okay, let's move on to Dr.

21    Dmochowski.

22               DR. DMOCHOWSKI:  Good morning.  Roger

23    Dmochowski, of the American Urologic Association.

24    I have no financial interest in any of the

25    companies being evaluated today.
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 1               I'll make a very brief position

 2    statement, which is our position statement that you

 3    should have in your hands and then I'd like to make

 4    further comments, but I should be substantially

 5    less than the time allotted.

 6               To quote our position statement, our

 7    committee does not feel there is strong consensus

 8    on the effectiveness of vaginal, superclevic and/or

 9    anal electrical stimulation for urge, stress or

10    mixed incontinence.  The committee does urge

11    further randomized trials to be done, looking at

12    all objection and subjective parameters related to

13    incontinence, and that such trials should include a

14    comparison of electrical stimulation to behavioral

15    modification programs within various populations,

16    those populations being specifically men, women,

17    the elderly, children, and neurogenic patients.

18    Therefore, based upon our review of the literature,

19    and somewhat to parrot your TEC report, which again

20    was very well done:  Given the above considerations

21    and the strict criteria which you asked us to

22    evaluate and perform this process, we feel that

23    isolated electrical stimulation achieved a rating

24    of level five, which would be less effective but

25    with advantages.  However, some data do exist to
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 1    support potentially a level four categorization,

 2    which is as effective but with no advantages.

 3               That's our official statement.  Now let

 4    me make a couple points to amplify some prior

 5    speakers' comments.  In my own clinical experience

 6    and that of many of my colleagues, urology deals

 7    specifically with urinary incontinence as a main

 8    component of their practice.  Electrical

 9    stimulation is a difficult therapy to administer

10    for some patients, but it probably has a role for

11    patients with urgency and frequency disorders.

12    You've heard today that patients, older patients

13    specifically, have trouble with pharmacologic

14    therapies, they have side effects from

15    pharmacologic therapies.  This therapy is an

16    intermediate therapy and should be viewed as

17    potentially in integral or an integrated therapy

18    within the global approach to patients with mixed

19    and significantly, urgency frequency

20    symptomologies, because it does give additive

21    benefit, and you can see that in the nonrandomized

22    control trials, which however are objective.

23               There is good data to suggest that there

24    is not only good urodynamic effect, which is a true

25    objective parameter, but also good subjective
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 1    effect with patients with urgency and frequency

 2    disorders.  And so, it represents another option

 3    and again, that comment has been made several

 4    times, for patients who cannot rigidly be

 5    categorized as pharmacologic patients or surgical

 6    patients.  And again, that really applies to a

 7    substantive majority of the patients in the

 8    Medicare population.  Many of these patients are

 9    not good surgical candidates and really aren't,

10    surgery would not be beneficial to them because of

11    the urgency and frequency component of their

12    voiding dysfunction.  And many patients are not

13    able to tolerate anticholinergic agents because of

14    their side effects.

15               So I think it's important that you view

16    the potential for this therapy within, again, the

17    point I made yesterday, the larger behavioral

18    modification component.  Dr. Perry's comments were

19    very germane and I would like to amplify on

20    something that Dr. Antoci said previously, this

21    parallelism that was made with neuromodulation.

22    And Dr. Lefevre did a very good job of sort of

23    categorizing what is the benefit of this therapy.

24    There is a muscular benefit, but for urgency and

25    frequency patients, potentially the neuromodulatory
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 1    benefit is the more important component.  We are

 2    neuromodulating these patients.  And so, you see

 3    results in urgency and frequency patients because

 4    of success in neuromodulating those patients.

 5               The parallelism was made with

 6    implantable devices that this committee will look

 7    at in a subsequent meeting.  In no way is

 8    electrical stimulation delivered in an isolated

 9    fashion to the pelvic floor as efficacious as that

10    therapy, the implantable therapy, but it is less

11    intrusive obviously, and has less complications

12    associated with it.  So it definitely again, it

13    should be viewed much like hypertensive therapy, as

14    an increment in the overall therapeutic delivery

15    for these patients.  Any questions from the panel?

16               DR. EPSTEIN:  Can you cite the evidence

17    you think is most compelling for the latter part of

18    the statement that you're making?

19               DR. DMOCHOWSKI:  For the urgency and

20    frequency data?

21               DR. EPSTEIN:  Yeah.

22               DR. DMOCHOWSKI:  Well, that is largely

23    clinical experience.  There are some studies, and

24    Dr. Gray actually gave you two references that I

25    believe are in his component.  I don't have any
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 1    specific references.

 2               DR. EPSTEIN:  Is the new Yamanishi

 3    reference one you're referring to?

 4               DR. DMOCHOWSKI:  The new Yamanishi

 5    reference, and Dr. Gray alluded to the urodynamic

 6    references to, which is also very compelling in

 7    terms of what this does in terms of neuromodulating

 8    overall bladder function in terms of urgency or

 9    detrusor instability, which again, is an objective

10    criteria that can be evaluated by urodynamicists.

11               DR. EPSTEIN:  Brubaker and Smith?

12               DR. DMOCHOWSKI:  Brubaker and Smith,

13    thank you.  Well, there's another article that Dr.

14    Gray alluded to.  The Brubaker article has, as we

15    know, some methodologic problems and again, it's

16    only, if you look at that specifically for

17    urodynamic effect, there is some urodynamic

18    effect.  But again, in other trials, we have seen

19    that there is effect of this agent for urgency and

20    infrequency as an isolated symptomatology.

21               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.

22               MS. CONRAD:  Thank you.  Next we have

23    John Whyte, medical officer for the coverage and

24    analysis group.

25               DR. WHYTE:  Thank you, Connie.  Just a
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 1    reminder to the panel that you do have a copy of my

 2    remarks, as well as Dr. Lefevre's slides that are

 3    in your supplementary packet.

 4               I do want to thank Dr. Garber and Dr.

 5    Maves, as well as the other members of the panel

 6    and the members of the public who have taken

 7    considerable time over the past day, day and a

 8    half, as well as the past few months, to advise us

 9    on the topic of urinary incontinence.  This is a

10    new coverage process for us, one that is focused on

11    evidence based decision making, and a key component

12    of this evidence based process is the technology

13    assessment.

14               And for this topic, we ordered a

15    technology assessment by contracting with Blue

16    Cross Blue Shield Technology Evaluation Center,

17    which you heard about yesterday, is an evidence

18    based practice center of the Agency for Health

19    Research and Quality.  We looked at three

20    indications, stress incontinence, urge

21    incontinence, and post-prostatectomy incontinence.

22               And for the purposes of this meeting, we

23    are defining PFES as the use of a nonimplantable

24    electrical device that delivers variable rates of

25    current to the pelvic floor, with the intent of
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 1    strengthening pelvic floor musculature.  It's

 2    important to note the distinction, that we're

 3    talking about nonimplantable devices, because there

 4    are implantable devices which will not be discussed

 5    during this meeting.

 6               Now, there were essentially three

 7    questions that formed the focus of the assessment.

 8    First, compared to placebo, is treatment with PFES

 9    efficacious in reducing incontinence?  Two, what is

10    the efficacy of PFES as compared to PFMEs or

11    alternative nonsurgical treatment?  And three, does

12    the addition of PFES to PMEs result in improved

13    outcomes above that obtained with PME alone?

14               For the next couple slides, I will

15    discuss how we selected the articles that we used,

16    as well as the TEC used, to base their assessment.

17    There were several criteria.  The first was that

18    they were full-length peer reviewed articles

19    reporting on outcomes of treatment for urinary

20    incontinence, using PFES.  They had to include

21    patients with documented stress, urge, or mixed

22    incontinence, by physician diagnosis and urodynamic

23    testing.  They needed to include a concurrent

24    comparison group of patients treated without PFES

25    in one of the following categories:  Placebo
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 1    control treatment; was mentioned earlier, treatment

 2    with alternative nonsurgical therapy for

 3    incontinence.  By this we mean PMEs, vaginal cones,

 4    bladder training, or pharmacologic agents.

 5               We also wanted to see valid health

 6    outcome measures, and by that we mean a percent

 7    decrease in incontinence episodes via patient

 8    diary, a percent decrease in the volume of urine

 9    loss on a standard pad test, the percent of

10    patients with a 50 percent or greater improvement,

11    or the percent of patients dry.

12               We also wanted to see an adequate

13    description of the patient population, including

14    diagnostic categories of incontinence.  And

15    finally, we wanted to see an adequate description

16    of the treatment course, including length of

17    treatment and number of sessions.

18               At this juncture we will hear the

19    results of the technology assessment.  As you all

20    met, Dr. Lefevre yesterday, for other members of

21    the audience that did not hear him yesterday,

22    Dr. Lefevre is an assistant professor of medicine

23    at Northwestern Medical School, and he is a senior

24    consultant with the Blue Cross Blue Shield TEC,

25    where he has been for the past eight years.  He's
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 1    been the author of over 25 technology assessments.

 2               Just as a point of reference, after

 3    Dr. Lefevre's remarks, I will make some additional

 4    comments, so I ask that you hold all of your

 5    questions until the end of both of our

 6    discussions.  So at this point I will yield the

 7    mike to Dr. Lefevre.

 8               MS. SMITH:  Excuse me, Connie.  I didn't

 9    get the handout.  I'm sharing it with my buddy over

10    here, but I didn't get the handout of all the

11    slides that are being presented.

12               MS. CONRAD:  It's on its way.

13               DR. LEFEVRE:  I want to thank the panel

14    again for the opportunity to present the results of

15    our work, and again to acknowledge the

16    collaborators on this project with myself, which

17    were primarily Ted Speroff and Naomi Aronson, both

18    PhDs and methodologists.

19               I'm going to say again a little bit of

20    background that I went through yesterday, and try

21    to go through this quickly, to spend more time

22    focusing on the evidence.  I would also like to say

23    that I am encouraged by this debate today which has

24    been focused, the majority of the debate has been

25    focused on the adequacy of the evidence, and I am
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 1    encouraged to hear this kind of debate, because I

 2    think there is room for legitimate debate on the

 3    evidence, and particularly what threshold should be

 4    required for the evidence to meet a standard of

 5    efficacy.

 6               So by way of background, just going over

 7    what TEC is, TEC was founded in 1985 by Blue Cross

 8    Blue Shield Association, which is the umbrella

 9    organization for the Blue Cross plans.  It provides

10    support services, technology assessments which is

11    one of them, has performed numerous technology

12    assessments, and has evolved from a proprietary

13    organization into now where we perform larger

14    assessments entirely in the public domain in

15    partnership with AHRQ.  This is just a diagram of

16    the relationship of TEC with the Blue Cross plans,

17    with Kaiser Permanente, one of our major partners,

18    and with TEC subsribers, who are outside health

19    plans, and also our contract relationship as an EPC

20    with AHRQ.

21               TEC's major priority is to maintain the

22    scientific integrity of the products.  This is what

23    the plans and our subscribers want.  They want a

24    review of the best available evidence.  There is a

25    critical need for this.  And they can use this in
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 1    making the difficult coverage decisions that they

 2    have to make.  TEC does not make coverage

 3    decisions; we provide plans with evidence in order

 4    to help them to make coverage decisions.  We do not

 5    consider costs.  We use a formalized set of

 6    criteria as an anchor for what constitutes adequate

 7    evidence for efficacy, and we have a medical

 8    advisory panel which is composed of, the majority

 9    of which are independent of the Blue Cross plans,

10    which has final say over all our assessments,

11    including the current one that we will be

12    presenting today.

13               Now, the objective of this assessment

14    was to determine whether PFES improves health

15    outcome for patients with urinary incontinence.

16    We'll take an evidence-based approach, similar to

17    what we described yesterday, and look at the

18    adequacy of the evidence, the consistency, and the

19    methodological quality, as well as considering the

20    magnitude of effect.

21               Systematic review is considered the best

22    available way to synthesize a body of literature to

23    determine treatment effectiveness.  And to

24    reemphasize the points I made yesterday, the main

25    strength of systematic review is its a priori
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 1    problem formulation and development of study

 2    selection criteria.  We set up, what are the

 3    patient indications, what is the treatment that

 4    we're concerned with, what's the definition of the

 5    treatment we're concerned with, what are the

 6    outcomes that we consider clinically relevant, I

 7    comparisons, and what is the relevant comparisons?

 8    Following this, we develop a priori, what are the

 9    studies that can answer the question that we're

10    posing in this population?  Following this, we

11    systematically search the literature, we abstract

12    the relevant outcome data, and then we synthesize

13    the data either qualitatively or quantitatively.

14               Going through the problem formulation,

15    just to reiterate John's points, the patient

16    indications are stress, urge and post-prostatectomy

17    incontinence.  The intervention is PFES, as

18    described by Dr. Whyte.  The outcomes of interest,

19    again, similar to yesterday's outcomes of

20    interest.  What we're primarily concerned with is a

21    reduction in the frequency and/or severity of

22    urinary incontinence.

23               This is most commonly measured by one of

24    two methods, patient recorded incontinence diaries,

25    or a standardized pad test, which is specific for
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 1    stress incontinence.  There can be and expected to

 2    be a great deal of variability in these

 3    measurements, both in the inherent variability in

 4    the incontinence itself, which may be expected to

 5    vary with many factors such as activity level,

 6    fluid intake, and other such variables, and there

 7    also would be expected in patient recorded diaries

 8    that, as these being somewhat subjective measures,

 9    there may also be an additional level of

10    variability in these measures.  And this is

11    important when we get to discuss the outcomes

12    later, regarding the outcomes of the clinical

13    trials.

14               The reported outcomes that we're

15    concerned with are percent change in incontinence.

16    This is the most commonly reported outcome, percent

17    reduction in frequency of incontinence.  Also, the

18    percent of patients improved, which is defined as

19    the percentage of patients with at least a 50

20    percent improvement in the frequency of

21    incontinence is a valid health outcome.  And

22    finally, the percent of patients who are cured, who

23    have no further incontinence, is certainly a valid

24    clinical outcome.

25               The comparison treatments as stated
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 1    previously are placebo.  This is an efficacy

 2    question, is PFES efficacious?  We also would like

 3    to compare it to alternative treatments to answer

 4    the question of what is the comparison, comparative

 5    effectiveness of PFES compared to available

 6    alternatives?  And finally, it can be used as an

 7    adjunct to behavioral treatment, it can be added on

 8    to PFMEs, which has been done in several studies,

 9    and this is another relevant comparison that we

10    will attempt to make conclusions on.  Which gets us

11    to our questions, again.  Three indications,

12    stress, urge and post-prostatectomy incontinence,

13    three separate questions which Dr. Whyte has put

14    forth.

15               And I would like to say just briefly

16    that I believe the questions that HCFA has devised

17    are the relevant clinical questions, both today and

18    yesterday, and I believe that strongly.  I don't

19    think it's the proper time to elaborate, but I

20    would be glad to in another forum.

21               Study selection criteria, as Dr. Whyte

22    has indicated, full-length peer reviewed literature

23    including a concurrent comparison group, which is

24    the most important aspect of our study selection

25    criteria.  We do not feel that uncontrolled trials
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 1    can evaluate the efficacy of this technique

 2    adequately.

 3               Now our search results revealed 12

 4    articles that met the study selection criteria, and

 5    these 12 articles report on a total of 626

 6    patients.  The range of the ends in the studies was

 7    14 to 146.  There were six trials comparing PFES to

 8    placebo.  There were five trials comparing PFES to

 9    alternative treatments.  And there was one trial

10    which compared the addition of PFES plus PMEs to

11    PMEs alone.

12               This slide just gives sort of a lay of

13    the land to tell you where the studies fall out and

14    where the N's fall out.  And again, across the top

15    column we have the three indications, stress, urge

16    and post-prostatectomy incontinence, and the three

17    separate questions, versus placebo, versus

18    alternatives, and the addition of PFES to PME.  As

19    you can see here, the studies sort of cluster in

20    stress incontinence.  Similar to biofeedback, most

21    of the literature is on stress incontinence.  There

22    is a significant number of studies on the question

23    of PFES versus placebo and versus alternatives.  In

24    the other boxes there's only one study in each of

25    the other categories.  And I would also note that
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 1    these add up to more than 12 studies, but some of

 2    the studies report separately on different

 3    indications; that's why you see the -- one study

 4    may make it into two different categories of

 5    reports on different indications separately.

 6               Now, first let's look at the PFES versus

 7    placebo and discuss some of the key methodological

 8    features.  There were five studies in this category

 9    with a total N of 243.  Four of the five studies

10    reported that their populations were randomized to

11    PFES versus placebo.  Four of the five were double

12    blinded and one was single blinded.  Three of the

13    five had at least one potential bias, and I will

14    talk a little bit about that in a second.

15               One important point to make in this body

16    of literature is there is a great deal of

17    variability in the treatment delivery.  This has

18    been alluded to before; the treatment delivery

19    varies by the type of device used, the frequency of

20    stimulation that's given, where the device is

21    implanted, and the time that it's used.  And I

22    would certainly defer to the clinical experts such

23    as Dr. Sand as to the physiological rationale as to

24    why different types of stimulation may produce

25    different results, but I think this remains a
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 1    matter for empiric investigation.  There's really

 2    no data on telling us which is better and in which

 3    situation one may work better than another one.

 4               Unfortunately one of the studies, which

 5    was the largest study, the Brubaker study, was

 6    severely limited because there was extensive

 7    missing diary data, and they were not able to

 8    report on the primary outcomes which was the

 9    reduction in the frequency of incontinence because

10    there was too much missing data.

11               Now this slide gives the areas in which

12    we felt there were potential biases in the studies

13    evaluated and three of the five studies, as I

14    indicated, have potential biases.  Again, the issue

15    of measurement bias, which I keep in parentheses

16    here, because this is inherent to all the studies

17    because of the way the outcome measures are

18    constructed.  It's not necessarily a criticism of

19    the methodology of the study itself, but it's a

20    fact that the outcome measures are not optimal, and

21    it's a recognition that there may be measurement

22    error inherent in these outcome measurements.

23               Now, I think it's useful to talk a

24    little bit about the Sand study in detail, because

25    this is I think the most influential study in the
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 1    field and it has several strengths in the

 2    methodology.  And when I put up this box here, it

 3    may appear that we're only looking at the

 4    weaknesses.  It does have strengths.  It was a

 5    multicenter study, it was double blinded and

 6    randomized, and they had a well described and

 7    adequate method of randomization.  However, I have

 8    the box here checked for selection bias.  How could

 9    that be when they have a good randomization

10    process?  Randomization is the best way to minimize

11    the chance of selection bias, and to minimize the

12    chance that your groups will be noncomparable.

13    However, it doesn't insure that, and particularly

14    with small numbers of patients, it may end up by

15    chance that the groups are not comparable.  And

16    when you look at the baseline values in this Sand

17    article, there are differences in age; there's a

18    seven year difference in age.  And there are

19    differences in the baseline severity of illness and

20    the severity of incontinence.  So, we feel that

21    there may have been not, comparability of the

22    groups may have been not as good as would have been

23    ideal.  And this was unfortunate; it was not a

24    problem with the methodology but it happened.

25               Secondly, regarding attrition bias,
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 1    there was a high dropout rate in the Sand trial.

 2    20 percent of the patients in the PFES group

 3    dropped out.  Now, when we have high dropouts, we

 4    look at whether the analysis took these into

 5    account.  And Dr. Sand had indicated that there was

 6    intent to treat analysis.  There was on some of the

 7    outcomes.  On the outcomes that we're going to look

 8    at, the three outcomes that we're looking at, the

 9    decrease in the frequency of incontinence, the

10    percent of patients improved, and the percent of

11    patients cured, it was clear that there was intent

12    to treat analysis on two of these three outcomes,

13    the percent of patients improved and for the

14    percent of patients cured.  However, I believe that

15    the -- and I still believe after talking with

16    Dr. Sand that the analysis of the reduction in the

17    frequency of incontinence was not done on an intent

18    to treat basis, and I will elaborate on that if

19    people would like to here my thoughts.

20               Second, regarding the Yamanishi study,

21    the Yamanishi study I have checked here, potential

22    for selection bias.  There is no mention in the

23    Yamanishi study of any randomization.  There's no

24    mention at all of how the group allocation process

25    was done.  Therefore, I feel there is a potential
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 1    for selection bias.  Dr. Sand has talked to the

 2    researchers, and they have indicated to him that it

 3    was randomized.  It's not in the study, it's not

 4    written anywhere in the article.

 5               Let's look at the results of these five

 6    studies for the outcome of reduction in the

 7    frequency of incontinence.  In the Sand study, and

 8    this is where I am indicating I do not believe that

 9    the analysis was intent to treat.  There were 45

10    patients analyzed, which was the 52 minus the 7

11    dropouts.  And there was a 42 percent improvement

12    in the leaks per day in the PFES group and in the

13    sham group there was a 26 percent worsening in the

14    frequency of incontinence.  The group comparisons

15    between these two groups was statistically

16    significant and it was at the .05 or .04 level.  I

17    don't remember which one it was, it was either .04

18    or .05.

19               The Luber study, which is of interest,

20    because it treats a population which is somewhat

21    different from the other studies.  This study

22    treats patients who have failed or who have not

23    agreed to do PFMEs, and this is a population of

24    interest.  Many people have said this is a

25    population that PFS should be applied to.  This is
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 1    the only study that's looked at that specific

 2    population, and there was no difference in the

 3    outcomes, as Dr. Luber has indicated previously.

 4               The Laycock study did not report the

 5    values pre and post, and were not able to come up

 6    with percent improvements, but they did state in

 7    the text that there was no group differences in

 8    reduction in the frequency of incontinence.

 9               The Brubaker study, this is the largest

10    study, and this was a well designed study.

11    Unfortunately, this was the study with the

12    extensive missing diary data.  It did not report on

13    the reduction of the frequency of incontinence.

14    What they did do at the end of the study is they

15    asked the patients to complete a 24-hour diary on

16    the frequency of incontinence, so we have

17    post-measures, we have post-measures for the entire

18    population.

19               Finally, we have Yamanishi which as I

20    indicated before, did not report randomization.  It

21    showed a statistically significant difference

22    between the PFES and the sham group, a 33 percent

23    improvement versus a zero percent improvement in

24    the sham group.

25               The next outcome of interest, the
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 1    standardized pad test outcomes, here we see similar

 2    results, although the magnitude of effect here is

 3    somewhat larger.  A 66 percent decrease in pad

 4    weight in the PFES group versus an 8 percent

 5    worsening in the sham group.  Luber did not report

 6    on this outcome.  Laycock reported on it and had a

 7    66 percent improvement in the electrical

 8    stimulation group versus a 28 percent improvement

 9    in the sham group, a difference that did not reach

10    statistical significance.  Brubaker did not report

11    on this.  And Yamanishi reported a 56 percent

12    improvement in the PFES group and a 45 percent

13    worsening in the sham electrical stimulation group.

14               Now in our TEC report we make a point

15    about this worsening of incontinence in the sham

16    group.  This is seen both in the Sand study and in

17    the Yamanishi study.  And first of all, it's

18    curious to us; why would you expect worsening in a

19    sham group, and you might expect that the first

20    question is a natural history of the disease

21    consistent with a large worsening over a short

22    period of time, and I don't believe that's the

23    case.  I don't believe you would expect this type

24    of worsening over an 8 to 12 week period.  And

25    secondly, we considered, could there be a negative
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 1    placebo effect?  Could the patients have negative

 2    expectations if they knew they were getting a sham

 3    treatment?  That's possible but I can't really say

 4    how likely it is; I think it's pretty unlikely.

 5    Usually a placebo effect goes in the positive

 6    direction.  And finally we considered, maybe it's

 7    due to instability of these measurements, maybe

 8    these measurements are highly variable and they're

 9    prone to statistical instability.  So I wanted to

10    show just a couple of slides related to that.

11               This is the Sand data and this is the

12    data on frequency of incontinence, leaks per day.

13    And the aqua bars are the pre values and the red

14    bars are the post values.  And the arrow bars

15    represent the standard deviations.  Sand reported

16    in his article the standard errors, and we

17    converted these to standard deviations and as you

18    can see, these are quite large, sometimes larger

19    than the value themselves.  And again, the

20    comparison is statistically is statistically

21    significant, but we feel that the comparison is

22    influenced by the worsening seen in the placebo

23    group.

24               Another way to look at this would be to

25    look at the confidence intervals around these
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 1    values.  Again starting with the standard error, we

 2    computed the confidence intervals around these

 3    values, and as you can see, the confidence

 4    intervals are rather large and I would especially

 5    point to the placebo group, where there was a

 6    worsening from 3 leaks per day to 3.8 leaks per

 7    day, and the confidence interval around the post

 8    leaks per day which is very large, ranging from 2.3

 9    to 5.3.  We also constructed an estimate of the

10    confidence interval for the difference in the post

11    leaks per day, which is an absolute value of 2, but

12    a wide confidence interval.  It might be as low

13    as .4, it might be as large as 3.6.  So again, I

14    think this indicates that these measures are very

15    highly variable and this needs to be considered

16    when we're considering the robustness of this data

17    in terms of the efficacy.

18               So in summary for the data on PFES

19    versus placebo, some trials do report a significant

20    benefit with PFES for stress incontinence, but this

21    is not consistent.  The majority of the trials do

22    have a potential for bias and the effect size in

23    the trials is of a magnitude that could result in

24    bias.  If we look at the effect size, and this is

25    sort of consistent with what Dr. Perry was saying,

00139

 1    the effect size for frequency of incontinence is in

 2    the 30 to 40 percent range, somewhat higher for the

 3    pad test, but we do consider the reduction in the

 4    frequency of incontinence to be a somewhat more

 5    clinically relevant outcome than the pad test.  The

 6    percent change is modest, the 30 to 40 percent

 7    range.  And in both studies where statistical

 8    significance was reported, that's the Yamanishi

 9    study and the Sand study, the P value was in

10    the .04 to .05 range.  So it did reach statistical

11    significance, but just very close to the threshold

12    that we use for defining statistical significance.

13    So again, there is some suggestion that there's

14    efficacy, but I do not feel this is a very robust

15    body of data.

16               Let's look at the data on PFES versus

17    alternatives.  There were five trials with a total

18    N of 260.  All five were randomized.  Four of the

19    five were unblinded, one was single blinded, and

20    two of the five had potential biases.  This is

21    again, a grid of the potential biases identified.

22    In the Laycock study and in the Hahn study, there

23    were potential biases identified.

24               Now, the results of PFES versus

25    alternatives on the frequency of incontinence are
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 1    shown here.  There were three studies that compared

 2    directly the results of electrical stimulation

 3    versus alternatives, and there was only one study

 4    that showed any statistically significant

 5    differences on these outcomes, and this was

 6    actually in favor of PFMEs as superior to PFES.

 7    This was the Bo study, this was 1999, this was the

 8    largest study in this group of studies, that had

 9    four groups of patients:  PFES, PMEs alone with a

10    trained therapist, vaginal cones, which is another

11    variation of PMEs, and a waiting list control.

12    Across all outcome measures, the PME group had

13    superior outcomes consistently across all outcome

14    measures.  It reached statistical significance on

15    several of these outcome measures, including the

16    comparison with PFES.

17               The PFES would roughly give the same

18    amount of improvement compared to the cones and was

19    superior to the control group and it did, the PFES

20    did reach significance over the control group on

21    some of the outcome measures.  And again, this is a

22    waiting list control, it is not a placebo control.

23    That's why it's not included in the first body of

24    literature, a waiting list control versus PFES.

25               The other two studies that reported on
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 1    this outcome, the Smith study with an N of 18,

 2    there was a trend towards greater improvement in

 3    the PFES which did not reach statistical

 4    significance, and in the Olah study there was no

 5    difference between groups.

 6               On the standardized pad tests, similar

 7    outcomes, a statistically significant improvement

 8    in the PFME group versus the PFES group in the Bo

 9    study.  And note again, this is a large difference,

10    78 percent in the PME group versus 13 percent in

11    the PFES group.  The Olah study, there was no

12    difference between PFES and vaginal cones, with the

13    trend favoring PFES.  While in the Hahn study,

14    there was no difference in the two groups, with the

15    trend favoring the PME group.

16               A summary of this data is that one study

17    reports that PME may be superior to PFES, but this

18    is not a consistent finding across the body of

19    literature.  Therefore, the evidence is not

20    adequate to form conclusions on the comparative

21    benefit of PFES versus alternatives.

22               Finally, in the last three categories,

23    where there was one trial each, in the pelvic floor

24    plus PME versus sham plus PME, there was one trial

25    with an N of 14.  There was significant baseline
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 1    differences in the severity of incontinence, 12.5

 2    leaks per day versus 5 leaks per day in the PFES

 3    group.  They reported 100 percent improvement in

 4    the PFES plus PME, versus a 52 percent improvement

 5    in the sham, and this was significant at the P at

 6    less than .05 level.

 7               For urge and post-prostatectomy

 8    incontinence, there was one trial in each of these

 9    categories, neither of which reported any

10    statistically significant group differences.

11               So in conclusion, our conclusions are

12    the evidence is not adequate to determine the

13    efficacy of PFES for stress incontinence, and this

14    is because of the reasons I enumerated previously.

15    The results of the studies are not consistent,

16    there are potential biases present in the positive

17    studies, and the effect size in the positive

18    studies, which is modest, is of a magnitude that

19    could be explained by bias.  The evidence does not

20    suggest that PFES is superior to alternatives for

21    stress incontinence.  And evidence for PFES in urge

22    and post-prostatectomy incontinence is sparse.

23               One final comment I would like to make

24    is regarding the AHCPR guidelines on PFES, the

25    conclusions of which do differ somewhat from our
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 1    conclusions in this current review.  In 1996, the

 2    AHCPR reviewed the literature on PFES.  At this

 3    time there were two randomized control trials, this

 4    was the Sand trial and this was the Blowman trial,

 5    which was the adjunct, the addition of pelvic floor

 6    to sham, both of which showed a positive effect.

 7    However, they did not feel that that level of

 8    randomized control trial evidence met their Level A

 9    evidence.  They gave it a Level B evidence, which

10    primarily was based on their results of clinical

11    series.  They indicated that further controlled

12    trials were necessary to determine the efficacy,

13    and gave it a Level B recommendation.  So there was

14    some disagreement.  Since then, several studies

15    have come out which has given us more data to

16    interpret this question.

17               And that ends my presentation.  Thank

18    you.

19               MS. CONRAD:  Dr. Whyte.

20               DR. WHYTE:  Thank you.  Now along with

21    the technology assessment that you just heard,

22    panel members also received for consideration

23    additional articles and materials.  We call them

24    exclusion articles because they were not included

25    in the technology assessment, and they were not
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 1    included in the assessment because they didn't meet

 2    the selection criteria that I discussed at the

 3    beginning of my presentation.  And that was because

 4    they were primarily historical controls, or

 5    pre-post design, or they were frequently cited

 6    articles.  But it's important to note that they

 7    have been included for consideration as part of

 8    your packets.  And you've also heard a wealth of

 9    information this morning to consider.  So having

10    heard all that, I'm going to review the questions

11    that Perry Bridger discussed early on this morning.

12               The first question is:  Is the

13    scientific evidence adequate to draw conclusions

14    about the effectiveness of PFES compared to

15    placebo, PFES compared to PMEs or alternative

16    nonsurgical techniques, and then finally PFES and

17    PMEs compared to PMEs alone.

18               And you look at those in the Medicare

19    populations for the following three indications,

20    which I'm sure you all know by now:  Stress

21    incontinence, urge incontinence and

22    post-prostatectomy incontinence.

23               Let me just review, some points that we

24    ask you to consider as you answer these questions

25    are first related to the adequacy of the study
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 1    design, and is there evidence that the studies do

 2    not over or underestimate the effect of the

 3    intervention.  And do the studies permit

 4    conclusions about the health outcomes of the

 5    technologies?  And as you evaluate the studies, we

 6    ask you to weigh the different types of study

 7    methodologies that exist.  There is a recognition

 8    that not every type of study has to be a randomized

 9    prospective placebo controlled study, and that

10    there are different methodologies to use to answer

11    different types of questions, and we ask you to

12    weigh that in your deliberations.

13               Other points to consider include the

14    consistency of results, and are the results of the

15    studies consistent or are they contradictory?  The

16    applicability to the Medicare populations.  Are the

17    results of the studies applicable to our various

18    populations, which include the elderly and the

19    disabled?  And the applicability beyond the

20    research setting; are the results likely to apply

21    in routine clinical settings?

22               We discussed this yesterday, but just to

23    review one more time, if the evidence is inadequate

24    to draw conclusions, which would be first question,

25    your work would be done for the day.  If you answer
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 1    yes to those questions, then -- or that question,

 2    then we will move on to a series of three

 3    additional questions, which are questions 2, 3 and

 4    4.  I know you heard this yesterday, but it seems

 5    like a long time ago, so just to review one more

 6    time, the categories of effectiveness.  There are

 7    seven categories.

 8               The first is breakthrough technology,

 9    that the improvement in the health outcomes is so

10    large that the intervention becomes the standard of

11    care.  Second, it's more effective, the new

12    intervention improves health outcomes by a

13    significant, albeit small margin as compared with

14    an established service or medical items.  Third,

15    it's as effective but with advantages; the

16    intervention has the same effect on health outcomes

17    as an established service or medical item, but it

18    has some advantages such as convenience, fewer side

19    effects, or some other advantages that some

20    patients may prefer.  It may be as effective and

21    with no advantages, so the intervention has the

22    same effect on health outcomes as an established

23    alternative, but it doesn't have any advantages.

24    It may be less effective but with advantages, so

25    although the intervention is less effective than an
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 1    established alternative, but more effective than

 2    doing nothing, it has some advantages.  It may be

 3    less effective and with no advantages, so the

 4    intervention is less effective than established

 5    alternative, but again, more effective than doing

 6    nothing, and has no significant advantages.  And

 7    then finally, it may be not effective; the

 8    intervention has effect, or it may have deleterious

 9    effects on health outcomes when compared to doing

10    nothing.

11               So those are the categories of

12    effectiveness, the seven categories to keep in

13    mind.  If you answer yes to question number 1, we

14    will move on to questions 2, 3 and 4.

15               So question number 2, and you have all

16    this in front of you:  If the evidence is adequate

17    to draw conclusions, what is the size, if any, of

18    the overall health effect of PFES compared to

19    placebo for the treatment of urinary incontinence?

20    And then just to follow through, question number 3

21    will be, if the evidence is adequate to draw

22    conclusions, what is the size, if any, of the

23    overall health effect of PFES compared to PMEs or

24    alternative nonsurgical techniques for the

25    treatment of urinary incontinence?  And then
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 1    finally, your last question, if the evidence is

 2    adequate to draw conclusions, what is the size, if

 3    any, of the overall health effect of the addition

 4    of PFES to PMEs compared to PMEs alone?

 5               So that concludes our presentation, and

 6    we look forward to your deliberations.

 7               DR. GARBER:  This is important, but it

 8    is housekeeping.  We are approximately a half hour

 9    behind schedule.  A number of panel members have

10    told me that they have flights to catch, actually a

11    little bit early.  Let me float a suggestion that

12    we break now or in an hour, a short break to get

13    food, and carry through our deliberations while we

14    eat, so that we can get through the entire agenda.

15    What is the sense of the panel?  This is a good

16    breaking point in terms of the agenda, so should we

17    break now to get food?  Come back here in 20

18    minutes.

19               MS. CONRAD:  As soon as possible.

20               DR. GARBER:  As soon as possible, but no

21    later than 20 minutes.

22               (Recess taken at 11:30 a.m.)

23               DR. GARBER:  I just wanted to mention in

24    terms of comments that you would like transmitted

25    to the Executive Committee, it is certainly my
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 1    intention to communicate faithfully and accurately

 2    what all of the panelists said this morning and

 3    throughout the rest of the deliberations.  But as

 4    long as it's not a violation, it would certainly

 5    help me if you would send me in written form some

 6    of the comments that you would like transmitted to

 7    the Executive Committee.  Let me add also at this

 8    point that the Executive Committee really does want

 9    the panel's feedback about how the Executive

10    Committee expressed their recommendations.  Some of

11    you expressed reservations about that, and the

12    Executive Committee would certainly welcome hearing

13    from you directly.  It would probably be most

14    effective in written form, or if you come to the

15    Executive Committee meeting.  But they are seeking

16    input from panel members.  So please express

17    yourselves through one of the vehicles that we

18    mentioned.

19               Now, it is time for the open committee

20    deliberations.  Before we start, I didn't get a

21    chance to thank the public speakers from this

22    morning and once again, I think I speak on behalf

23    of the entire panel in expressing our gratitude and

24    also our admiration for the way that your comments

25    were really structured to help us deal with the
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 1    questions at hand.  Once again, at least I found it

 2    very useful in thinking about these issues.

 3               Again, we have two panel members who are

 4    designated reviewers, Lisa Landy and Les Zendle.

 5               DR. LANDY:  Can you let Les go first?

 6               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  Les, are you

 7    prepared?

 8               MS. CONRAD:  A little housekeeping stuff

 9    first.  I am required to read the following just

10    for the record.  For today's panel meeting, voting

11    members present are:  Michael Maves, Linda Bradley,

12    Kenneth Brin, Arnold Epstein, Logan Holtgrewe, Lisa

13    Landy, Angus McBryde, James Rathmell, and Les

14    Zendle.  A quorum is present.  No one has been

15    recused because of conflicts of interest.

16               And now, Dr. Garber, you may open the

17    deliberations and then make motions, ask for

18    motions.

19               DR. GARBER:  I think first, let's ask

20    the two designated panel members to comment, and

21    then the panel members generally may comment and

22    ask questions.  Dr. Les Zendle.

23               DR. ZENDLE:  I just wanted to make a

24    couple points.  I was writing down a few of the

25    things that were said this morning.  One speaker
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 1    said that there was no scientific evidence that

 2    PFES is not effective, and that's true, but I don't

 3    know that it's relevant right now.  Another speaker

 4    said that the TEC assessment concluded that PFES is

 5    not effective, and I don't think that's true.  I

 6    don't think that's what the TEC assessment said.  I

 7    think it said there wasn't sufficient evidence to

 8    reach conclusions one way or the other, because of

 9    not consistent outcomes and some issues of bias in

10    some of the reports, and I agree with that

11    assessment.  I think that there isn't enough

12    sufficient evidence to reach conclusions one way or

13    the other.  And so therefore, I think that the

14    answer to number 1 is no, there is not enough

15    evidence.

16               Although there are some bigger numbers

17    today than yesterday, still, when you take into

18    consideration the number of people in just our

19    country alone that are affected by urinary

20    incontinence and the disability that it causes,

21    again, I'm surprised that there isn't more numbers

22    of people in studies to answer these very important

23    questions.  So that's all I want to say.

24               DR. GARBER:  Dr. Landy, are you ready?

25               DR. LANDY:  Yeah.  I think to be
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 1    consistent as a panel, we need to apply the same

 2    level of rigor we applied yesterday, whether

 3    appropriate or not, and not be biased by our

 4    feelings about what happened.  And I think we

 5    shouldn't compensate on what happened yesterday in

 6    what we decide today.  I think looking at the

 7    question is the important thing, and the question

 8    put before us, is scientific evidence adequate to

 9    draw conclusions?  That's the number one question.

10    They are not asking us clinical evidence, clinical

11    experience.  I have my own bias about how this

12    panel could have been more of value to HCFA as an

13    advisory panel, and I will save that for my letters

14    to the Executive Committee, but I think our task

15    today has to stay focused in terms of what they

16    asked us to do.

17               If you look at the data on stress

18    incontinence and the E Stim, I think there are very

19    good trials there.  I think the problem goes back

20    to how many randomized control trials are necessary

21    for evidence, what threshold are we using, and if

22    we should use the same threshold we used

23    yesterday?  I think as my role as a primary

24    reviewer, and being a urogynecologist, having

25    experience clinically in this area, the problem I
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 1    see with the evidence put before us is one of

 2    variability.  We have some very good trials here.

 3    However, they're not really comparable in certain

 4    aspects, and Dr. Sand's trial used different

 5    modalities than other trials and that came out

 6    earlier, in that of the five trials that were

 7    reviewed comparing SUI to placebo, there are

 8    different frequencies, different devices used, and

 9    that may explain the varying outcomes.  That

10    doesn't help us with the issue of consistency of

11    data.  And that is one of the criteria to evaluate

12    adequacy of the scientific evidence.

13               So based on that, looking at my

14    breakdown, there was one trial that used

15    simultaneous therapy with two different

16    frequencies, there was one trial that used single

17    frequency, another trial at 20 hertz, another trial

18    that -- I'm not sure what the Laycock trial used.

19    Yamanishi, which is most comparable to Sand's in

20    terms of positive outcome towards showing a benefit

21    of stress UI, used 50 hertz, while Sand used

22    simultaneous frequent.  I'm not sure we can just

23    sort of lump this all together and say, even

24    address question 2, because of the lack of

25    consistency.
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 1               I also, to go on the topic of comparing

 2    it to other alternative therapies, I think we were

 3    not given a lot of data there and had small

 4    numbers, and really maybe don't have enough data to

 5    go by to determine whether there is additive

 6    benefit or not.

 7               And then in the third category, I really

 8    want to mention the urge incontinence.  We have two

 9    studies that are very good for us to look at.  I

10    don't think the urodynamic data of Brubaker's study

11    should be disregarded.  However, we are only

12    talking about two studies and small numbers of

13    patients, and missing data, and I think that limits

14    us, again, with making that decision on question 1

15    the way it's posed to us as a panel.

16               I think as a clinician, I would

17    interpret this data very differently and if we were

18    asked to give advice as a clinical panel of

19    experts, I think you would be getting a lot

20    different answers than what you're going to be

21    getting based on the questions as they're posed

22    now.

23               DR. GARBER:  Thank you, Lisa.  If I

24    could just beg the panel's indulgence, I just

25    wanted to raise a general question that was
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 1    prompted by Dr. Sand's comments first and now

 2    Dr. Landy's comments about the variability in

 3    treatments.  And I don't have any comments about

 4    the treatments we are discussing today, but I

 5    think, I wanted to flag this as an issue that will

 6    come up to us repeatedly.

 7               In many of the areas of medical

 8    literature that I follow more closely, a debate

 9    rages when you have multiple trials or studies of

10    similar but not absolutely identical

11    interventions.  Even radiology procedures where

12    they use different CT scan or protocols, or

13    cardiology studies, different ways of giving TPA or

14    streptokinases, there is always this question,

15    should you pool the studies together using

16    different variance on the procedures, or should you

17    keep them separate.

18               And the first point I would make is that

19    you can't turn to a statistics textbook to answer

20    that question.  That's really a judgment call.  On

21    the one hand, it is possible that some ways of

22    delivering, in fact it's likely that some ways of

23    delivering these therapies are better than others.

24    Rarely do you have direct trials designed to answer

25    that question.  And one of the reasons you don't is
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 1    they would ordinarily have to be huge trials to

 2    have statistical significance, to have adequate

 3    statistical power.

 4               And the other thing to keep in mind is

 5    that if you pool studies using different

 6    techniques, remember you're implicitly engaging in

 7    something called multiple comparisons.  And what I

 8    mean that is that when you pool the studies, there

 9    is a chance that one method, even if they're all

10    truly identical in terms of efficacy, one method

11    may look superior just by chance, because you have

12    multiple studies and you have a five percent

13    significance level or something.  If you do

14    multiple studies, one will show greater

15    effectiveness by chance.  And so that

16    statistician's answer in that situation is what

17    you've done, you've looked at the date, you've

18    generated a hypothesis, now you have to do a new

19    study to generate the hypothesis.

20               Well, that's clearly not something we're

21    going to engage in.  We as a panel in all these

22    situations will have to make a judgment call and

23    seek the best possible information about whether

24    it's appropriate to combine these different

25    variants or to say no, these are really treatments
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 1    and the trials of the different treatments should

 2    not be lumped together.

 3               Now the consequence of deciding not to

 4    lump together ordinarily is that, and I think it's

 5    probably true in this area, then you don't have the

 6    statistical power to draw conclusions very often.

 7    So that's what people who do meta-analysis

 8    constantly fret about, should I lump or should I

 9    split?  If I split, maybe that's fair in some ways,

10    but then we may lose the chance of answering the

11    question.

12               So, I'm just saying there's no right

13    answer, and I'm not trying to direct anybody's

14    thinking about this issue, but keep in mind that we

15    will probably come down to a judgment call on this

16    issue every time we encounter it, and I expect that

17    to be frequently.

18               Other panel comments or questions?

19    Diane, I think you were first.

20               MS. SMITH:  I just wanted to address the

21    panel just a little bit as your, one of your

22    technical experts.  And one of the problems with

23    looking at the studies and then answering the

24    questions is that in clinical practice how PFES is

25    being used is as an adjunctive therapy.  Now the
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 1    TEC report did address one study that looked at

 2    functional electronic stimulation as an adjunctive

 3    therapy, but one of the things that you can look at

 4    in order to see how clinicians are thinking about

 5    using electrical stimulation, how they're currently

 6    using them are not in randomized control trials but

 7    in descriptive studies or in case series studies,

 8    or in some of the studies that, for example,

 9    Dr. Mikel Gray talked about in his presentation.

10    And I'm referring to page 5 of his presentation if

11    you want to look at that.

12               What my point is is that one of the

13    things that clinicians routinely use functional

14    electrical stimulation for is for identification of

15    the pelvic floor muscle.  Now none of the studies

16    address whether or not it's efficacious to use

17    that, and yet it's common practice, okay?  So they

18    use it for identification, maybe for short-term use

19    for the patients in office to identify their

20    muscles and then comply with PME with biofeedback,

21    for example.

22               The second way the clinician sometimes

23    use functional electric stimulation is perhaps to

24    augment the behavioral treatment of a patient in

25    order to assure a certain amount of compliance.

00159

 1    And this is a clinical judgment in which the

 2    therapist or nurse decides that the patient would

 3    benefit from the augmentation of their PME routine

 4    at home by using functional electric stimulation.

 5    That's also not addressed in most of these trials,

 6    because you don't really have that factor measured

 7    and you don't really know what the clinical

 8    judgment is.

 9               So what I'm trying to explain to you is

10    that the studies test, as Dr. Perry said, the

11    effect of a drug, or the effect of just what is

12    FES.  Now Magnus Fall, in his many physiological

13    studies, did present a physiological basis for why

14    FES should work, and it is a neuromodulation type

15    of effect on a smooth muscle with lower frequency

16    of hertz, and a higher frequency of hertz for

17    striated muscle, for example, the pelvic floor.

18    And this is well accepted by clinicians and people

19    who routinely use FES in their practice, will use

20    higher frequency when they have stress patients,

21    will use lower frequency when they want to have,

22    let's say modulation of urge responses or

23    frequency, or urge incontinence.  And this is

24    really part of what people are currently doing.

25               If you want to look at some of the
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 1    interesting conclusions that Magnus Fall made about

 2    looking at all of the studies, I think that you do

 3    have to look at his 1998 article in which he

 4    basically talks pro and con FES in general, and he

 5    makes some important points for you to consider

 6    besides the ones I've already named.  One is that

 7    there is a physiological basis to FES.  And two,

 8    that it is in common practice in Europe and the

 9    United States, and since it is in common practice

10    in these areas, it would not have been so for the

11    last 15 or 20 years had there not been some

12    clinical efficacy to its use.

13               If you look at the trials, and I was

14    looking at the randomized control trial of Sand and

15    the ones that are mentioned in the TEC report, I

16    think there is a paucity of evidence that for

17    patients with stress UI as documented by urodynamic

18    evidence, that there is some improvement with FES.

19    There is perhaps a greater effect for patients that

20    have urge incontinence.  And as a geriatric nurse

21    practitioner, since we try to avoid pharmacotherapy

22    in many of our frail elderly patients, there are

23    many people who are treating these patients who

24    look at FES as an alternative or an adjunct to PME

25    in order to avoid pharmacotherapy.  And there is
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 1    evidence in some of the trials that you heard

 2    today, and there's actually very much more evidence

 3    in some of the case reports that urge incontinence

 4    is definitely mediated positively by FES.

 5               As far as the radical prostatectomy

 6    patient, there isn't a lot in the literature about

 7    that.  However, if you are going to think about

 8    alternative treatments for that population, it is a

 9    popular alternative that many clinicians use in

10    order to help the gentlemen understand and identify

11    their pelvic floor, because they've just had a

12    pelvic surgery and this may be a problem for them,

13    and it is a popular alternative that's being

14    considered by clinicians.

15               So, I just wanted to give you those

16    comments.

17               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Marshall?

18               DR. STANTON:  Thanks.  There's a lot of

19    interesting points that were raised today during

20    the presentations, I also want to echo your comment

21    about the excellent presentations, the quality that

22    was done today.  I'll just limit myself to two

23    questions.

24               The first is, regards something that

25    Dr. Lefevre mentioned but the question may better
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 1    be directed to Dr. Whyte, I'll let them decide who

 2    wants to address it.  And that was, in

 3    Dr. Lefevre's presentation when he was talking

 4    about the Bo study, this was the one with four

 5    different groups that were randomized, one of them

 6    being a control but not a placebo group, he

 7    mentioned that this one did not meet the selection

 8    criteria for the comparison of PFES to control

 9    because it was not placebo control.  And I noted in

10    Dr. Whyte's presentation, he listed in the

11    selection criteria placebo control, and I'm

12    wondering why that additional level of rigor was

13    added, when if you look at the Executive

14    Committee's interim recommendations for evaluating

15    effectiveness, which is a quite stringent criteria

16    for selection of studies for evidence, they do not

17    specify placebo control, they talk about control.

18    And that points out to me at least one study, that

19    I'm glad Dr. Lefevre honestly pointed out, why that

20    was not put in the analysis of the PFES versus

21    control, but it concerns me that, were there others

22    that were excluded from that analysis as well?

23               I have concern on that specifically as

24    it regards today's discussion, but I also have

25    concern for other panels and for our panel going
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 1    forward.  Do we as panel members have to be

 2    concerned about the selection process of the

 3    studies that are being reviewed?  Because I think

 4    it's difficult enough for us to actually review the

 5    ones that are given to us without having to look at

 6    the next level of how were these selected.

 7               DR. WHYTE:  I'll let Dr. Lefevre answer

 8    the specific question about why the Bo article may

 9    not have been included in the discussion of

10    placebo, although an important point is that it is

11    included as part of your materials to review prior

12    to the panel.  The part of the question that I

13    would answer is your discussion of whether or not

14    the panel would somehow have to review what the

15    selection criteria were or how essentially articles

16    were determined.  I think an important point to

17    keep in mind is that which Dr. Lefevre talked

18    about, in terms of that we used an accepted survey

19    instrument in terms of extracting the materials,

20    and we followed the general principles of a

21    systematic review.  So it wasn't as if we

22    arbitrarily decided which articles to accept or

23    what not to accept.  We framed the questions and

24    then determined how we would select the best

25    available evidence.  Let me turn to Dr. Lefevre to
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 1    answer specifically about the Bo issue.

 2               DR. STANTON:  But along those lines,

 3    John, my major concern is that you have gone a step

 4    beyond what the Executive Committee was

 5    recommending in types of articles that are adequate

 6    for evidence of efficacy.

 7               DR. GARBER:  Maybe I could just step in

 8    for a moment about what the Executive Committee

 9    recommended.  The Executive Committee in the

10    discussions made it absolutely clear they were not

11    prescribing which specific studies would be

12    acceptable every setting.  In fact, the major

13    message from the document said a variety of forms

14    of evidence would be suitable, and that the key

15    question would be, is this study design likely to

16    be free of bias.  And so the Executive Committee in

17    their discussions made it quite clear they didn't

18    think they could say you always need a double

19    blinded randomized control trial.  In fact, they

20    said that wasn't true.  Nor did they say that a

21    case control study will always be adequate.  They

22    left a great deal to the discretion of the

23    panelists in deciding what constituted adequate

24    evidence, but they asked the panel to adhere to the

25    principle of looking at studies that were likely to
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 1    be free of bias.  How you interpret that is really

 2    handled on a case-by-case.

 3               DR. LEFEVRE:  I think that Dr. Garber's

 4    point is very for important and I would echo that,

 5    and also say that whenever we're looking at a body

 6    of literature or a technology or a treatment, we

 7    would first want to say, what is the most

 8    appropriate and the most rigorous control that we

 9    can have, and that's going to vary by the type of

10    technology we're looking at.  For example, with

11    biofeedback, we did not try to look at placebo

12    controls, because it would be very difficult if not

13    impossible to construct a placebo control for

14    biofeedback.  Therefore, we agreed that the most

15    appropriate control group would be PME alone.

16               In this case, for PFES it's nice that

17    it's quite easy, or not maybe easy, but it's

18    appropriate to use a placebo control, where you can

19    use a sham instrument.  And this is the most

20    appropriate and the most rigorous type of control

21    that can be used with this technology to show

22    efficacy.  So for this technology in the clinical

23    context in which it's used, we feel that the most

24    important comparison is with a placebo control.

25    And we would always prefer a placebo control when
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 1    it's feasible to do that kind of control.  When

 2    it's not feasible to use that kind of control, we

 3    will consider the next level of control that might

 4    be most appropriate towards that particular

 5    technology.

 6               DR. STANTON:  I won't belabor that, but

 7    if I may ask a second different question that I

 8    will be a little briefer on, a number of speakers

 9    made reference to the AHCPR document on urinary

10    incontinence in adults, the clinical practice

11    guidelines.  And with it being mentioned a number

12    of times, it seemed like it was a very important

13    document and one that was formed by a panel of

14    experts, all in the field, looking over the

15    literature.  I just got a copy of this about an

16    hour ago and I can tell you there's no way I'm

17    going to be able to look at this and have any type

18    of input for this panel discussion based on what

19    these experts have said.

20               I know that HCFA has to filter the

21    materials that are sent to the panel.  Otherwise,

22    it would be an impossible task.  However, having

23    sent the TEC assessment, which is in some regards

24    similar to this expert opinion, I'm just wondering

25    why this did not meet the criteria for being sent
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 1    to the panels.  And also I'd be interested, am I

 2    the only one, or did anybody else on the panel

 3    receive this?

 4               DR. WHYTE:  If I could address your

 5    question, what we mailed to the panel was what the

 6    Executive Committee requested to be sent to the

 7    panel for consideration as part of a packet of

 8    material, which was a technology assessment and

 9    evidence tables, and that's what we submitted in

10    this circumstance, also with the articles.  Now, as

11    you may recall, in the cover letter that was sent

12    to you with the materials that I just mentioned was

13    a specific statement, there was a catalog of

14    materials, and on that catalog was the AHCPR

15    guidelines.  Specifically in that sentence about

16    the catalog, we said we would make it available,

17    any item on that, to any panel member which wished

18    to review it.

19               And we also had a conference call which

20    I think you were a part of, but I'm not completely

21    sure.  You're nodding your head that you were part

22    of that call.  If you remember as part of the call,

23    we spent considerable time on the items that were

24    part of the catalog.  Your colleague Diane Smith

25    asked for several items as part of the catalog, as
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 1    well as other members.  I made it specifically

 2    clear during that meeting that if there was any

 3    item that you wanted, you should request it.  So in

 4    all fairness, there was the opportunity to request

 5    that specific item if you so desired.

 6               DR. STANTON:  John, that's technically

 7    and legally correct.  However, I'm a humble

 8    cardiologist, so to look at a number of different

 9    things in the urologic literature that are listed

10    as things that I could request, I think is somewhat

11    unfair to me.

12               DR. GARBER:  Maybe I could interject,

13    since I bear some responsibility.  One of my formal

14    responsibilities as chair is to consult with the

15    HCFA staff about what should be included, and we

16    always make a judgment call.  I can tell you when

17    we heard from the first two panels that met, they

18    resented the overwhelming amount of material that

19    they received.  We tried to strike a balance.  I

20    won't say that we don't make mistakes in this, and

21    that's why we asked for active panel input every

22    step of the way about what materials should be

23    included.  So I actually think it might have been a

24    good thing to include this in the materials sent

25    out to everyone.  And let me just say that we're
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 1    learning as we're going, and you as panelists, as

 2    you see the provisional lists and when we have

 3    those conference calls, we kind of need to identify

 4    materials that are important.  I suspect, if the

 5    rest of you are anything like me, that if you got a

 6    copy of every single material that was sent in, you

 7    would feel overwhelmed, and so we do have to make

 8    some judgment call, and I apologize if we didn't

 9    press hard to include that in the packet of

10    materials, but that is a responsibility of the

11    chair to consult with HCFA staff and that is not

12    something I pressed for.

13               DR. RISAGER:  Just briefly, I would like

14    to say I loved the way it was organized and we had

15    the opportunity, but everyone has a different view

16    of what they would like.  For me, this was just

17    right.

18               DR. GARBER:  Michael Maves.

19               DR. MAVES:  I've actually made a couple

20    of comments to Connie and to the staff, and I want

21    to join with Michael in saying they did a wonderful

22    job.  I might suggest however, and this might be

23    something we should take back to the Executive

24    Committee, is that when there is a relevant AHCPR

25    guideline, which as we all know, tends to be sort
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 1    of the Bible if you will, of guidelines, it's

 2    probably appropriate to include it.  And I made a

 3    suggestion to Connie to perhaps include some

 4    selected relevant testimony when it's available

 5    ahead of time so that we sort of have not only the

 6    pro or the con, but the other side of the

 7    argument.  So again, I think they have done a

 8    wonderful job and have struck a nice balance, but

 9    as I've gone through it, it would have been helpful

10    in looking at the information to have an idea or

11    insight of what the opposite argument might

12    potentially be.

13               DR. GARBER:  Les?

14               DR. ZENDLE:  I guess I view the

15    technology assessment as helping us look at the

16    evidence that meets a certain level and put it into

17    evidence tables so that we can understand it.  So

18    the question I would have, and Frank, maybe you can

19    answer this, is there any evidence in this that

20    would have met the level that you had decided, the

21    Executive Committee decided to frame the questions,

22    and be relevant to this discussion, that wasn't

23    included in the TEC assessment?  I would assume no,

24    because otherwise it would have come up on the

25    MEDLINE search.
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 1               DR. LEFEVRE:  No.  The two randomized

 2    control trials that were discussed in the AHCPR

 3    guidelines were included in the TEC assessment.  We

 4    had additional evidence that has come out since the

 5    AHCPR guidelines has been done.  The rest of the

 6    evidence considered by AHCPR were uncontrolled

 7    studies.

 8               DR. ZENDLE:  And also, and this is

 9    really trying to answer a different question than

10    at least we so far have been asked to answer.

11               DR. GARBER:  Diane, you had your hand

12    up.

13               MS. SMITH:  I just wanted to make a

14    comment since we're just discussing the materials.

15    It was really nice for the electrical stimulation

16    half to have all the articles, even those that were

17    sort of not considered by the TEC committee.  I

18    really appreciated that.  It gave me a very easy

19    way to review things.  And I had to go search

20    things for the biofeedback, and I think that is

21    really not a good idea.  And so, I would encourage

22    you since you're spending so much time reviewing

23    the literature, you know what relevant articles

24    people are interested in, the way they were

25    included for stim was really great, I thought.
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 1               DR. GARBER:  Logan.

 2               DR. HOLTGREWE:  Well, Les more or less

 3    made my point.  I would just remind everyone that

 4    the AHCPR guidelines on incontinence came out in

 5    '96 based on literature that is now at least half

 6    a decade old, and the two papers that you discussed

 7    were in the materials.  The other guidelines were

 8    in '92, they're a decade old.  And I have been

 9    involved in AHCPR guideline production and it takes

10    a year or so to get it done.  So you're looking at

11    decade old material in the case of the '92

12    guidelines, a half a decade old material in the

13    case of the  '96 guidelines.  I agree with Les that

14    the AHCPR guidelines were aimed at a somewhat

15    different direction than this panel's charge and

16    responsibility.

17               DR. GARBER:  Arnie?

18               DR. EPSTEIN:  I do want to -- I hope I

19    have this right.  I want to correct what I think

20    was a misstatement about the AHCPR conclusions.

21    What I heard earlier was that Type B evidence

22    refers to evidence that reflects the strength of

23    clinical trials.  Am I speaking incorrectly?

24               SPEAKER:  Clinical series.

25               DR. EPSTEIN:  Let me read to you what it
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 1    does say, so at least there is no confusion amongst

 2    the panel.  Type A is, the recommendation is

 3    supported by scientific evidence from properly

 4    designed and implemented controlled trial providing

 5    statistical results that consistently support the

 6    guideline stated.  B, the recommendation is

 7    supported by scientific evidence from properly

 8    designed and implemented clinical series that

 9    support the guideline statement.  And C, the

10    recommendation is supported by expert opinion.  And

11    I guess that's consistent with what you were

12    saying, and that innuendo reflects the strength of

13    their opinion and it sounds like in the subsequent

14    years, there have been three additional studies

15    which provide less consistent evidence.  Is that

16    fair to say?

17               DR. LEFEVRE:  It's fair to say.  There

18    was one study we looked at, Laycock, which was

19    published in '93, which was not in the AHCPR.  It

20    was published in a less high profile journal, so

21    that was -- the other two studies were published

22    since the guidelines had come out.

23               DR. GARBER:  Let me ask, this is a

24    little bit early for it, but are the speakers who

25    are scheduled -- oh, we don't have any scheduled
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 1    for this session.

 2               All right.  If there's no objection, I

 3    thought we would move on to the open public

 4    comments period now.  Does the panel agree?

 5    Arnie?

 6               DR. EPSTEIN:  I would just like to

 7    request that unlike yesterday, if the open comments

 8    could really direct pertinent to the evidence and

 9    the task at hand?  I think we've gone through a

10    long two days and I don't want to relive the

11    clinical scientific controversy again if we can

12    avoid it.

13               DR. GARBER:  Okay, thank you.  We now

14    enter into the period of open public comments.

15               MS. CONRAD:  Okay.  Yes.

16               DR. SAND:  Peter Sand, from Northwestern

17    University.  I wanted to speak to some of the

18    questions and things that arose after my earlier

19    presentation today.  First just briefly, the

20    Yamanishi study that was discussed for stress

21    incontinence, not the one that was just introduced

22    by Dr. Bent from last month in the journal titled

23    Urology, this was a randomized control trial; it

24    was also double blinded, which would make it hard

25    to understand how it wouldn't be randomized.
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 1               In our trial, and the excellent review

 2    that Dr. Lefevre provided us with, there were no

 3    dropouts in that study for lack of efficacy.

 4    Within the body of paper that's referenced, three

 5    of the active group could not comply with the visit

 6    schedule, two withdrew because of some vaginal

 7    irritation, one dropped because of some urgency

 8    with the device in the second week of a 12-week

 9    study, and one dropped because her stress

10    incontinence was actually resolved, and she was

11    having problems with her diverticulitis, and needed

12    hospitalization for antibiotic therapy and couldn't

13    comply beyond that with study visits.  The one sham

14    patient who withdrew was because of problems with

15    complying with the visit schedule.

16               In that study also, Frank brought up the

17    point that there may be a selection bias in that we

18    have a difference in patient age.  We were

19    concerned about this and in a secondary publication

20    within the International Urogynecologic Journal,

21    1997, we analyzed those patients over and under the

22    age of 65, and found no differences for outcome.

23    That was not picked up in the survey of articles

24    that were reviewed in the TEC report, nor would I

25    expect it to be.
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 1               In addition, there was some concern

 2    about the variability of our measures.  I'm not a

 3    statistician, I really don't know how to assess

 4    that at all.  I think it's difficult.  These were

 5    standard measures, pad tests and voiding diaries,

 6    that in a double blinded study we wouldn't expect

 7    either the investigators or the participants to be

 8    able to manipulate these.  To further reflect on

 9    that, we did a subanalysis at the end of the study

10    that was not published in this paper because I

11    hoped to write a subsequent paper on the difficulty

12    of randomized control trials, where we asked the

13    patients at the end of the study, did the know what

14    device they were using?  60 percent of the patients

15    guessed incorrectly as to what device they were

16    using.  87 percent of the investigators guessed

17    wrong as to what device the patients were using.

18    So I don't think we could have really interfered or

19    biased the results based on that sort of analysis

20    of the blind.

21               In addition, if we bag the stress

22    incontinence information or we put that aside for a

23    moment, I think it's important to recognize that

24    with the introduction of the latest data from

25    Yamanishi in the March study, last month, which
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 1    obviously no one has been able to analyze

 2    thoroughly, that we have three randomized control

 3    trials which all show by different measures that

 4    electrical stimulation is effective, more effective

 5    than placebo in treating detrusor instability and

 6    its symptoms of urgency, frequency and urge

 7    incontinence.

 8               Whatever the measures are, for example

 9    in the Brubaker study where you don't have the

10    measures of the voiding diaries or pad tests, you

11    do have urodynamic data.  In the other studies, you

12    do have the measures that were reviewed in the text

13    study.  So it's hard for me to understand in three

14    rather large studies looking at detrusor

15    instability how we couldn't conclude that there is

16    a significant effect beyond the effect of placebo.

17    Thank you very much.

18               DR. GARBER:  Dr. Sand, could I just ask

19    you a clarifying question?  At the beginning of

20    your comments, you went through the dropouts.  The

21    intent to treat question was, did you attribute the

22    outcomes among the dropouts, were they included in

23    the group of initial assignment, or you not able to

24    get outcomes for the reasons that you mentioned for

25    those people?
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 1               DR. SAND:  The outcomes were obtained at

 2    study closure.  So when the patients dropped from

 3    that trial, they were assessed for their subjective

 4    and objective outcomes.  The exception was, two

 5    patients refused to comply.

 6               DR. GARBER:  So everyone except those

 7    two patients had their outcomes attributed to one

 8    or the other arms of the trial?

 9               DR. SAND:  Yes, they did.

10               DR. SPURLOCK:  John Spurlock, from

11    Bethlehem, Pennsylvania.  Yesterday I presented our

12    presentation concerning electrical stimulation

13    combined with biofeedback for urge incontinence and

14    you have copies of those graphs from yesterday.

15    But I didn't have time to state yesterday, or it

16    was inappropriate because it was dealing more with

17    electrical stimulation, was an important component

18    and use of PFES.  As a clinician, I'm often, I know

19    that this therapy works, I know my patients are

20    going to get better, but what do I do in the

21    patient that cannot demonstrate any type of pelvic

22    floor contraction, they can't do a Kegel.

23    Therefore, biofeedback, there's nothing to train

24    there.  The advantages of electrical stimulation or

25    several weeks of electrical stimulation is that it
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 1    will produce adequate contractility and identify,

 2    allow the patient to identify and begin contracting

 3    the pelvic floor muscles.

 4               And I think that's a very important

 5    point about electrical stimulation, it allows me as

 6    a clinician to get these patients over the hump so

 7    to speak, to the point where they can begin to,

 8    whatever therapy you decide is adequate after that

 9    point, to begin contracting those muscles.  Thank

10    you.

11               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Dr. Angus

12    McBryde, I think had his hand up before.

13               DR. McBRYDE:  Yeah.  While Dr. Sand was

14    at it, I just had a question.  As an orthopedist,

15    we use a lot of muscle stimulators and muscle

16    stimulation, for instance for chronic back and for

17    rehabilitation after total joints, and there is

18    indeed a great variability in the duration and all

19    the other parameters of the hardware.  And I just

20    want to hear you say again, I know you mentioned it

21    in your talk, but what, in the context of the

22    positive and negative articles as we heard

23    Dr. Lefevre broach them, how big a factor do you

24    think the variability of the different products

25    that were used was?  Again, can you tell me that?
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 1               DR. SAND:  Even greater than the

 2    pronunciation of Frank Lefevre's name.

 3               DR. McBRYDE:  I did pretty well.

 4               DR. STANTON:  Just for the record, I

 5    think it's really a shame that this wonderful young

 6    investigator has done all this work for us and

 7    we're still not all sure how to pronounce his

 8    name.  I think if the panel concludes anything, we

 9    should conclude that.

10               DR. SAND:  There is really significant

11    variability when we look at over 200 studies in the

12    literature, because of the numerous commercial

13    devices that are out there.  With the Yamanishi

14    device, the pulse duration of this device was 1

15    millisecond.  The pulse duration of the device

16    reported in our trial was .3 milliseconds.  The

17    pulse duration is uniquely different in the devices

18    used in the Luber and Brubaker trial, these were

19    the same; they both used the same device and that

20    was 2 milliseconds.

21               In basic science research in cats that

22    Magnus Fall did in his original treatise on

23    electrical stimulation some 30 years ago, they

24    favored 2 milliseconds, along with a frequency of

25    10 hertz, for the stimulation and treatment of
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 1    detrusor instability that was invoked in cats.  Now

 2    they concluded that this was their recommendation,

 3    and they also had some practical concerns regarding

 4    amperage, voltage, expending batteries and having a

 5    practical device electronically.  But this became

 6    the norm for treatment in detrusor instability.

 7    And then when companies that tried to formulate new

 8    devices, they had to be electronically unique in

 9    order to patent them.  And so, we have come up with

10    numerous devices that stimulate in different ways.

11               If I can just segue, the panel has

12    brought up the point and it's great, yesterday and

13    today, why don't we have better studies when

14    there's so many patients with this problem?  This

15    is probably not perfectly appropriate for this

16    panel, but I mean, one thing to realize is to do

17    these trials, it took me four years to convince the

18    U.S. Corporation to fund our trial.  The Brubaker

19    trial was supported by the American Urogynecologic

20    Society tangentially, and they were given free

21    stimulators.  Part of their problem with being able

22    to collect the data completely was no funding and

23    not enough manpower and resources.  We are never

24    going to get the data if we don't have some

25    reimbursement.  I know that is not the issued of

00182

 1    the panel, but it is an explanation of a question

 2    that keeps coming up.  It's very difficult, very

 3    expensive.

 4               MS. CONRAD:  I think Dr. Whitmore was

 5    next.

 6               DR. WHITMORE:  Yes, just very briefly, I

 7    wanted to review what it means to use a sham device

 8    for PFES.  Normally, patient is brought in,

 9    evaluated, and a practitioner works with the

10    patient on how to use the device, and the intensity

11    is turned up until the patient feels a contraction

12    and usually the practitioner will see an anal wink

13    or a contraction.  Now, when you get into an RCT

14    with a sham device, and the way it was done in the

15    Sand trial, and I didn't understand this until it

16    became part of the trial, the patients are not

17    given any instruction.  The inactive or sham device

18    and the active device are given to the patient, and

19    the patient is told to turn the device up to a

20    certain number.  Therefore, in the active group, we

21    cannot be assured that they are reaching maximal

22    intensity, which is required to sometimes get a

23    pelvic floor contraction for stress incontinence,

24    or to inhibit a bladder contraction for urge

25    incontinence.  Therefore, we may be underestimating
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 1    our results.

 2               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Please identify

 3    yourself.

 4               MS. GARDNER:  My name is Pat Gardner.

 5    I'm director of reimbursement for a very small

 6    medical products company called Tim Medical

 7    Technologies out of Minnesota, and I don't have a

 8    question and I don't have any clinical data to

 9    support or provide, but I do have a statement I

10    would like to make.  My understanding of the

11    procedures that are being followed in the

12    legislation, and from the notice establishing the

13    Medicare Coverage Advisory Committee, that there

14    are several options available to HCFA once the

15    panel and the Executive Committee have completed

16    their work.  They can either issue a national

17    coverage policy for the therapy, issue a national

18    noncoverage policy as they did with PFES in the

19    early '90s, issue a coverage policy with

20    limitations as they did with Contagium, make no

21    decision and therefore leave the decision of

22    coverage in the hands of the carriers.

23               Dr. Hill stated earlier today that

24    industry wants us, HCFA, to make evidence based

25    coverage decisions.  He also mentioned industry's
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 1    desire for more transparency to the coverage

 2    process.  Dr. Hill and other HCFA representatives,

 3    and also Dr. Garber, stressed to the panel and the

 4    audience today that all evidence would be taken

 5    into consideration in rendering a coverage

 6    decision.

 7               Taking all that into account, I am still

 8    left with the opinion that transparency of the

 9    coverage decision process has not been met.  While

10    I now have access to these panel meetings as

11    required under law, and as opposed to the previous

12    process under the technology advisory committee

13    meetings, and I do find this process incredibly

14    educational, the actual process HCFA will use for

15    weighing all the evidence is still unknown.  Again,

16    therefore, the test of transparency has not been

17    met as I see it.  Thus, I'm left to conclude that

18    HCFA's coverage decisions will, in fact must focus

19    solely on the issue of whether the scientific

20    evidence is adequate to draw conclusions about the

21    therapy's effectiveness.

22               And to discount all other evidence since

23    there is no mechanism, at least none stated to

24    assign a weight to the other evidence provided to

25    it, as such, I agree with Dr. Stanton's comments
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 1    made at the start of today's meeting, that new

 2    technology, and none of the technologies we've

 3    talked about in the last two days are new, will be

 4    stifled under this process, because the scientific

 5    evidence will likely never be adequate to draw

 6    conclusions, because the cost and time required to

 7    collect such evidence is cost prohibitive,

 8    especially for small start-up companies.

 9               I would recommend that the panel urge

10    the Executive Committee to address the issue of

11    weighting nonscientific evidence, or if that is not

12    the purview of the MCAC Executive Committee or

13    these panels, to urge HCFA coverage and analysis

14    group to state its methodology for weighing all

15    types of evidence and testimony.  Thank you.

16               DR. GARBER:  I believe that comment was

17    primarily about procedural issues, most of which

18    are outside the purview of this panel, but I wonder

19    if Dr. Hill would care to make a comment.

20               DR. HILL:  Just to thank you and to urge

21    your participation in and support for our efforts

22    to publish a regulation which defines what we think

23    Congress meant when it told us to pay for that

24    which is reasonable and necessary.

25               MS. JENSEN:  I'm Deborah Jensen from
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 1    EMPI.  I guess my comments at this point in time

 2    are really addressed to what the question the panel

 3    should be answering is, and I want to make one

 4    point of clarification with respect to the current

 5    Medicare coverage policy for PFS.  I'm not sure if

 6    all of the panel is aware; right now, this

 7    technology does have a national noncoverage policy

 8    that was instituted in 1994.  What this means from

 9    a patient point of view is that under no

10    circumstances can any patient under the Medicare

11    program receive reimbursement for this technology,

12    regardless of the clinical situation and the

13    judgment of their clinician.  There is no

14    opportunity for appeal.  And earlier this morning,

15    I talked about the fact that what does that mean

16    from a scientific point of view?  This decision

17    seems to imply that the scientific literature has

18    demonstrated that this therapy is either not safe

19    or not effective for any beneficiary, and I think a

20    careful review of the literature does not allow

21    this particular conclusion to be drawn.  Thank you.

22               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Yes?

23               MS. WEST:  My name is Linda West.  I'm a

24    nurse and I have done biofeedback since the

25    mid-1970s and have been involved with pelvic floor
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 1    work for the past 15 years.  I'm currently a

 2    consultant with SRS Medical Systems, which is a

 3    biofeedback instrumentation company.  I teach for

 4    them.  I wanted to maybe offer an answer as to why

 5    there are no more studies.  When you go through

 6    medical school and as a nurse, when we went through

 7    nursing school, we were not taught behavioral

 8    techniques.  We were taught about medications and

 9    surgery, and it's only been recently in the last

10    few years that it has become more aware that

11    behavioral techniques can be an adjunct to medical

12    practice.  So when you're trained as a surgeon or

13    to use medications, you really don't think about

14    using the behavioral techniques.  And the

15    physicians that we have had going through workshops

16    and that I have done on-site in-services with

17    become more acutely aware that there's more to this

18    than just squeeze and relax as they have been

19    telling patients.  So I think if we, you know,

20    hopefully in my lifetime, medical schools will

21    begin to teach behavioral techniques and the

22    appropriateness of using them as an adjunct to

23    medical practice.  Thank you.

24               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Yes.

25               DR. WHITMAN:  Hi.  My name's Lisa
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 1    Whitman.  I am the director of clinical research

 2    and regulatory affairs for EMPI.  First of all, I'd

 3    like to compliment Dr. Lefevre and his colleagues

 4    for a fine job on the technology assessment,

 5    considering it's one of the best jobs I have seen,

 6    at least in reviewing the basis of incontinence,

 7    and I would also like to sympathize with him for

 8    the mispronunciations, because with a name like

 9    Rugermanhyniak (phonetic), I can feel his pain.

10               One point of clarification with regard

11    to the review that I discussed with him is in

12    reviewing the Karri Bo study --

13               DR. GARBER:  Please speak up into the

14    microphone.

15               DR. ZENDLE:  Hearing aids aren't covered

16    by Medicare.

17               DR. WHITMAN:  With regard to the Karri

18    Bo study, within the groups, I would contend that

19    there is a performance bias issue because the PME

20    group actually had visits into the clinic on a

21    weekly basis, whereas the other groups only went in

22    on a monthly basis, so it was 24 visits versus 6

23    visits for the other groups, and I just wanted to

24    make that clarification.  Thank you.

25               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Yes?
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 1               MS. SEMPLE:  I'm Carolyn Semple.  I'm a

 2    registered nurse and I work for seven urologists.

 3    I just wanted to go on record as saying that I had

 4    a man ten years post-prostatectomy, and he had

 5    never been dry.  He came in and I asked him to do a

 6    bladder chart and he just laughed at me.  I leak

 7    all day.  But with electrical stim he is now

 8    voiding.  And so I think that's important to know,

 9    that we can treat these people with electrical

10    stim.  Thank you.

11               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Frank.

12               DR. LEFEVRE:  It is pronounced Lefevre.

13    And I think Dr. Whitman is correct; she pointed out

14    that there is a difference in the intensity of

15    treatment in the Bo study, and I wanted to just

16    clarify that.  That was an error in the TEC

17    report.  It wouldn't change the conclusions,

18    because even though Bo did show an improvement as

19    compared to the pelvic floor, we don't think the

20    body of evidence is sufficient to make that

21    conclusion, and we said that.  So that was an

22    error, but I don't think it would change at all the

23    overall conclusions.

24               But the real point I wanted to make was

25    regarding the issue of future studies being done.
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 1    I disagree with the statement that if a noncoverage

 2    policy is issued and if the panel decides that the

 3    evidence is inadequate, that that will suppress

 4    future studies.  I believe the opposite is true.  I

 5    believe if a coverage decision is issued, and that

 6    this is covered, there will be no further incentive

 7    to do the studies.  This is the case with many

 8    technologies, old technologies in the past, where

 9    they've been disseminated without good studies,

10    they become the standard of care, and we never get

11    the good studies.  I believe that if the panel

12    recommends that the evidence is inadequate, and a

13    noncoverage policy is issued, this should stimulate

14    further studies to be done.  I understand the

15    difficulty with the funding issues and the

16    difficulty in doing studies.  I would hope that

17    someone would pick up the ball on this and take

18    charge and recognize the need to fund these

19    studies, whether that be HCFA, NIH, Blue Cross Blue

20    Shield, or somebody with the appropriate resources

21    to do so.  And I believe that is true.

22               DR. STANTON:  I'd like to comment.  Dr.

23    Lefevre, I think you're dead wrong on that.  One

24    example is implantable cardiac defibrillators.

25    They were approved and are covered by HCFA, by
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 1    Medicare, and the definitive study showing that

 2    implantable defibrillators prolong life compared to

 3    antiarrhythmic drugs in people who suffer sudden

 4    death was just published in 1998, the Avid trial.

 5    HCFA initiated coverage of ICDs in 1985.  That's

 6    one example; I could give you many others.

 7               I'd also like to say that as someone who

 8    oversees all the arrhythmia management clinicals in

 9    a very large medical device company, that you're

10    also wrong about noncoverage not inhibiting future

11    trials.  I guarantee you, it will inhibit future

12    trials, because you get noncoverage from Medicare,

13    you also get insurance companies that follow suit

14    and all of a sudden there is noncoverage for that

15    technology for everyone in the United States.

16               DR. GARBER:  All right.  We've actually

17    begun to stray rather far from the questions in

18    front of us.  These are extremely interesting

19    questions and we could have a spirited debate, and

20    they are relevant to HCFA's coverage decision

21    making process, but I'm afraid this panel is not

22    the right place, and this is the sort of comment

23    that I believe is appropriate to submit to HCFA in

24    the Executive Committee, but I would like to stay

25    focused on incontinence please.  Yes.
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 1               MS. PALUMBO:  Mary Val Palumbo.  I'm

 2    representing the Continence Coalition, a group of

 3    nurses providing incontinence therapy across the

 4    country.  I do believe HCFA wants to from a

 5    clinician.  I don't think they would have put a

 6    consumer representative on the panel unless they

 7    did.

 8               I want to make the point that, I'd like

 9    to describe the different ways a clinician may use

10    the research that was presented.  I would like to

11    emphasize that the studies do no provide evidence

12    that E Stim is not effective, and here are several

13    examples of how electrical stimulation may be used

14    in clinical practice in combination with other

15    therapies.

16               Dr. Spurlock talked about the woman who

17    could not identify a pelvic muscle contraction, so

18    electrical stimulation would be used right then and

19    there to show her how to contract the muscles.  And

20    older woman with urge incontinence might be seen

21    for six visits in a row where a combination of

22    behavioral therapy, voiding diaries, biofeedback,

23    and electrical stimulation at the 10 hertz level

24    would be used in office visits.  If the woman Dr.

25    Spurlock talked about, an older woman who did not

00193

 1    want to have surgery, was unable to meet her goals

 2    after a six-month period with PMEs on her own, she

 3    could be offered a home electrical stimulation

 4    unit.

 5               So there is really different ways to use

 6    electrical stimulation for an incontinent patient

 7    and it's an adjunct to behavioral therapy.  Thank

 8    you.

 9               DR. GARBER:  Yes.

10               DR. NORTHROP:  I'm Steve Northrop.  I'm

11    the executive director of the Medical Device

12    Manufacturers Association.  In the interest of full

13    disclosure, I should note that EMPI is a member of

14    our association.

15               I just want to make one point, to

16    reiterate what Dr. Stanton said and to correct the

17    panel's impression if they have one from what Dr.

18    Lefevre said.  If there is a national noncoverage,

19    there is no one who will pick up the ball.  The

20    ball will not picked up.  HCFA won't pick it up,

21    NIH won't pick it up.  I think it's important for

22    the panel to recognize that, that there is no one

23    that picks up the ball.

24               DR. GARBER:  I congratulate you.  You do

25    have the last word on that subject.  I am going to
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 1    call anyone out of order on this question, and I'm

 2    sorry.  We really need to stick to the questions

 3    before us about the adequacy of evidence and the

 4    effectiveness of the technology.  Les?

 5               DR. ZENDLE:  I don't know if you want to

 6    do six motions, or three motions.

 7               DR. GARBER:  We're still in public

 8    session.  Any other public comments?  I didn't mean

 9    to turn off discussion, just on that subject.

10               MR. CONNELLY:  My name is Jerry

11    Connelly.  I'm senior vice president for health

12    policy of the American Physical Therapy

13    Association.  I appreciate the dilemma that the

14    panel is being placed in and I would not trade

15    places with any of you at this point in time.  I

16    think that the issue that was raised today as well

17    as raised yesterday relative to the question of

18    adequacy is the main dilemma that you have.

19    Dr. Lefevre did say that there is some evidence,

20    some suggestion of efficacy, but he said that the

21    data in their opinion was just not that robust.

22    Where is the cutting point here?  What is

23    adequate?  What is the judgment call that was

24    called for yesterday?  Where is the adequacy?

25    Maybe this is efficacious and maybe this is as good
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 1    as clinical trials get when human subjects are the

 2    study case.  So you're in a very difficult position

 3    to decide what is adequate, and what is not.

 4               There is demonstration of efficacy,

 5    there is evidence from the clinic that this

 6    intervention is necessary and effective, and that

 7    it ought to be an option for patients.  But where

 8    is that judgment call and how do you come down on

 9    the side of adequacy when there is evidence of

10    efficacy, but there may not be the robustness,

11    there may not the numbers of studies, there may not

12    be the convincing evidence.  But is it adequate or

13    not?  You're in a very difficult position.

14               MS. GREENBERGER:  I really think that

15    this definition is really key and although we're

16    not supposed to talk about it, it goes back to the

17    previous comments, because what I'm concerned about

18    is that new technologies come more quickly, that

19    we're always going to be faced with this, that

20    we're never going to have enough randomized

21    clinical trials to base this kind of decision upon,

22    and we're going to lose the opportunity to have a

23    lot of new therapies and devices that we might

24    otherwise have.  And I think it's going to chill

25    research in those area, because how long can small
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 1    companies wait to find out whether they are going

 2    to have coverage, and why would other companies do

 3    investigations of those same areas when they're

 4    struggling like this?  So I think this question is

 5    very important, because we may never have enough

 6    scientific evidence on a lot of these devices and

 7    therapeutics that are coming so quickly, and how

 8    can we base a judgment on this?

 9               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Let me just

10    ask, the period for public comment is drawing to a

11    close.  Are there any other people who wish to be

12    heard before we turn to open panel deliberations.

13               Okay.  We now move to the phase of open

14    panel deliberations.  Les?

15               DR. ZENDLE:  I want to try the opposite

16    approach of what I suggested yesterday, split

17    rather than lump.  And since there are three sort

18    of comparisons and three parameters or diagnoses,

19    stress incontinence, urge incontinence, and

20    post-prostatectomy incontinence, I would suggest

21    that we discuss and then vote when we're discussing

22    on those nine parameters one at a time, and

23    starting with PFES compared with placebo first,

24    with stress incontinence, then urge incontinence,

25    and then post-prostatectomy incontinence.  And I
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 1    would word it a positive so that:

 2               I would move that there is enough

 3    evidence, scientific evidence adequate to draw

 4    conclusions.  So that a yes vote means you think

 5    there is enough evidence and a no vote means you

 6    don't think there's enough evidence.

 7               DR. GARBER:  All right.  I'm just trying

 8    to --

 9               DR. ZENDLE:  So the first motion then

10    would be, if somebody seconds it:  Move that there

11    is enough scientific evidence adequate to draw

12    conclusions about PFES compared to placebo in

13    stress incontinence.

14               DR. GARBER:  So the first comparison

15    would be the first vote.  Is there a second to that

16    motion?  This is a procedural motion.

17               DR. EPSTEIN:  I hesitate to do it,

18    having gone down this track yesterday.  I feel like

19    we are a fated combo, to withdraw it as soon as we

20    do it, but I am going to tentatively second it.

21               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  Is there a

22    discussion on the motion to divide the question

23    that way for voting purposes?  If not, all in

24    favor?

25               DR. LANDY:  Of the motion?

00198

 1               DR. ZENDLE:  Of the procedure.

 2               DR. GARBER:  Yeah.  The motion is on the

 3    procedure to evaluate the procedures.

 4               (Unanimous vote from the panel.)

 5               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  I think it's a

 6    procedural matter, so I don't think we have to

 7    explain ourselves here.  Okay.

 8               DR. MAVES:  Mr. Chairman, point of

 9    order.  I wonder if Connie has to do her thing.

10               MS. CONRAD:  It was unanimous, so we're

11    okay.  I already listed the voting members for this

12    panel.

13               DR. GARBER:  So now we are dealing with,

14    if I understand this correctly, with the first

15    question, and it's PFES compared to placebo in

16    stress incontinence.  So then, if we go this route,

17    we're going to do nine votes on questions.  Arnie.

18               DR. EPSTEIN:  Is it open for discussion

19    at this point?

20               DR. GARBER:  Yes.

21               DR. EPSTEIN:  Am I allowed to request

22    one of the public members provide some

23    information?

24               DR. GARBER:  Yes.

25               DR. EPSTEIN:  I have Dr. Lefevre's
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 1    written report in front of me which makes a fairly

 2    clear case about why the evidence is not adequate.

 3    I would wonder whether I could ask Dr. Sand to

 4    speak again and repeat, for stress incontinence,

 5    which has five studies, three consistent studies,

 6    or three studies showing some effect, why he thinks

 7    that evidence is adequate?  And I guess I would ask

 8    him to speak to not only adequacy in general but

 9    for external generalizability to the Medicare

10    population.  And this is a token that, if you can

11    do this in a compelling way, it will help.

12               DR. SAND:  Well, far be it for me to

13    sway anyone's vote at the last moment.  But my

14    point was that I specifically looked at four, there

15    are four sham controlled randomized studies:

16    Yamanishi, Sand, Brubaker and Luber.  I felt that

17    these were all well designed studies and we have

18    two of those showing no benefit for stress

19    incontinence, and two of those showing benefit for

20    stress incontinence.  And like Dr. Lefevre's point

21    about instability of the data, and the negative

22    effects in the control groups in the Yamanishi

23    study and my study, I don't know how to fully

24    factor that in based on the clinical blind that I

25    discussed earlier in recent comments.
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 1               But what we have are well designed

 2    studies that seem to show divergent results or

 3    conflicting results.  When I look at those data and

 4    I look at what was done, there were two things that

 5    stood out to me immediately.  One, Brubaker and

 6    Luber were done with one device, and that device

 7    has been shown in my practice as well as in Dr.

 8    Brubaker's study to be very efficacious in treating

 9    detrusor instability, urgency and frequency.  The

10    device we use, I still use to treat genuine stress

11    incontinence, it seems to work very very well.  So

12    rather than saying I have four studies, two versus

13    two, I felt that I had one device that wasn't very

14    good for stress incontinence and another device, or

15    if we consider Yamanishi's, two other devices that

16    are very good for genuine stress incontinence.  If

17    we pick up on that in the uncontrolled literature,

18    I think that point is well reverberated.

19               The other thing to consider that hasn't

20    come up in the discussions either, to be fair, is

21    another wrench in the program.  In our trial, we

22    excluded people who had prior PFS and prior PFMEs

23    with biofeedback.  Karl deliberately excluded

24    people who were unsuccessful.  So we were trying to

25    find a very pure cell of people who hadn't been
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 1    exposed to this, where we could show them maximal

 2    effect.  Perhaps Karl had biased this group because

 3    he took out the people who were going to perform

 4    with some sort of pelvic floor muscle strength

 5    thing, because of neuromuscular changes.  And so

 6    that can explain the differences perhaps also in

 7    those two studies.

 8               DR. EPSTEIN:  Thank you very much.

 9               DR. SAND:  Thank you.

10               DR. HILL:  I'm sorry.  The little

11    tete-a-tete up here was because I thought the

12    question was whether or not a question could be

13    asked of one of the members of the committee and

14    not from the floor, and I misunderstood.  I'm

15    afraid as a procedural issue, we have to keep it to

16    the committee discussion at this point in the

17    program.

18               DR. EPSTEIN:  It's done.

19               DR. HILL:  Yeah, strike that.

20               (Laughter.)

21               DR. ZENDLE:  Call the question.

22               DR. GARBER:  There's not a motion on the

23    floor, is there?  Oh, the one of nine.  Connie,

24    could you give us the motion?

25               MS. CONRAD:  The motion is:  The
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 1    scientific evidence is adequate to draw conclusions

 2    about the effectiveness of PFES compared to placebo

 3    in stress incontinence.

 4               DR. McBRYDE:  Point of order?

 5               DR. GARBER:  Yes?

 6               DR. McBRYDE:  Can I again, as yesterday,

 7    say positive conclusion as opposed to negative,

 8    because we're going to draw a conclusion, and

 9    conclusions are not what we're looking for.  We're

10    looking for a positive or a negative.

11               DR. GARBER:  An affirmative vote on this

12    means that we believe the scientific evidence is

13    adequate to draw conclusions; a negative vote means

14    that you believe the scientific evidence is not

15    adequate.

16               DR. ZENDLE: And if it passes, then we'll

17    decide what kind of conclusions it draw.

18               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  Is everybody clear

19    about that?  Jim?

20               DR. RATHMELL:  Do you need a second?

21               DR. GARBER:  All right.  I wasn't sure

22    that I heard either of them.  Could you make the

23    motion for this part?

24               DR. ZENDLE:  If you want.

25               DR. RATHMELL:  I second the motion to
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 1    call the question.

 2               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  We're ready to take

 3    the vote now.  All those in favor, meaning that the

 4    evidence is adequate to draw conclusions about PFES

 5    compared with placebo in stress incontinence, raise

 6    your hand.

 7               (Dr. Landy voted in the affirmative.)

 8               DR. GARBER:  One vote.  All those

 9    opposed are answering no.

10               (All panelists with the exception of

11    Drs. Landy and Epstein voted in the negative.)

12               DR. EPSTEIN:  Can we abstain?

13               MS. CONRAD:  Yes.

14               DR. EPSTEIN:  So be it.

15               DR. GARBER:  All right.  All abstaining?

16               (Dr. Epstein abstained.)
17               DR. GARBER:  Now, in the order, do you

18    want to do these en block or one at a time?  Okay,

19    anybody care to explain their yes vote?

20               DR. LANDY:  I guess that means me.

21               DR. GARBER:  Not to name names.

22               DR. LANDY:  I think it goes back to the

23    issue of what is adequate, and knowing the field of

24    incontinence, this may be as good as the data that

25    we get in this area of study, and maybe my
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 1    requirements are not as robust as the TEC

 2    assessment, but I think based on the data we have

 3    now, I could make a decision regarding the second

 4    question.

 5               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  Would anyone care to

 6    explain their no vote?

 7               DR. RATHMELL:  I'll say quite simply

 8    that the technology assessment is clear and even

 9    though it was stricken from the record, the most

10    recent discussion pointed out just what the

11    problems with the data are, and there's an

12    inconsistency in the devices used and there's an

13    inconsistency in the outcome shown, and I think we

14    don't have any basis for making a scientific

15    decision.  And this doesn't say yea or nay, this is

16    an effective therapy, or it has a niche.  It has

17    nothing to do with that; it says the scientific

18    evidence is inadequate.

19               DR. GARBER:  Anyone else care to add any

20    further explanation for a not vote?

21               Not to name any names, but any

22    explanations for an abstention?

23               DR. EPSTEIN:  You know, after two days,

24    there's nothing I have to say that's profound.

25    When I look at the weight of the evidence, I think
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 1    that, it boggles me, and it came out about

 2    abstentions.  The studies are inconsistent; there's

 3    reasons to think why the negative studies would

 4    have been negative in their design, and so I weight

 5    that lack of evidence less.  And I can't really

 6    quite figure out where my P value is from .05

 7    to .5, but I look on balance and I think for this

 8    condition, for this disease, the scientific studies

 9    are stronger than they were yesterday.  That

10    doesn't say that the coverage decision will come

11    down differently, because in fact this sort of face

12    validity of the measure is not as powerful to me as

13    the face validity of biofeedback, which has a lot

14    of face validity.  This seems more like black

15    magic, but that's it.

16               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  We will move on to

17    the next question, which is, if I have the order

18    right, are we doing urge incontinence, or are we

19    doing compared to PME?

20               DR. ZENDLE:  Urge.

21               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  So PFES compared to

22    placebo for the second indication, which is urge

23    incontinence.  Do I have a motion?

24               DR. BRIN:  So move.

25               DR. MAVES:  Second.
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 1               DR. GARBER:  Okay.  It's moved and

 2    seconded.  Any discussion?  Should I read that

 3    again?  PFES compared to placebo for urge

 4    incontinence, is the scientific evidence adequate

 5    to draw conclusions?  If there's no discussion, all

 6    those answering yes, it is adequate?  All those

 7    answering no?

 8               (Unanimous in the negative.)

 9               DR. GARBER:  Unanimous, and no

10    abstentions.

11               All right.  Any reasons for your vote on

12    this one?

13               DR. ZENDLE:  It's all been said.

14               DR. GARBER:  Can we repeat your reasons

15    from the prior?

16               DR. GARBER:  Then the third one is --

17               DR. ZENDLE:  Alan, also, I mean, our

18    comments earlier, comments not just from the last

19    question but from the entire discussion.

20               DR. LANDY:  I have a different reason,

21    because I have a different answer.  My answer is no

22    because I really don't think I can base a decision

23    about efficacy about one trial that we were exposed

24    to, the Brubaker study, though possibly showing

25    efficacy, has some limitations due to the
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 1    statistical analysis or study.  And the other

 2    trial, Yamanishi of 2000, we weren't even given

 3    that or analyzed that study, so it's really hard to

 4    make a decision based on a single trial.

 5               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  The third

 6    question is, again, PFES compared with placebo,

 7    this time for the indication of post-prostatectomy

 8    incontinence.  Is there a motion?

 9               DR. MAVES:  So move.

10               DR. McBRYDE:  Second.

11               DR. GARBER:  Any discussion?  Logan?

12               DR. HOLTGREWE:  Yeah.  If our

13    information is inadequate on stress and urge

14    incontinence, it's even weaker in this area.  There

15    is really practically nothing, so you really cannot

16    make a decision whether the treatment for this type

17    of incontinence helps in any way.  Of course we

18    heard some anecdotal situations but anecdotes don't

19    make for science, so I think we really have no

20    information of significance.

21               DR. GARBER:  Any further discussion?  So

22    the motion on the table is that the scientific

23    evidence is adequate to draw conclusions about the

24    effectiveness of PFES compared to placebo for

25    post-prostatectomy incontinence.  A yes means that
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 1    you do find the scientific evidence adequate.  All

 2    those voting yes?  All those voting no?

 3               (Unanimous in the negative.)

 4               DR. GARBER:  It's unanimous, with no

 5    abstentions.  Next is the --

 6               DR. HILL:  While no one has to speak, we

 7    do want to be sure to give them the opportunity

 8    just in case they want to explain their vote.

 9               DR. GARBER:  Yeah.  Logan gave a reason

10    for his vote.  Did anybody want to add to that?

11    Okay.  Now, it is PFES compared to PMEs or

12    alternative nonsurgical techniques, for stress

13    incontinence.

14               DR. MAVES:  So move.

15               DR. BRIN:  Second.

16               DR. GARBER:  Any discussion?

17               DR. LANDY:  Could you repeat that again?

18               DR. GARBER:  We're now saying, is the

19    scientific evidence adequate to draw conclusions

20    about the effectiveness of PFES compared to PMEs or

21    alternative nonsurgical techniques for the

22    indication of stress incontinence?  Any

23    discussion?  A yes, again, means the scientific

24    evidence is adequate.

25               All those voting yes?  No?
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 1               (Unanimous in the negative.)

 2               DR. GARBER:  It's unanimous.  Okay.

 3               Any explanation of the no votes?  This

 4    is all the same as before, okay.

 5               Now, PFES compared to PMEs or

 6    alternative nonsurgical techniques for urge

 7    incontinence.

 8               DR. MAVES:  So move.

 9               DR. RATHMELL:  Second.

10               DR. GARBER:  Any discussion?  All those

11    voting yes, the evidence is adequate?  All those

12    voting no?

13               (Unanimous in the negative.)

14               DR. GARBER:  Unanimous, with no

15    abstentions.

16               DR. LANDY:  Can I explain my no vote?

17    On this topic, I think there may be efficacy in its

18    use but we don't have that data, we only have one

19    trial to support it.

20               DR. GARBER:  Lisa, was your comment

21    specific to the indication of urge incontinence?

22               DR. LANDY:  Yes.

23               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  Okay.

24               Now, we are at the third indication for

25    the second comparison.  Is the scientific evidence
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 1    adequate to draw conclusions about the

 2    effectiveness of PFES compared to PME, et cetera,

 3    for the third indication, i.e., post-prostatectomy

 4    incontinence?

 5               DR. MAVES:  So move.

 6               DR. BRIN:  Second.

 7               DR. HOLTGREWE:  I have the same comment

 8    as before.

 9               DR. GARBER:  Any other discussion?

10               All those voting yes, saying the

11    evidence is adequate?  All those voting no?

12               (Unanimous in the negative.)

13               DR. GARBER:  Unanimous.  Any further

14    explanation?  I will report that Logan noted the

15    same reason as his prior.  Okay.

16               Now, the third comparison is PFES and

17    PME compared to PME alone, for the indication of

18    stress incontinence.

19               DR. MAVES:  So moved.

20               DR. RATHMELL:  Second.

21               DR. GARBER:  Any discuss?

22               All those voting yes, the scientific

23    evidence is adequate?  All those voting no?

24               (Unanimous in the negative.)

25               DR. GARBER:  Unanimous.  No
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 1    abstentions.  Any further explanations?  Okay.

 2               Now, same comparison, PFES and PME

 3    compared to PME alone, this time for the indication

 4    of urge incontinence.

 5               DR. ZENDLE:  So move.

 6               DR. BRIN:  Second.

 7               DR. GARBER:  Any discussion?  Okay.  Now

 8    we vote on the question, is the scientific evidence

 9    adequate to draw conclusions for the indication of

10    urge incontinence.  All those voting yes?  All

11    those voting no?

12               (Unanimous in the negative.)

13               DR. GARBER:  Unanimous.  Any further

14    explanation of your votes?

15               And now the third comparison for the

16    third indication, our ninth vote on the adequacy

17    question:  Is the scientific evidence adequate to

18    draw conclusions about the effectiveness of PFS and

19    PME compared to PME alone, for post-prostatectomy

20    incontinence?

21               DR. MAVES:  So move.

22               DR. ZENDLE:  Second.

23               DR. GARBER:  Discussion?  Logan?

24               DR. HOLTGREWE:  Same comments as before.

25               DR. GARBER:  Thank you.  All those
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 1    voting yes?  All those voting no?

 2               (Unanimous in the negative.)

 3               DR. GARBER:  Unanimous.  Any further

 4    explanation?

 5               DR. HILL:  If I may, by way of closing,

 6    in addition to thanking all of you, both voting and

 7    nonvoting members, and thanking all the commenters

 8    for participating in this process, and for your

 9    willingness to participate under the guidelines

10    that we laid down about how we wanted this

11    structured and what kind of comments we were hoping

12    for.  I want to say it's especially appropriate to

13    have you communicate to us your concerns about the

14    questions, because I hope you all understand, and

15    those of you that have looked at the Executive

16    Committee's interim recommendations for evaluating

17    effectiveness will recognize that the question

18    about adequacy of evidence was drawn right from

19    that document.  And so if you have recommendations

20    to how that should be changed or what alterations

21    should be made, we hope that you will.  Also,

22    internally and procedurally, when and how we can

23    involve you, your panel chairman in the formulation

24    of the questions, and how to balance that against

25    our needs to have the questions track the referral
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 1    to the TEC assessment when we do that, how closely

 2    those two things have to be related.  All of those

 3    sorts of things that we've heard discussion about,

 4    we will need to think about and we will need to

 5    take seriously whatever you want to send to use by

 6    way of both argument and points you want to make.

 7               DR. HOLTGREWE:  Question.  What should

 8    we do with our materials?  Are they to be left here

 9    or are you going to deal with that?

10               MS. CONRAD:  We will deal with that.

11               DR. GARBER:  Before we formally adjourn,

12    I would like to add a note of thanks on my own to

13    the panelists for the obvious effort you put into

14    these deliberations.  I found them very difficult

15    and as I said yesterday, I feel very fortunate that

16    I did not have to vote on these questions.

17               I want to thank the public speakers who

18    came here very well prepared and very much on the

19    topic, and I want to also emphasize that if the

20    voting did not go the way that you had hoped it

21    would, it does not mean that your comments were

22    ignored.  It's quite clear that you made some very

23    good points that the panel did take into account.

24               Finally, I want to thank the HCFA staff

25    who put in a tremendous amount of effort, along
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 1    with the TEC center and Frank Lefevre, who actually

 2    helped to structure this process and deliver a

 3    great deal of information.  Whether you agree with

 4    the conclusions or not of the report that Frank and

 5    his colleagues prepared, I think it was an

 6    extraordinary amount of effort and it really shows,

 7    so thanks very much to all of you.

 8               MS. CONRAD:  To conclude today's panel

 9    meeting, let me announce that the future meetings

10    for this panel are tentatively scheduled June 14th

11    and 15th, and October 17th and 18th.  These dates

12    are subject to change.

13               I'm going to ask the panel members to

14    linger just a few more minutes to accept a second

15    evaluation form from Perry Bridger.  And finally,

16    leave all your materials.  We are very concerned

17    about any personal notes that may be made in any of

18    the margins, so we will collect your materials and

19    have them shredded.

20               At this point, could I have a motion

21    that the meeting be adjourned?

22               DR. McBRYDE:  So move.

23               MS. CONRAD:  Second.

24               DR. HOLTGREWE:  Second.

25               (The meeting adjourned at 1:30 p.m.)

